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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

ANNUAL REVIEW

Year of 2020 was a year equally filled with risks and
opportunities. The COVID-19 pandemic caused a relatively large
impact towards the real estate industry at the beginning of
2020. However, with the outbreak brought under control, all staff
members of the Group strived hard to overcome difficulties. By
adopting various sales models such as online sales, we made
efforts to ensure the solid development of all business segments.
Besides making a steady step forward to our strategic goals, we
also laid down a foundation for the development of the Group in
the future.

Year of 2020 was an unusual year with difficulties and challenges
coming from both the society and the industry itself. The
Group never backed down; while fighting against the COVID-19
outbreak, we strived to resume work and operation, explored
various sales models, combined online and offline sales,
and introduced the digital sales system into our operations.
We also informatized our management system, made digital
upgrades, and laid down a foundation for the Company’s
future development. While focusing on our own growth, we
also dedicated ourselves to public welfare. To fulfil our social
responsibility, we made donation amounting to approximately
RMB4,577,000 to support the communities to fight against the
COVID-19 pandemic.

In 2020, Xuchang Hengda, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group was assigned AAA rating, the highest possible rating,
by the China Real Estate Association* (FFEl B i E ¥ &).
The Xuchang Hengda Dongcheng Garden* (5F & 18 i e B i 1E
E) project, the Changge Hengda Junyuefu* (K& BZEeF i}
f¥) project, the Linying Hengda* (E& % 1E ) project and other
projects have been gradually commenced. Meanwhile, various
projects were awarded “2020 Quality Constructions of Xuchang
City”.

*

English name for identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

To lower procurement costs and increase operation efficiency,
we established the Xuchang Xuheng Commerce Company
Limited* (5F & 5T 1E @ & & R 2 &), which is responsible
for centralized procurement for the Group. At the same
time, in order to maintain steady business growth, we set
up the following new project companies in the form of sole
proprietorship or joint venture, namely: (i) Xuchang Dongheng
Property Development Company Limited* (3 & 18 = i &
B R A A)); (i) Xiangcheng Hengda Property Development
Company Limited* (EW B EEFHERZEBRAAF); and (i)
Luohe Hengda Huatai Realty Company Limited* (J2 718 i % 3=
EEXFRRQA).

Over the past 28 years of our development, the Group has
always adhered to the principle of “Integrity Management,
Fulfilling Every Promise” in our effort to create a beautiful chapter
in urban construction. By gaining a foothold in the market with
our products and services, the Group strives towards the goals
of targeting extensive exploration, and the pursue of excellent
and effective operation and large-scale services. We thereby
endeavour to create a win-win situation for our customers, the
society, our staff, stakeholders and investors.

ANNUAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s total revenue
was approximately RMB2,422.1 million, representing an increase
of approximately 22.7% from approximately RMB1,974.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the net profit was approximately RMB282.6
million, representing a decrease of approximately 2.8% from
approximately RMB290.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK6.0 cents per ordinary share (equivalent to approximately
RMB5.0 cents per ordinary share) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

*

English name for identification purpose only
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OUTLOOK

In 2021, the development of China’s real estate industry will
focus on three areas, including: (i) exploring opportunities for
structural development, seeking to find suitable developmental
opportunities based on local policies, demographics, family
structures, and consumer demand; (ii) making greater efforts in
inventory clearance, reforming the market such that its primary
goal is to clear up existing inventory; and (iii) digitalizing the real
estate industry, making “smart property” and “smart community”
the new learning topics of the industry, and procuring enterprises
to develop smart products that are in line with the modern era.

In the future, the digitalization of the real estate industry will
become a significant part of the development. During the initial
stage of transformation, the real estate industry will focus on key
areas such as smart homes, online trading, home expansion,
and credit building. The industry will also be required to undergo
gradual digitalization. Properties will have to be upgraded from
being secure and functional, to being healthy and comfortable,
ultimately catering to all expectations of consumers on the ideal
home by providing more options and better service quality and
experience for consumers. The Group has set up a product
design team that actively learns from leading enterprises in
the industry, so as to improve our community service and
management system.

In 2021, China will continue to adhere to the principle of
“residential properties are for living, not speculation” by actively
implementing its long-lasting property market control mechanism
— to maintain a stable economy, properties will not be used as
a short-term measure for stimulating the economy.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Looking forward, the Group will actively layout our market
strategies of precise and in-depth exploration, raise quality of
our products, and increase brand influence. The Group will
(i) implement business models to maximize project turnover
rates, develop new projects with high turnover as the goal,
formulate project development plans based on the high turnover
requirements established by the Group, and in accordance with
our own targets in relation to capital recovery cycle, profit margin,
and annualized return etc., and undergo stringent assessments.
At the same time, we will also take serious measures to control
the effective operations of design, construction, sales and other
areas during the project development process; (i) make greater
efforts in inventory clearance, analyse product strengths and
weaknesses based on market situations, adopt flexible and
diverse marketing measures and incentives to control inventory
cycle time, to increase the speed of inventory clearance; (iii)
make greater efforts to nurture talents, in order to simultaneously
develop our human resources and business strategy. Through
the continuous optimization of our staff management system,
performance management system, and the talent nurturing
system, we can make full use of the results of our qualification
evaluations and performance appraisals, to enhance both our
business performance and staff quality; and (iv) continuously
enhance our management and control capabilities by
establishing a risk control system, to safeguard our business
development. The Group will further increase the level of the
risk control management, define internal control targets, and, by
combining the Company’s management and control systems,
embed risk control elements into our business procedures.
Hence, by having a unified and strengthened management
system of major risk areas, we can better control and prevent
from risks.

In 2021, the Group will continue to mount new heights while
marching forward. We will strive to seize opportunities, gradually
carry out projects, and actively enhance our brand influence,
in order to make new contributions to the Group and its
shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT EE )

| would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to TAZBHEUEBKERERESTE  HEUR
our shareholders, business partners, customers and suppliers R EBREN ZXPREEEMHANX
for their support and trust on behalf of the Board. | also thank BEMEEREHE RARKRHEEEK
the management and all staff for their contributions and efforts TREIBEZFNERMEREN

over the past years.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited EEEEBEER)ERQT
Li Xiaobing FTEEHTEF
Chairman and Executive Director Z=NIK

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021 EF& 0 2021FE3H25H

2020 Annual Report
—B-BEER



10

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2020, China maintained a steady growth in its property
market. Acting as a stabilizer of economic development, China’s
real estate played an important role in digesting the production
capacity of up and down stream industries, maintaining the
financial system and stabilizing the financial performance of local
governments at every level. Amidst the COVID-19 outbreak
during the first half of 2020, China cut its reserve requirement
ratio 3 times and reduced its interest twice to maintain sufficient
overall market liquidity. As another result of the pandemic, the
Chinese government has made “keeping employment, the
financial sector, foreign trade, foreign and domestic investments,
and expectations stable” and “ensuring security in the six areas
of employment, basic living needs, operations of market entities,
food and energy security, stable industrial and supply chains,
and the normal functioning of primary-level governments” as its
primary goals; thus, loan financing for real estate enterprises has
been relaxed during the period. With the pandemic gradually
under control, three red guidelines have been promulgated by
the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development and the
People’s Bank of China during the second half of the year. The
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission stated
that it would continue to carry out special reviews on the real
estate loans of more than 30 major cities, prevent the over-
granting of loans to properties with high leverage ratios and
heavy financial pressure, and make greater efforts to investigate
the inflow of down payment loans and consumption loans into
the property market. In light of the above, real estate financing is
more stringently regulated.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2020, under the overarching principle of “residential properties
are for living, not speculation”, local governments implemented
policies according to their relevant urban conditions with more
flexibility. Supporting policies in relation to both the supply and
demand sides of the property market were gradually launched
by various government authorities. In the second half of 2020,
policies tightened with increasing controlling measures regarding
the property market. However, the regulations in most cities
remained moderate. Meanwhile, in terms of price and quantity,
the competition in Henan Province was relatively fierce. Actual
closing prices of most projects decreased as a result of various
marketing practices; yet with the gradual launch of regulatory
policies, the supply and demand balance will be slowly
improved.

Looking back to 2020, the development of the property market
of Henan Province maintained stable. Investment in real estate
development in the entire province amounted to approximately
RMB778.3 billion, representing an increase of approximately
4.3% as compared to 2019; total construction area of property
development enterprises amounted to approximately 584.4
million sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 1.5% as
compared to 2019; and the sales volume of commercial housing
amounted to approximately RMB936.4 billion, representing an
increase of approximately 3.9% over last year. In 2020, the
contracted sales volume of the Group’s commercial housing was
approximately RMB4.34 billion, representing an increase of
approximately 66.3% as compared to 2019.

The real estate industry of Xuchang faced unprecedented
challenges over the past year. From the trading halt resulted
from the pandemic outbreak at the beginning of the year to the
gradual recovery of the industry, Xuchang experienced many
challenges and reforms, and the development outlook of its
various segments remains optimistic. Properties continue to be
launched for sale with high demand, which boosted people’s
confidence in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

The Integration of Zhengzhou and Xuchang Initiative (255 —81b)
allowed Xuchang to capture golden opportunities among the
urban clusters of the Central Plains, thus maximizing the
potential and space for Xuchang’s future development. With the
gradual construction of Zhengzhou and Xuchang’s railway
system, The Integration of Zhengzhou and Xuchang Initiative
speeded up. Moreover, the Xuchang government continued to
stabilize the economy by building urban infrastructure and
improving employment policies. In addition to the established
industry base of Xuchang, this equipped the real estate market
with favourable conditions and a diverse, positive developmental
outlook ahead.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group has been working towards its annual and mid to long
term goals by making progress in project operation, strategic
marketing, marketing model, operational control, and brand
influence. In 2020, the Group acquired a total of approximately
124,224 square meters of land located at the core area of
Xuchang City through the process of bidding invitation, auction
or listing. The land’s strategic position provides it with convenient
transport, abundant resources in its vicinity, and excellent
competitiveness in the market. The Group has also established
four new companies in the form of sole proprietorship or joint
venture, namely: (i) Xuchang Xuheng Commerce Company
Limited®; (ii) Xuchang Dongheng Property Development Company
Limited*; (iii) Xiangcheng Hengda Property Development
Company Limited* and (iv) Luohe Hengda Huatai Realty
Company Limited*.

*

English name for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2020, we took the initiative to seek out different solutions in
respect of sales of properties. The introduction of the digitalized
sales system allowed our sales procedures to become more
standardized and convenient, and our sales data to become more
straight-forward, clear, and transparent. At the same time, by
combining our online and offline sales platforms, we boosted the
online exposure of the Group and projects developed by us, and
also enhanced our brand awareness. During the year, among
projects for sale, Hengda Lanjun (1€ % # ), Hengda Heyuan (1
#E A E), Mingmen Xijun (% 978 38) and Yuzhou Binhefu (& /1| i1
Y& A IiF) achieved satisfactory contracted sales performance, with
increased total contracted sales volume as compared with 2019.
Meanwhile, the Group continues to develop projects such as
Dongcheng Garden (B3 fE &), Yuzhou Sunshine City (& N 1 k5
Yt ), and Xiangcheng Hengda Xijun (2 ¥ % 18 i B 2() to
provide a stable growth momentum for our sales and
performance in the coming years.

The Group adhered to the business model of developing mixed
residential and commercial properties, to increase the overall
value of residential projects. When developing commercial and
residential projects, we always opt for prime locations in urban
areas that allow tenants to enjoy the benefits of having a
convenient transport network and quality infrastructure nearby,
such as banks, hospitals, schools, government offices, and
recreational facilities. To provide extra comfort and convenience,
we also select places with desirable surrounding environments.
Meanwhile, we adopt a humanistic approach when choosing
architectural styles and making landscape design plans, where
we create a well-blended, reciprocal relationship between
society and the built environment, to bring forward the best living
experience for our residents, and at the same time, enhance the
brand image and reputation of the Group.

EEERWED T

R2020%F  BFMERRSEELES
WHR HERBLREMIALESY
ERREMRAER BERETNE
BN A RBRRE L RETHE
A M7 - 187 B R AT B BOE
AMR L BXBEURRBEES  AE
FEEEAGIEERS  EENE - A
PIPEER R BN RIS A A K 4
BRELT - @A R Y EER00FBEE
ME o AR AREESERNEERT
B ME B R R EEEREE
HE ARFRRAEMHER AR
HEBOBED S -

AREEBRFEESEHAXREARERHKE
X URSEEEENEAEE IFH
EREFEETEHRAHERPETAZOME -
RBEE KMIORTT BE 2R K
e KEBREEEREE - BER
BES KRAESTEEFERARE
E-AREZEREEIRBITET BT
EUAARE BAMHEERIMEE
MR REITEREINEEER
RS TAREREZENNEER -

2020 Annual Report
—B-BEER

13



14

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

LAND RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the GFA of the Group’s land reserves
was approximately 3.6 million square meters (“sq.m.”). The table
below sets forth a summary of the land reserves as at 31

Tk

R2020F12 A318 » N &= E + i 4 1§ 1
EEmBELHAEIOBEFHKTERK]D -
T R & 5 R 2020E12 A31H 1% #h 15 2| H

December 2020 by geographical location: B L fEEE
Under Future
Completed  development  development
BRI ks ik
Completed
saleable/
leasable GFA
remaining GFA under Planned Total land % of total land
unsold  development GFA reserve reserve
BIRHEN
THE /WA BEH Ral o @t
CRIBEER BEERE BEER G REAAL
sq.m. sq.m. sg.m. sq.m. %
FHAK FIHK FIHAR FINK %
Xuchang City FEI
Weidu District HiE 82,928 656,124 266 739,318 20.7
Jian'an District ERE 48,771 40,109 146,930 235,810 6.6
Yuzhou City BT 47,506 918,117 607,657 1,673,280 44.0
Changge City REm 21,900 346,571 73,667 442,138 12.4
Yanling County BEg 13,085 112,727 - 125,812 3.5
Xiangcheng County BN & - 47,999 39,851 87,850 2.5
Dongcheng District B R S 221,986 145,391 367,377 10.3
Total #1E 214,190 2,343,633 1,013,762 3,571,585 100.0
Note: Land reserves equal the sum of (i) total completed saleable/ Hat: LIHHEESROBTRLENTHE

leasable GFA remaining unsold, (i) total GFA under development

and (i) total planned GFA held for future development.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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CONTRACTED SALES

The table below sets forth a breakdown of our major types of
contracted sales and contracted average selling price (“ASP”):

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

BRHEH

TRHEINEAMEIBEFNARBEERR
ERFHEE(FHERDMHPMA:

For the year ended

31 December % change
BZ12AMALEE 2HAN N
2020 2019 +-
20205 20194 +-
Contracted sales attributable to: IWTEEELEREER:
Residential units (RMB, million) FEEM(AREBEET) 3,816.1 2,260.5 +68.8%
Commercial units (RMB, million) HEEU(AREEEL) 398.6 267 1 +49.2%
Car parking spaces (RMB, million) EFEM(AREEET) 115.0 74.4 +54.6%
Others (RMB, million) H(AREBEET) 10.5 7.6 +38.2%
Total (RMB, million) B (ARBEEL) 4,340.2 2,609.6 +66.3%
Contracted saleable GFA/Lot attributable to: M TR BREEAR AL ER
SEE/EY:
Saleable GFA (sq.m.) AHERERE(EAK) 638,930 378,235 +68.9%
Car parking space (lot) EEA(fE) 1,749 941 +85.9%
Contracted ASP attributable to: AT EEREEARTFHER:
Saleable GFA (RMB/sq.m.) HEREHE
(AR®T/EHXK) 6,793 6,703 +1.3%
Car parking space (RMB/lot) BEANRET,/ ) 65,752 79,065 -16.8%

Our contracted ASP per sg.m. of saleable GFA increased by
1.3% to approximately RMB6,793 per sg.m. in 2020. The
increase in 2020 was mainly due to the increase in market price
of properties in Henan Province.

Our contracted ASP per lot for car parking space decreased by
16.8% to approximately RMB65,752 per lot in 2020 due to the
lower ASP of the car parking spaces at the Hengda Heyuan in

2020.

BMAILEEEEAENE LS KERAT
HE B R2020F #EIN1.3% 2T F 5K
AR #6,7937C  2020F M BT EHR
MEEYMENTEERLEH -

HRR2020F EZEFBEFEEMNNTFHE
ERE HBEMAEFEMCHZEERFH
E (B R2020F i L16.8% EFEH AR
#65,7527T °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results

The financial performance and results for the year ended 31
December 2020 were acceptable. Key financial ratios have met
the expectation of the management.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the
Group reached approximately RMB2,422.1 million (2019:
RMB1,974.1 million), representing an increase of approximately
22.7%.

The Group recorded gross profit of approximately RMB779.0
million (2019: RMB765.3 million), representing an increase of
approximately RMB13.7 million, or approximately 1.8%.

Gross profit margin was approximately 32.2% in 2020 (2019:
38.8%), representing a decrease of approximately 17.0% as
compared with that in 2019.

Profit for the year decreased by approximately RMB8.2 million,
or 2.8%, from approximately RMB290.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB282.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Revenue

Our revenue was derived from (i) sales of properties and (ii)
rental income. The following table sets forth the breakdown of
the revenue and their respective percentages of contribution to
the total revenue for the years indicated:

Bt %5 1

HE2020F12A31HILFEFENIH B KRE
MEERAUES xBYHLREDE
BEFEH -

NE E2020F12A31BLEE AEH
WA ELHANRBED 42017 & 7t (20194 -
AREEA19741BEIT) » EIN4I22.7% °

AEEHESENMHDARBI7TO0E E T
(20194 : A R #7653 B 7T) N4
ARBA3.7A & 7T (30491.8%) °

2020F M) £ F| X 4 532.2% (20194 :
38.8%) * 20194 7 2 £917.0% ©

FENEBE E2019F12A31B ILEE
FAANREE200.8EE L FREHARKS.2
A & u(32.8%) = & £2020F12A31H
IHFEMHARK2826H8 T °

WA
BRI ARB D EHER () EEKA -

TREINRARFENBARARESE
BAT BB ANB DL :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12ANALEE
2020 2019 % change
20205 2019 R
RMB’000 % RMB 000 % +/-
AREFr % AREFT % +/-
Sales of properties MEHE 2,417,639 99.8 1,971,020 99.8 22.7%
Rental income HelA 4,412 0.2 3,040 0.2 451%
2,422,051 100.0 1,974,060 100.0 22.7%

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

TREINZMEEHNE DY EHEK
A FIRERMENBREEE BUR
BLZENENBECHRATFIERE:

The tables below set out the revenue from the sales of
properties, the total GFA units of properties recognised and the
overall recognised ASP of our properties by property types:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12R31BLEE
2020 2019
2020%F 20195
Recognised Recognised
GFA ASP GFA ASP
Revenue  recognised per sq.m. Revenue recognised per sg.m.
ERR [
2R B¥AK E#R (SRNIF
O BEER THEE A BERRE THEE
RMB’000 sq.m. RMB RMB 000 sq.m. RAMB
AREFRT FI K ARBT ANRETT FIK ARBT
Residential = 2,019,393 309,952 6,515 1,710,974 306,165 5,607
Commercial BE 246,448 33,812 7,289 193,339 18,608 10,390
Storage HEZE 10,254 3,665 2,798 10,290 4178 2,463
2,276,095 347,429 6,551 1,914,603 327,951 5,838
Units  Recognised Units Recognised
Revenue  recognised ASP per unit Revenue recognised  ASP per unit
ERABENL BHRGEL
KA ERIEQ THEE WA BERE[ THEE
RMB’000 lot RMB RMB 000 lot RMB
AREFRT EE: ARET ANEEFT 162 ARET
Car parking spaces 1% & i 141,544 1,699 83,310 56,417 711 79,349

Sales of properties, which accounted for approximately 99.8%
(2019: 99.8%) of our total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2020, were contributed by the sales of residential and
commercial properties, storages and car parking spaces

HE2020F12A31BILFE - MEHEE
B 4915 B M9 42 A #999.8% (20194F ¢
90.8%) THRZTFEBREEZR A F
ME FEHEREEMNEEE -

recognised in the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

Our revenue increased by approximately RMB448.0 million or
22.7% from approximately RMB1,974.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB2,422.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which was principally
attributable to the result of approximately RMB308.4 million
increase in the sales of our residential properties during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The increase in sales of residential properties was mainly due to
the effect of increase of recognised ASP per sg.m. from
approximately RMB5,607 for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately RMB6,515 for the year ended 31 December
2020, representing an increase of approximately 16.2% year-on-
year.

The increase in the sales of our commercial properties during
the year was primarily due to the effect of increase in GFA
recognised for commercial properties of approximately 81.7%,
despite partially offset by the decrease in recognised ASP per
sg.m..

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

IR WA B E E2019F12 8318 1FF
EHHARBIIO741BETENOAR
#448.08 & Tt (522.7%) & & £ 20204
12ABLEFENHARKE242218 8
7T JhE ZE RN E £2020F12A318 L&
FEERMNEEVMEHSEMOARE
308.4B BT °

FTEMEHEENNZEZEHANRERRE
FHKEBHE E2019F12A8318 I+ F
ER A RE5,6077T1E 11 =& £20204F
12A31BIEFEMH ARG,5157T [
t 12 K 4916.2% ©

FREEMEHEENDEE AR R
Y0 % B R 3 I 55 A 4K A0 H081.7% + @
EBHBRERBTFHKFHEETHE
FRIE 3 o



Gross profit and gross profit margin

The table below sets out the revenue, gross profit and gross

profit margin by types:

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

ENREFER

R

Year ended 31 December

TREINREHEDHKA - EFMKRE

BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019
20205 20195
Gross
Cost of Gross profit Cost of Gross profit
Revenue sales profit Margin Revenue sales  Gross profit Margin
WA HERXK 7 ik KA HERA ey VR
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 %  RMB000  RMB0OO  RMB000 %
AREFLT ARETT AREFT % ARETT AREFT AREFrT %
Sales of properties £ HE
— Residential - 2,019,393 1,305,103 714,290 354 1,710,974 1,040,085 670,889 39.2
— Commercial -B¥ 246,448 201,625 44,823 18.2 193,339 95,424 97,915 50.6
— Car parking - BERE
spaces and BE
storages 151,798 136,362 15,436 10.2 66,707 73,262 (6,555) 9.8
Subtotal N 2,417,639 1,643,090 774,549 320 1,971,020 1,208,771 762,249 38.7
Rental itk 4,412 - 4,412 100.0 3,040 = 3,040 100.0
2,422,051 1,643,090 778,961 32.2 1,974,060 1,208,771 765,289 38.8

The overall gross profit margin of sales of properties and gross
profit margin of sales of residential properties dropped from
approximately 38.8% in 2019 to 32.2% in 2020 and
approximately 39.2% in 2019 to 35.4% in 2020, respectively.

The gross profit margin of commercial properties dropped from
approximately 50.6% in 2019 to 18.2% in 2020, representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 64.0%. It was because
the commercial properties delivered during the year ended 31
December 2020 were mainly apartments with less ASP per
sg.m..

WEBEENER T EH019F Y
38.8% I~ P& £2020F #132.2% * £ £ E 7
R H20194F K #)39.2% T % 220204 HY
35.4% °

XYM E F EH2019F B9 £950.6%
T & 20204 #918.2% © @ o B 4 4
64.0% ° & = M R # 22020912 A31H
RN EEMETEATFTHAKTE
HEBRENIE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

The negative gross profit margin of sales of car parking spaces
and storage in year 2019 was due to the combined effects of (i)
decrease in market price of car parking spaces of certain project
in Xuchang City; and (ii) write-down of value of car parking
spaces in 2019.

Profit for the year was approximately RMB282.6 million (2019:
RMB290.8 million), representing a drop of approximately RMB8.2
million. It was mainly due to the (i) decrease of our overall gross
profit margin from approximately 38.8% for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately 32.2% for the year ended 31
December 2020 and (ii) increase of selling and marketing
expenses and administrative expenses from approximately
RMB63.5 million and RMB90.6 million to approximately
RMB102.0 million and RMB132.1 million, respectively.

Fair value gains on investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31 December
2020 by an independent professional qualified valuers, Vincorn
Consulting and Appraisal Limited, who hold recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the
locations and segments of the investment properties valued.

Selling and marketing expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s selling and
marketing expenses amounted to approximately of RMB102.0
million (2019: RMB63.5 million), representing an increase of
approximately 60.6% as compared to that in 2019. The increase
was mainly due to addition promotion activities and campaign for
brand building during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately 45.8%
from approximately RMB90.6 million in 2019 to approximately
RMB132.1 million in 2020, the increase of administrative
expenses was mainly due to the increase of staff costs.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

R2019OFHEFBEN LHREEHREAHK
ENMETIHRHAR2019FFEmE TIE
B EBEMNME TR R()EEMEBM
BHR A ERE -

FRFEHEANRE282.68 & (2019
FAR®E208FETT) MAHARE
B2EBIL - #ZRALEEARHKMAE
BERMRABHZ2019F12A3H IEFE
K #138.8% & 4 = & £2020F 12 A31H
FFERNN32.2% R(i)HEEREHEMAX
UWERTERAZBADHOARKE3EE
TR ARBIBEETLHANIEMNELA
R¥102.08 B LR ARBI2AEE T °

REMEND FER S

REBEMEE Y EN2020F12 4318 &
BYEELERGEMLSE AT
ERABETHE ZARNBEERT
WA EEERTYUMMEENREDE
O Hb Bh AN SE IS B AT BRI AR 5B o

HERTSERMX

R E £22020F12831B 1L FE - AEH
R ERMISHEER LA AREK1020
BE L(2019F : AR¥6358ET) ' &
20194 # & 4760.6% ° 3L M ¥ E |
RRE E2020F12A31IBILFEHEE
ZmBHEEREEEY -

THBAX

TR X A2019F 4 A RE#90.68 B
JC 3 A0 #945.8% 20205 B 4 A R
1321F BT (THAXEMDIEZEHR
B IR A I INATER ©



Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance costs — net

Finance costs primarily consisted of (i) interest expenses on
borrowings; (ii) interest on pre-sale deposits received and (jii)
interest charges on lease liabilities, less interest expenses which
were capitalised to the extent that such costs are directly
attributable to property development projects. Our finance costs
decreased by approximately 85.3% from approximately RMB73.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB10.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Such
decrease was mainly due to the increase in interest capitalised
into the properties under development for sale for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense mainly comprised of the PRC corporate
income tax expense and land appreciation tax arising from our
PRC subsidiaries. Income tax expenses slightly increased by
approximately 1.0% or RMB2.2 million from approximately
RMB226.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to the
approximately RMB228.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital resources

As of 31 December 2020, the cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB554.5 million (31 December
2019: RMB245.2 million), of which approximately RMB553.7
million (31 December 2019: RMB242.6 million) was denominated
in Renminbi and approximately RMB0.8 million (31 December
2019: RMB2.5 million) was denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

As at 31 December 2020, the restricted cash amounted to
approximately RMB119.0 million (31 December 2019: RMB115.7
million), all restricted cash was denominated in Renminbi.

EEERWED T

PR A — R

MR AEZRIEOEIOF S (i)
chBEEZReHFE  R(IVEEAEF
ERAY MBREEREHNFERAZ - #
DEBRAEESRYERTEEHEBA
PR o 2 M9 &9 BF 7% B AN B &L £20194F12 A
JIBEFEMNHAREIZIOEE LH D
4785.3% = # £ 2020F12 318 I FEH
HARBI0B B T - ZRALTEER
R R P Y E R E 22020512 531
HIEFE /& AR F) B80Tk -

Fri8 BB

AT EREPENBLAREE
MPBECEMSHRAY R T EER -
Fri8fi B E £2019F12A318 I+ F
EWHARB226.6E & T EMIEMNLD
1.0% 3 A R#E2 28 BT E#H =2020F 12
AB1EIEFEMNHNARK2288FE T °

RBES  MBEERRELFER

H E2020F12A31H Be R &S B
Y4 B N R#55455 & Jt (2019612 A
31H AR®2452887T) EFHAR
#553.78 & L (2019F12 8318 : A R ¥
242 6B ETL) UARKEE HARKO.S
AE L (2019F12A31B: AR B25EH &
JC) A JTTETE ©

MR2020F12A31H  XBRHIIR DA/ A
R #119.08 & 7T (201912 A31H: A R
15788 7T) FIEXRHIRESEIAA
R¥5HE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

The Group’s total borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB552.0 million as of 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,066.1 million), of which approximately RMB310.6 million
was classified as current liabilities (31 December 2019:
RMB633.8 million). Approximately 51.7% (31 December 2019:
42.0%) out of the Group’s total borrowings was fixed interest
rates.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable as follows:

As at 31 December 2020

B E2020F12A318  AEE N EF 4
HH A AN RESS208 8 T (2019412A
3R AR#106615EE L) HFEH A
R¥310.6B8 B TH D EARBAE (2019
F12A31H: AR¥6338F&E L) A&
B (& AAZEF 4)51.7% (2019412 A318 :
42.0%) B E FEFI K o

720204 M 201912 A318 @ &~ %= & &
R T 5B M8 & -

As at 31 December 2019

12020%12A31H 120194128318
Between Between Within Between Between
Within1year 1to2years 2to5years 1 year 110 2 years 210 5 years
15/ 122 2Z5% 1R 1226 2Z5F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AEEFT  AREFT
Bank borrowings RITIRH 110,000 - 29,000 291,000 - -
Other long-term borrowings ~ E AR5 136,000 90,377 122,000 342,752 171,128 261,220
Other current borrowings EtRBER 64,640 = S - - -
310,640 90,377 151,000 633,752 171,128 261,220

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited

BEEE (ER) ERAR



Management Discussion and Analysis

Current, total and net assets

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB8,183.7 million (31 December 2019:
RMB6,266.8 million) and current liabilities of approximately
RMB6,702.1 million (31 December 2019: RMB4,831.2 million),
there was no material change on net current assets value from
approximately RMB1,435.6 million as at 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB1,481.6 million as at 31 December 2020.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB8,508.6 million (31 December 2019:
RMB6,526.4 million) and total liabilities of approximately
RMB6,978.5 million (31 December 2019: RMB5,292.9 million),
representing an increase of net assets or total equity from
approximately RMB1,233.5 million as at 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB1,530.1 million as at 31 December 2020.

Charge on assets

The Group’s borrowings are secured by properties held or under
development for sale and property, plant and equipment of the
Group.

Contingent liabilities

(@ The Group has provided guarantees to secure obligations
of certain purchasers of the Group’s properties for
repayments. Such guarantees will terminate upon the
earlier of (i) the issuance and transfer of the real estate
ownership certificate, or (ii) the satisfaction of mortgage
loans by the purchasers of the properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default of
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principal
together with accrued interest owed by the defaulting
purchasers to the banks and the Group is entitled to take
over the legal title and possession of the related
properties after the relevant legal procedures. The
Group’s guarantee period starts from the date of grant of
mortgage. The Directors consider that the likelihood of
default of payments by the purchasers is minimal and
therefore the financial guarantee measured at fair value is
immaterial.

EEERWED T

H 220206128310 "NE B # AR T
EEHANRES183.76 & 7t (2019F128
31H: AR%6,266.88 &) M REBEE
HARY6,70218 BT (2019124318 :
ARMEA48312BE L) MBEEFER
2019F 12 A31H M 4y A R #1,435.68 &
T E2020F12 ATHM YA RE1,481.6
BB WEEXEEF -

B Z2020F12A31H AEBHERE
E#HARES,508.68 &t (2019412 A31
H:AR¥e652648 8 L)NBABAHAA
R ¥6,978.58 & L (2019128318 : A
R¥5200B8 L) FEELBELEMA
2019F12 A31E M 49 A R #1,233.5H &
g # 0 E2020F12A31BE M A R ¥
1,5301B &L °

BEEEN

AEENERAANKEENFFELELR
BHRHGEVEURDE  BERREE
A -

HREE

@ AKEEAAKEEVERRNE
RHNERBETRMBER ZFE
FERONBLERBEFMEREB
EE HMWEERENEBER
(ARBERE)FKLE

RBERGR EZFERERXR
EBEFRKE AKEERAEAR
TEERVNEFRERNEZEAS
BREEFNE - MAKERERE
FREFRABREERBMEN
BEARENFARE AKEMNE
FRHPERLRBERENK B
ER R ERIE RN KA A BE M &
B At BAFEFENHH
FERELTEK -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

In line with our diversified land acquisition strategies, a
subsidiary of the Group obtained the 20% equity interest
of a project company (the “Associate Company”) which
hold a parcel of land for development through a bidding
process, and remaining 80% equity interests are held by
an independent third party (the “Major Shareholder”).
Based on the investment agreement entered into by the
Associate Company, the subsidiary of the Group and the
Major Shareholder, the Associate Company has to repay
the shareholder loans provided by the Major Shareholder
within a specified timeframe after commencement of
presale activities. If the Associate Company fails to return
such shareholder loan on time, the subsidiary of the
Group is required to provide funding to the Associate
Company for the repayment of the shareholder loans. As
at 31 December 2020, such shareholder loans of this
Associate Company are approximately of RMB218 million.

In addition, pursuant to the investment agreement,
the subsidiary of the Group also has to compensate
for all losses of the Major Shareholder if the property
project is delayed under certain conditions or that
the repayment of shareholder loan is delayed beyond
certain period stipulated in the investment agreement.
As at 31 December 2020, management of the Group
considers the risk of providing funding for repayment of
shareholder loans or any compensation loss is low as
no material delay of the development of such property
project occurred.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

B3P H % el 1 b U BE SRBE —
B AEE-—FHKNB ARG —
MEBRAR(HEATINEEBL
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Key financial ratios:

EEERWED T

EREMHHER:

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Profitability ratios EF L=
Return on assets BEDOHRE 3.8% 5.0%
Return on equity HE 75 [O] 3 K 20.5% 26.1%
Net profit margin 43 F) & 11.7% 14.7%
As of 31 December
MW12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
Liquidity ratio b5l Rl o S
Current ratio 7t Eh b & 1.2 1.3
Capital adequacy ratios EXFRLLE
Gearing ratio (note 1) BRI XA Z1) 36.1% 86.4%
Debt to equity ratio (note 2) BBt E(Hit2) N/A 66.6%
EA
Note 1: Gearing ratio is our total debts, including bank borrowings, B EREEABRMONEBLREEE

Note 2:

other long-term borrowings and other current borrowings,
as a percentage of total equity.

Debt to equity ratio is our total debts, minus cash and cash
equivalents, as a percentage of total equity.

RITER - EREERIA R E A
MBEFOEEEZNADL -

itz BEBEDLLEBRMANESEER
ReERBSEEWERERNED
40
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

KEY RISK FACTORS

All of our projects are located in Henan Province, the PRC. Our
business continues to be heavily dependent on the performance
of the property markets in Xuchang City and Henan Province.
These property markets may be affected by local, regional,
national and global factors, many of which are beyond our
control and could include economic and financial conditions,
speculative activities in local markets, demand for and supply of
properties, availability of alternative investment choices for
property buyers, inflation, government policies, interest rates and
availability of capital. The selling price per sq.m. and gross profit
margins of our properties vary by the type of properties we
developed and sold, and affected by various factors including
the market demand of the properties located, prevailing local
market prices, the cost of properties constructed and sold.

The property market in the cities in which we have operations or
plan to expand our operations has been competitive. Our
existing and potential competitors include both major national
and regional property developers with expansive operations in
the cities or markets in which we operate as well as local
property developers. We compete with them with respect to a
number of factors, including land acquisition, geographic
location, management expertise, financial resources, access to
transportation infrastructure, size of land reserves, product
quality, brand recognition by customers, customer services and
support, pricing and design quality. We may seek to further
enhance our market presence in these cities amid intense
competition.

In addition, our business is also subject to the general social
conditions in the regions where we operate and in the PRC in
general. Any occurrence of force majeure events, natural
disasters or outbreaks of epidemics and pandemics, including
those caused by avian influenza, swine influenza, Middle East
respiratory syndrome coronavirus or COVID-19 in the regions
where we operate or in the PRC in general, which are beyond
our control, depending on their scale, may cause different
degree of damages to the economy, social conditions,
infrastructure and livelihood of the people of the regions we
operate or in China in general.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group has not hedged its cash flow or fair value interest rate
risk.

The Group is principally engaged in the property development
business in the PRC with almost all transactions denominated in
Renminbi. In addition, the majority of the Group’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in Renminbi. Accordingly, the Group is
not exposed to significant foreign currency risk, except for the
bank deposits denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group closely monitors the
foreign exchange exposure and will take actions when
necessary.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or
assets during the year ended 31 December 2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this annual report,
there are no current plans to acquire any material investment or
capital assets other than in the Group’s ordinary business of
property development.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is our total debts, including bank borrowings, other
long-term borrowings and other current borrowings, as a
percentage of total equity. As at 31 December 2020, the gearing
ratio of the Group was approximately 36.1%, representing
decrease of approximately 50.3 percentage points as compared
with approximately 86.4% as at 31 December 2019, which was
mainly due to: (i) receipt of proceeds from pre-sale and delivery
of pre-sold properties; and (i) repayment of outstanding loans
gradually during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amounts of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

Human resource has always been the most valuable resource of
the Group. As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total
workforce of 648 employees (31 December 2019: 483). The
remuneration policy is reviewed by the Board from time to time.
Emoluments of Directors are determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company after considering performance of the
Group, individual performance and comparing with market
conditions. In addition to basic remuneration, the Group also
provides medical insurance, social insurance contribution plans
or other pension schemes, and other benefits in kind to the
employees. The Group adopted five-day week policy applying to
our certain back office staff to execute the philosophy of work-
life balance.

To intensify personnel training and development, the Group
provides a series of employee training programmes, which aims
to accelerate professional growth and identify competences and
talents of diversified teams. High potential staff are preferred and
developed intensively according to the promotion plan towards
the management level. In order to attract and retain suitable
candidates for business development, the Group adopted the
share option scheme as incentive since November 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FORWARD LOOKING

Stepping into 2021, the global economic development is still
facing tremendous pressure amidst the grim outlook of the
COVID-19 pandemic. However, the Chinese economy is gradually
recovering after the COVID-19 outbreak, seeing steady increase
in the performance of the real estate market.

The implementation of the overarching regulatory principles of
“residential properties are for living, not speculation” and
“implementing policies according to urban conditions” extends
into 2021. Due to the influence of factors such as the overall
tightening credit environment in the industry and the large scale
urban redevelopment project, there will be less irrational demand
in the market. Three red guidelines have been promulgated by
the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development and the
People’s Bank of China. These red guidelines are beneficial to
the healthy, mid to long term development of the property
market. Despite the continued tightening of financing and
stringent leverage regulations on the supply side of the property
market, the funds for normal property acquisition by citizens is
still safeguarded, as policies ensure that housing needs will
remain stable.

2021 is the first year in the 14th five year plan of China. Henan
Province, with a population of over 100 million and low
urbanization rate, is now leveraging on the advantages brought
about by the new developmental layout proposed by the
government, and the developmental opportunities arising due to
the Rise of Central China (& UE ) initiative. There is a large
demand for the real estate industry in Henan, which will create
more space and opportunities for development for enterprises
therein. The speeded up Integration of Zhengzhou and Xuchang
(B 3 — % 1t ) will create advantages for Xuchang City’s
development, and as a local brand, we will firmly grasp the
market opportunities and policy advantages to steady our
corporate culture and contribute to the development of the city.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In 2021, the Group will continue to precisely explore Xuchang
based on our principle of brand building, to steadily increase and
enhance our market share in Xuchang and other cities,
respectively. We will supplement land reserves in Xuchang City
in an orderly manner, extensively explore newly introduced
regions, and steadily carry out our new project expansion plan.

By continuing to adhere to the principle of “Integrity
Management, Fulfilling Every Promise”, the Group gains a
foothold in the market with our products and services, and
strives towards our development goals of targeting extensive
exploration and the pursue of excellent and effective operation.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERGREBAEBZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Xiaobing, aged 43, is the executive Director and
Chairman of the Company and was appointed as a Director
on 22 July 2016. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Li joined the Group in October 2004 as the
manager of the purchasing department (¥ i 28 42 ¥2) of Xuchang
Hengda and has since then served a number of managerial and
directorship positions of various members of the Group. Mr.
Li has extensive experience in strategic planning, operational
management and corporate administration of property
development business in the PRC. He is also a director of Ever
Commitment (PTC) Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

In December 2006, Mr. Li obtained an Executive Master of
Business Administration from Huazhong University of Science
and Technology (ZE# £ KE) in Wuhan. On May 14, 2020,
Mr. Li was elected as the standing member of the Seventh
Xuchang Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr. WANG Zhenfeng, aged 52, is the executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company and was appointed as
a Director on 19 May 2017. He is also a member of the Legal
Compliance Committee. Mr. Z.F. Wang joined the Group in May
2002 and has been the general manager (424 31%2) of Xuchang
Hengda since November 2006, the director of Xuchang Hengda
since October 2007, the director of Henan Dadi since August
2012 and chief executive officer (#2 %) of Xuchang Hengda
since February 2013. Mr. Z.F. Wang has extensive experiences in
strategic planning, operational and financial management as well
as corporate administration of property development businesses
in the PRC.
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EERGEREBAEBZEE

Mr. Z.F. Wang obtained an undergraduate degree in industrial
economics (LZE#& %) from Henan University of Finance and
Economics* (/] g Bf & BR 7% K 2) (the predecessor of Henan
Institute of Finance* (Al B8 B4 &£ £ F1)) in June 1992. He then
attained the qualification of accountant in the speciality of
enterprise accounting (& % € &) as conferred by the Ministry
of Finance of the PRC* (FF % A R 1B 8 Bt &) in May 1996,
and also obtained the qualification lawyer certificate (£ i & #&
#& &) from the Review Committee of Lawyer Qualification under
the Ministry of Justice of the PRC* (R A R 2L F1E 7 74 2B 2 A
ERBFEBEZED) in July 2001. He has become a non-practising
member (3EELE € 8) of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (# B 5 it & 5+ BT 1 &) since June 2012.

Ms. QI Chunfeng, aged 48, is the executive Director and
deputy chief executive officer of the Company and was
appointed as a Director on 19 May 2017. In November 1993, Ms.
Qi joined the finance department (8/7%%F) of Xuchang Weidu
Guesthouse Company Limited* (which was a subsidiary of Henan
Dadi prior to disposal of the entire equity interests therein to
Hengda Investment in September 2016) and has been a director
as well as deputy chief executive officer (2]42%.) of Xuchang
Hengda since January 2002 and March 2010 respectively. Ms.
Qi has extensive experiences in financial supervision, operational
management as well as corporate administration of property
development businesses in the PRC.

Ms. Qi completed her tertiary studies in the speciality of

computing accountancy (&€ 5 ® &1t) at Xuchang Vocational
Technical College (7F & Bk 2 #2172 f7) in January 2007.

*

English name for identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERGREBAEBZEE

Mr. WANG Quan, aged 47, is the executive Director and deputy
chief executive officer of the Company and was appointed as a
Director on 19 May 2017. Mr. Q. Wang joined Xuchang Hengda
in March 2002 and has since been a deputy chief executive
officer (&l 4 %) of Xuchang Hengda since April 2005, as well as
a director and general manager (# 4 2) of Henan Dadi since
August 2012 and February 2016 respectively. Mr. Q. Wang has
extensive experiences in operational management and corporate
administration.

Mr. Q. Wang completed his tertiary studies in the speciality
of production mechanics craftsmanship and equipments (#
B3 T # Iy 8 %) at the Technical College of Northern China*
(FJL T EF) in July 1996. He then attained in May 2001 the
professional and technical qualification of assistant engineer (B
BT F2AT) in the speciality of mechanics (H&#) as evaluated
by the Elementary Professional and Technical Role Assessment
Committee of State-owned 9676 Factory (Engineering Series)*
(BENANREABRIBERNTVBAEXEEMBEFZE) and
conferred by the Commission of Science, Technology and
Industry for National Defence of Henan Province* (] & & &[5
RERMI¥ZE9) Moreover, Mr. Q. Wang also obtained
the intermediate level of economics (4 %) in the speciality of
business administration (T & #2) as conferred by the Ministry
of Personnel of the PRC* (1 # A & £ F1 Bl A% ) in November
2001, as well as the intermediate level of finance (% &) and the
intermediate level of fiscal taxation (81 # % Uk) as conferred by
the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the
PRC* (FEIA N ERMILEIRERL) respectively in May 2015
and April 2016. Furthermore, Mr. Q. Wang undertook a number
of qualification examinations for securities practitioners (& % ¢
¥ ABE&®KEH) and was granted passing certificates (BXE &
1 #&) by the Securities Association of China (B & F ¥ 15 &).
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English name for identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LEE Kwok Lun, aged 37, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 22 October 2018.
He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee, and a member
of each of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Legal Compliance Committee. Mr. Lee is
currently an independent non-executive Director of Dragon Rise
Group Holdings Limited (BEFEBEIZRBR A F]), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 6829) and Wing Chi
Holdings Limited (4 %515 I B BR A 7]), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 6080), the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Summi (Group) Holdings Limited
(HREEB)ZBRBRAR]) (formerly known as Tianyi (Summi)
Holdings Limited (K& (#R 3% ) Z B R 2 F])), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 756) and a director of
Prism CPA Limited (f8/Z & s EHFTAR A F]). Mr. Lee has
over 14 years of experience in accounting, audit, corporate
finance and financial management. Mr. Lee has been appointed
as the company secretary of Solis Holdings Limited (57 % % i &
R A 7A]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
2227), with effect from 23 December 2019.

Mr. Lee obtained a degree of Bachelor of Arts from the
University of Hertfordshire in 2006. He is a practising member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
an associate member of The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERGREBAEBZEE

Mr. WEI Jian, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 22 October 2018. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Wei is currently the Deputy CEO of the China
Minsheng Financial Holding Corporation Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 245). He had also
served as a banking officer and a foreign exchange and money
market trader of treasury department of the Bank of China
Sydney Branch, a foreign exchange hedge trader and the risk
manager of CMC Markets Asia Pacific Pty Ltd., the senior risk
manager as well as associate director of City Index Australia Pty
Ltd. and the vice president of the treasury department (& 7 &8
Bl 42 %) and an executive officer (£%& A &) of China Minsheng
Banking Corporation Limited, Hong Kong branch (1 B & 4 R 17
f% 5 B R AR E B D 1T). Mr. Wei has over 11 years of experience
in asset management, business development, financial market
operations, corporate advisory and securities dealing.

Mr. Wei obtained from the Royal Melbourne Institute of
Technology an Advanced Diploma of Business (Marketing) in
October 1999 and a degree of Bachelor of Business (Economics
and Finance) in December 2000, and subsequently the
Postgraduate Diploma in Finance and the Master of Financial
Management from The University of Melbourne in August 2002
and in December 2002 respectively.
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EERGEREBAEBZEE

Mr. FANG Cheng, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 22 October 2018. He
is also the chairman of each of the Remuneration Committee
and the Legal Compliance Committee, and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Fang
is currently the responsible officer of GBA Locee Capital Limited
(£ BEABRAR]) (formerly known as Syner Wealth Capital
Limited (E /D& A A BR A 7)) on regulated activity of advising on
corporate finance covered under type 6 licence granted by the
SFC. He had served for a number of financial institutions such
as South China Capital Limited (B ZE gt & AR A7), Lombard
Capital Limited (Bi& & EELE AR A "]), Masterlink Securities
(Hong Kong) Corporation Limited (JT & &% (F#) AR Q7))
CNCB (Hong Kong) Capital Limited ({2 R (F#) E KB R QD
7)), Freeman Corporate Finance Limited (R B ¥ EBR D
A]), Hong Kong International Capital Management Limited (& /&
REREIE B AA]), Huarong International Capital Limited
(EREFEREAR2QR) and Huarong International Securities
Limited (EBBBRESBRAR]). Mr. Fang has over 16 years
of experience in investment banking and corporate financing
activities.

Mr. Fang obtained a bachelor’s degree in transportation
engineering and management (2 i@ T 12 81 & 12 £) from Feng Chia
University (& X £) in Taiwan in June 1992 and subsequently a
degree of Master of Business Administration from the Cleveland
State University in the United States in September 1995.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Shixun, aged 49, has been the managing deputy
chief executive officer of our Company since 25 May 2017.
He is primarily responsible for the overall administrative and
operational management of our Group. He possesses over ten
years of experience in the administration and enterprise planning
of property development businesses.

Mr. S.X. Li completed, on part-time basis, his tertiary studies in
the speciality of fine arts at Henan Radio & Television University*
(] 7 & & B AR K 2) in July 2005.

Mr. S.X. Li joined our Group in November 1999 as the external
business manager of the operations department (48 4 & & o) %
5 #&18) of Xuchang Hengda, and from March 2000 to February
2001 he served as the deputy manager of the enterprise
planning department (1t % & & & & ) of Xuchang Hengda
before being promoted to become the manager of the said
department in February 2001. After serving the enterprise
planning department for more than four years, he was appointed
in August 2004 as the manager of the human resources
department (A 11 & R Z0 4L 1) of Xuchang Hengda. In April 2005,
he joined the Jian’an District branch office (% &% A #]) of
Xuchang Hengda as the deputy general manager (&l 42 4¢38),
and was subsequently appointed in November 2006 to serve as
the sales director (‘& §§ 48 B5) of Xuchang Hengda for more than
three years. From November 2009 to February 2010, from March
2010 to December 2010 and from August 2016 to May 2019, he
also served as the deputy general manager (% 75 &8l 42 £ 32) of
Xuchang Hengda, the deputy chief executive officer (8] 42 %L) of
Xuchang Hengda and the executive director and manager (¥
TEE N &KI2) of Yuzhou Hengda, respectively. Mr. S.X. Li has
been the managing deputy chief executive officer (% 7% &2l 42 )
of Xuchang Hengda since January 2011.

*

English name for identification purpose only
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Mr. LEUNG Kam Fai Anthony, aged 36, has been the chief
financial officer and company secretary of our Company since
December 2016. He is primarily responsible for accounting,
financial as well as company secretarial matters of our Group.
He has extensive experience in handling transactional, annual
auditing and review engagements for public companies.

Mr. Leung obtained a degree of Bachelor of Commerce in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Baptist University in November
2008. Mr. Leung has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since March 2013 and he has
become a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since September 2018.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure
in submitting herewith their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Review of the business of the Group during the year
under review, a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing are provided in the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 9 and the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 30 of
this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended
31 December 2020 using financial performance indicators is
provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 10 to 30 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are property development and
property investment in the PRC.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group seeks to uphold high standard of integrity in all
aspects of business and is committed to ensuring that its affairs
are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and regulatory
requirements and has formulated and adopted various internal
control measures, approval procedures and training within all
business units at all levels of the Group. During the year, there
has been no violation or breach of relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on the Group.
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RESULTS AND RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in
the financial statements of the Group on pages 125 to 274.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK6.0 cents per ordinary share (equivalent to approximately
RMB5.0 cents per ordinary share) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL

No share had been issued by the Company during the year and
details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Group’s and the Company’s
reserves during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, notes 14 to 16 and in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity owners of the Company was
approximately RMB63,471,000. After the end of the reporting
period, the Directors proposed a final dividend of HK6.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB5.0 cents) per ordinary share,
amounting to HK$72,000,000 equivalent to approximately
RMB60,000,000). This final dividend has not been recognised as
a liability at the end of the reporting period.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the
Group are shown on pages 277 to 282 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to our shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
shares.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 275 to
276 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this Directors’
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiaobing (Chairman)

Mr. WANG Zhenfeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. QI Chunfeng

Mr. WANG Quan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WEI Jian
Mr. FANG Cheng
Mr. LEE Kwok Lun

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, Mr. LI
Xiaobing, Ms. QI Chunfeng and Mr. LEE Kwok Lun will retire from
the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 31 to 38.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years; and is
subject to termination by either party in the manner as set out in
the service agreement.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years; and is subject to termination by either party in the manner
as set out in the letter of appointment.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this
Directors’ report and in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, none of the Directors, the entity connected with
the Directors, controlling shareholders and any subsidiaries of
the controlling shareholders of the Company had a material
beneficial interest, either direct or indirect, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or its
parent company or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management is
determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities and
performance and the Group’s results.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BENFETHRAEREARATR
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN AR BB EEA IR - HEER D
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND LEREIZTHEENEZRAXR

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND/OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, being the end of the reporting period R2020F12 8318 + BB Bk & B R A -
under review, the interests or short positions in the shares, KAREERTEBITHRABERARRR,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and/or its S HEMBEBEB(ETERBILARBEGKA
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the EXVED B R D - HEARGOIEEZEF
SFO) that Directors and chief executive of the Company as BERBEEAFRBPEKRGEB2KFE
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 e s KRBEIFLEFRI AU
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock = iR W = NI DS Rl il o - e
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, are as follows: KA RFIBAT

Interests in shares of the Company

WA B B 60 # 2

Number and class of Approximate percentage

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest securities (Note 1) of shareholding

EEEH 5/ EnME &5 HEA R E R we REHBNEDIL

Mr. LI Xiaobing Settlor of a discretionary trust 855,000,000 71.25%
ordinary shares (L) Mot 2

Fihkks PRERMETEA 855,000,000

ERBRBHQ) 02

Interest of a controlled corporation 45,000,000 3.75%
ordinary shares (L) Mot 9
XEEE#ER 45,000,0008%

LARBBAL) 29

4 4 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA



Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes to the person with long position in the
shares.

2. These shares were legally and beneficially held by Ever
Enhancement Enterprise Company Limited as at 31 December
2020. Ever Enhancement Enterprise Company Limited is a
corporate controlling shareholder which is legally and beneficially
wholly-owned by Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited. Ever
Commitment (PTC) Limited is the trustee of the family trust,
established by Mr. LI Xiaobing as the sole settlor for the benefit of
a list of discretionary beneficiaries including Mr. LI Xiaobing himself
and any persons or classes of person (save for Mr. LI Xiaobing’s
father and mother) to be appointed by and at the sole discretion
of Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited (as trustee) from time to time.
Given that Mr. LI Xiaobing is the sole settlor of the family trust, he
is therefore deemed to be interested in any shares in which Ever
Enhancement Enterprise Company Limited is interested by virtue of
the SFO.

3. As at 31 December 2020, these shares were legally and beneficially
held by Ever Enrichment Enterprise Company Limited of which
the entire issued share capital was, in turn, legally and beneficially
held by Mr. LI Xiaobing. Mr. LI Xiaobing is therefore deemed to
be interested in any shares in which Ever Enrichment Enterprise
Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and/or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, shareholders (other than Directors
or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRRADFNR DR AEBER
DHRERNERS

R2020F12A31H * RE(E E= A Q7]
EF BT A BBRIN RARD R &R D 8k 48
B TPEEREZESRBEKREXV
HFE2RID MR EAMARAEE 3%
BIEESR P EKI FEBKRATEE
mELMAESENERIARE  FH0
T

Number and class of Approximate percentage

Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of interest securities (Note 1) of shareholding

BREAR 5/ EnHE &5 HEA R E R we REHBNEDIL

Ever Enhancement Enterprise Beneficial owner 855,000,000 71.25%
Company Limited ordinary shares (L)
BACERERAA ERBRA 855,000,000
@M RM L)

Ever Commitment Interest of a controlled corporation 855,000,000 71.25%
(PTC) Limited Mere2 ordinary shares (L)
BHILAGTEERRR WL RELEER 855,000,000
ERERABRH L)

Ms. LIN Wej ete 3 Interest of spouse 900,000,000 75.00%
ordinary shares (L)
Mg &+ a2 BB & 900,000,0008%

ERRKAOL
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Notes:

1. The letter “I” denotes to the person/entity with long position in the
shares.

2. As of 31 December 2020, Ever Enhancement Enterprise Company
Limited was one of the controlling shareholders and was wholly-
owned by Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited. Ever Commitment (PTC)
Limited is deemed to be interested in any shares in which Ever
Enhancement Enterprise Company Limited is interested pursuant
to the SFO. Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited is the trustee of the
family trust established by Mr. LI Xiaobing as the sole settlor for
the benefit of a list of discretionary beneficiaries including Mr. LI
Xiaobing himself and any other person or classes of person (save
for Mr. LI Xiaobing’s father and mother) to be appointed by and at
the sole discretion of Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited (as trustee)
from time to time.

3. Ms. LIN Wei is the spouse of Mr. LI Xiaobing. Given that Mr. LI
Xiaobing is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Ever
Enhancement Enterprise Company Limited and Ever Enrichment
Enterprise Company Limited by virtue of the SFO, she will likewise
be deemed to be interested in any shares held by both Ever
Enhancement Enterprise Company Limited and Ever Enrichment
Enterprise Company Limited by virtue of the SFO.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group remunerates and provides benefits for its employees
based on current industry practice. Discretionary bonuses are
awarded to staff based on the performance of the Group and
performance of individual staff. In addition, share options may
be granted to eligible employees in accordance with the terms of
the Company’s share option scheme.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC,
and a mandatory provident fund scheme for the employees in
Hong Kong.

The PRC operating entities participate in retirement schemes
organised by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities, whereby the PRC operating entities are required to
make contribution at defined rates required by different local
government authorities. The local government authorities are
responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees covered under the retirement schemes.
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The Group also operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the mandatory provident fund
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HKD30,000.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 22 October 2018, which shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from 12 November 2018,
subject to early termination by the Company in a general meeting
or by the Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to provide incentives to Eligible Person (as defined below) and
is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Person have had or may have made to the Group.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant
an option to any employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors) of the Group and any advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers, agents to the Group and related entities who, in the
sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to
the Group (collectively the “Eligible Person”).

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
shares available for issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue immediately following completion of the IPO
(but taking no account of any shares which may be allotted or
issued pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment option (as
defined in the prospectus)), being 120,000,000 shares. The total
number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme to each Eligible Person in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue as at the date
of grant unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.
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The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board provided that it shall not be less than
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (i) the nominal value of a share.

To accept the option, the grantee shall pay HK$0.01 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant within 30
days from the date of grant. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time after the date upon which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from
that date. The period during which an option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save
that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it
has been granted. The Board may in its absolute discretion
determine a minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.

No option was granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme during the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020. No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this Directors’ report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
120,000,000 shares representing approximately 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as elsewhere disclosed in this annual report, no rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company were granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:
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Percentage of the Group’s total
HAREBUTERAEZES L

Sales Purchases
tHE 123
The largest customer SN S 1.4%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREP & 2.9%
The largest supplier &AM ER 20.5%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AARBEEEE 33.5%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and its
five largest customers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following connected transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2020. Details of the
transactions are set out below:

Connected transaction in relation to the sale of property units
in the PRC

(i)

On 28 May 2020, Xuchang Hengda, indirect wholly-owned
Subsidiary of the Company, entered into the respective
property sale and purchase agreements with Ms. LIN Wei,
the spouse of Mr. LI Xiaobing, the executive Director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which
Xuchang Hengda agreed to sell, and Ms. LIN Wei agreed
to purchase, the respective property units (being certain
units located at Jinhui Plaza) at a total consideration of
approximately RMB6,901,686. For further details please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28 May
2020.

Mr. LI Xiaobing is an executive Director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company and Ms. LIN Wei is the spouse
of Mr. LI Xiaobing. Therefore she is an associate of Mr. LI
Xiaobing and a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A the Listing Rules.

Accordingly, the sales of the property units constitute
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Since certain applicable percentage ratios for the
sales of the respective property units to Ms. LIN Wei,
when aggregated with Ms. LIN Wei’s previous transaction
(as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 October 2019, Ms. LIN Wei purchased eight
commercial units from the Group for a total consideration of
RMB17,257,657) are above 0.1% but less than 5%, the sales
of the respective property units to Ms. LIN Wei are only
subject to reporting and announcement requirements and
are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Report

EEEWE

RERXS

H E2020F12A31BIEFE > A& B P
AVUTHEERS - RSFBUOT:

BRETE S EYFEENLHERS

M2020F5H28H  FE B EEARQ
AMEEE2ENBAR) BB Lt
(RRRHITEBRITRBRE T /K
EEMEBI Y THEESHE
Bl rEEEREHEAMEB XL
TEEBEWEEUEIMUREIERE
BHETEMN  BRENBARE
6,001,6867C - B — L F1F ' &
2R AR A HH A2020F5 8288 HY)

A -

FNKEERARBDATESRTR
ZIR - MR L T R F kK
ERES - At RBELEWAAE
THOAE  MBEIX L AT NIKEE
MR AARARNRRIBEEAL -

At HEMESBMBRKARQRE
ITWHANEBTHBEERS - ARE
Mg Z T %R R 5 (A2 E A E
A2019F10A108 M A 4 FT 4 & -
Mg 2 £ LA A R #17,257,6577T 1Y
BRRERASEEBATNEAEES
MEHHTER OMMBZLHE
MEBMNETERESLXBB
0.1% 18 1K 75% @ 1R & L 1 #8 8
14A.76(2) & - M MG 2 £ H & F
VHEBMNEBBETERERAENR
T WERRETE TR ELED
RIE o

2020 Annual Report
—B-BEER

51



952

Directors’ Report

EEEWRE

On 30 December 2020, Xuchang Hengda, indirect wholly-
owned Subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
respective property sale and purchase agreements with (i)
Mr. LIN Junwei, the brother-in-law of Mr. LI Xiaobing, and (ii)
Ms. LIN Sai E, the mother-in-law of Mr. LI Xiaobing, pursuant
to which Xuchang Hengda agreed to sell, Mr. LIN Junwei
and Ms. LIN Sai E agreed to purchase, the respective
property units (being certain units located at Napa Xidi) at
a total consideration of approximately RMB5,416,541. For
further details please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 December 2020.

Mr. LI Xiaobing is an executive Director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company, Mr. LIN Junwei is the brother-
in-law of Mr. LI Xiaobing while Ms. LIN Sai E is the mother-
in-law of Mr. LI Xiaobing. Therefore, they are associates of
Mr. LI Xiaobing and connected persons of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As Ms. LIN Wei, the spouse of Mr. LI Xiaobing, is also an
associate of Mr. LI Xiaobing and Ms. LIN Wei's previous
transactions (as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 28 May 2020, Ms. LIN Wei purchased two
commercial units from the Group for a total consideration
of RMB6,901,686) were entered into within 12 months prior
to the transactions, pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing
Rules, the sales of the respective property units by the
Xuchang Hengda to the Mr. LIN Junwei and Ms. LIN Sai E
pursuant to sale and purchase agreements are required to
be aggregated with Ms. LIN Wei’s previous transactions.

Accordingly, the sales of the property units constitute
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Since certain applicable percentage ratios for the
sales of the respective property units to Mr. LIN Junwei and
Ms. LIN Sai E, when aggregated with Ms. LIN Wei’s previous
transaction are above 0.1% but less than 5%, the sales of
the respective property units to Mr. LIN Junwei and Ms.
LIN Sai E are only subject to reporting and announcement
requirements and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.76(2) of
the Listing Rules.
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As at the date of this report, all consideration has been fully
settled and all respective property units have been delivered.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Property management services

On 10 October 2018, Hengda Property Management and our
Group entered into a master property management service
agreement (“Master Property Management Service
Agreement”) for a term commencing from the 12 November
2018 and ending on 31 December 2020, pursuant to which
Hengda Property Management shall continue to provide, among
other aspects, security and cleaning services for (i) sales centres
of property development projects (of which the demand varies
depending on the status of completion/sale of such projects
over time) as well as (i) self-used premises (of which the demand
remains more or less constant) of our Group. The service fees
payable by us to Hengda Property Management were mutually
agreed following the arm’s-length negotiations between the
relevant parties with reference to the prevailing market price of
the similar services of a comparable scale in the PRC. Payment
for a particular calendar month has been made to Hengda
Property Management by way of bank transfer on 15th day of
the same month.
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To streamline the management of future connected transactions
in respect of the provision of property management and related
services by the Hengda Property Management to our Group
and taking into account the expected increase of the scope
of property management and related services which may be
required from the Hengda Property Management, the Company
decided to restructure the Master Property Management Service
Agreement. On 30 June 2020, the Company and Hengda
Property Management entered into a revised master property
management service agreement (“Revised Master Property
Management Service Agreement”) for a term from 1 July
2020 to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive), pursuant to
which the Hengda Property Management agreed to provide
a variety of property management and related services to our
Group, which shall cover, among other things, all the services
contemplated under the Master Property Management Service
Agreement. Upon the Revised Master Property Management
Service Agreement taking effect, the Master Property
Management Service Agreement shall be terminated and
superseded in its entirety.

For further details please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 June 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees charged by
Hengda Property Management for the provision of the services
under the Master Property Management Service Agreement and
the Revised Master Property Management Service Agreement
amounted to approximately RMB10,313,000, which was within
the revised annual cap of RMB14,338,000 for the same period.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

AMEREEMEETERAEEIRED
¥EBRAEREAEEEISINER -
WERBHNEHEEYWEERENETENTE
HEMMEEBEREERSEE A2
AARATEHRBENEEERBLIHZE -
MR2020F6A30H - AAAIEHEEYEE
B UKEBIIMEETEREEHE (K
BTMEEERELHZED BRMA
2020 7A1H #£ 2022412 A318 1L (B
REEMA) Bt BEEVEEERE
MAEFERZETNRDEESE LITH
R #ERS(HTPBRBEBREDEE
BRGAHEETNRREROMERE -
KIETMETERBERE —KCEB
REVMEEERBEAH RS SRIEBR

TEEE -

FRE—FHFE BLEARFTBEHA
20206 H30HMI A& -

B E2020F12A3B It FE - BEYE
EERMEETERBAEDBERLEETY
XEERERHZETRERBKER 2
HIE#H A AN R ¥10,313,0007T © B A F
BB T F 8 LR A K #14,338,0007T
FEE A -



The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors and they
confirmed that the aforesaid transactions were entered into (i) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, (i) on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties,
and (i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditor of the Company has
provided a letter to the Board, confirming that nothing has come
to their attention which causes them to believe the continuing
connected transactions abovementioned:

()  have not been approved by the Board;

(i) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(i) have exceeded their respective annual caps.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in the normal course of business were set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements. For the year ended
31 December 2020, save for those transactions set out in the
sections headed “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, none of these related party
transactions constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the relevant disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
as of 31 December 2020 are set out in notes 17 to 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
Directors is currently in force.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had any interest in the businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group that were required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Li Xiaobing, Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited,
Ever Enhancement Enterprise Company Limited and Ever
Enrichment Enterprise Company Limited (each a “Non-Compete
Covenantor”) has entered into a deed of non-competition
(the “Deed of Non-competition”) dated 22 October 2018 in
favour of the Company, pursuant to which they have undertaken
with the Company that they shall not, and shall procure that
their respective associates shall not, directly or indirectly, be
interested, involved or engaged in or acquire or hold any right or
interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete
directly or indirectly with the core business of the Group from
time to time.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of the
Non-Compete Covenantors in respect of their compliance with
the Deed of Non-Competition and the connected transaction
agreements during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The independent non-executive Directors also reviewed the
Non-Compete Covenantors’ compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition. The independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the Non-Compete Covenantors were not in breach of the
Deed of Non-Competition during the year ended 31 December

2020.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

A report on the environmental, social and governance is set out
on pages 59 to 93 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 94 to 112 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public from the date of listing up to the date of this annual
report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no material events were
undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31 December 2020.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donation of
approximately RMB6,336,000.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By order of the Board

LI Xiaobing
Chairman and Executive Director

25 March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

PURPOSE AND CRITERIA OF THE REPORT

To comply with the requirements set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules, the Group hereby presents its Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The purpose of the ESG Report is to identify and disclose the
major issues of the Group in relation to the environment, society
and governance as well as its key performance indicators while
illustrating its pursuit of sustainable development and practice of
its social responsibility in every aspect.

SCOPE AND PERIOD OF THE ESG REPORT

This ESG Report covers the information of Ever Reach and its
selected subsidiaries, a total of 10 companies (2019: 8). The
information of 6 subsidiaries were excluded from this ESG
Report, as these were newly established subsidiaries during
the reporting period and they contributed less than 1% of the
Group’s operation income.

The ESG Report discloses the major issues and key performance
indicators of the main key projects in the operations and
real estate development business of the Group in respect of
environmental management, social responsibility and governance
during the year of 2020.

Looking forward, Ever Reach believes that sustainable
development will continue to play an important part in business
operation. In the future, the Group will continue to improve
its data collection and reporting system on environmental
management, social responsibility and governance performance,
and gradually enhance the quality and comprehensiveness of the
ESG Report in the long run.

DATA COLLECTION METHODOLOGY

The data used in the ESG Report comes from the relevant
functional departments of Ever Reach and its selected
subsidiaries.
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RIR - HERERHE

CONCERNS OF THE STAKEHOLDERS R ARBREE

The Group attaches great importance to its social responsibility SEHERTEEERUREZRM B
and sustainability and tries its best to understand the concerns BEEER AMBINGE BRAEBR
of its stakeholders and meet their expectations and requirements EENTRIMEBRERMEEDR AR
through operations and various communication channels, so as SMER - UERHERESRER A

to grow strong together with them and contribute the greatest HEEREANEE -

value to the community.

Stakeholders Concerns Response of the Group
A BENEE EEHEE
Government Operation in The Group adheres to the business philosophy of honesty and
compliance integrity. It has actively fulfilled the obligations of corporate citizens,
Economic growth and promoted the harmonious development of society, so as to
Community become a model for corporate citizenship.

construction

B AREE
1
iR
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We maintain strict compliance with the laws and regulations, paying
taxes honestly, fighting corruption, money laundering and bribery;
we give full play to our strengths in resource integration while
“enacting measures according to local conditions and applying
them on well-chosen targets”; we will further optimize our real
estate development business and strive to establish a strategic
presence in the development of high-end homes and smart
communities.
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Response of the Group
SEEMEE

Customers

Product quality, safety
experience &
customer services

Privacy &
confidentiality

The Group insists on thinking from the perspective of customers,
creating value for customers, and taking a customer-oriented
approach. Using this as a source, we have developed the ideal
housings for different groups of people, and meet the needs of our
customers now and in future through continuous innovation.

We strive to build high-quality houses and smart living environment
in accordance with the strict quality standards for housing
and building materials. We have set up multiple customer
communication and feedback channels to listen to their opinions
and handle inquiries or complaints. We have in place multiple
protection measures for the privacy of customer data, with those
who have direct access to the customer information required to
sign a Customer Data Confidentiality Agreement.
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Stakeholders Concerns Response of the Group
EamA BENEE S ENE E
Investors Investment returns The Group is accountable to all investors and strives to provide
Corporate information them with reasonable, sustained and stable returns on their
transparency investments.

Interests protection

REH A [
NEMEREBEHE
s IRIE

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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We are making great efforts to capture the market trend
while constantly enhancing our management capabilities, our
brand influence and value. We maintain close and transparent
communication with our investors and the market through investor
meetings, shareholders’ meetings and release of annual reports
and interim reports. We have in place a rigorous risk management
and internal control system in cooperation with the internal audit
function, so that the management and audit committee can focus
on the adequacy and effectiveness of our risk management and
internal control system.
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Stakeholders Concerns Response of the Group
3N BN ERE SEEMEE
Employees Health & safety The Group believes that its employees are the most valuable

Career development
Training opportunities

il
H
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assets. We fully respect the rights and interests of our employees,
and provide them with a platform to exert their talents and achieve
their career development, such that our employees can grow
together and share the operating results with the Company.

We strive to create a competitive work environment, a sound
performance appraisal system and a remuneration and welfare
system while constantly improving our training and development
system, so as to help our employees blend into the long-term
development of the Group, spark off their potentials and enhance
their satisfaction and sense of belonging.
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Stakeholders
& A

Concerns

B xR R

Response of the Group

EEHDEE

Suppliers Transparency in
procurement
process

Development
opportunities

Commercial integrity

e REREERE

BREREE

EEEAE

Community Job opportunities

Environment
friendliness &
energy saving

Public welfare
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IMPORTANCE OF THE TOPICS

The Group has conducted an assessment of the importance
of the topics in this ESG Report. The factors for consideration
include the strategic objectives and policies of the businesses
of the Group, industry standards, legal and regulatory
responsibilities, environmental protection,
quality control and employee protection, etc. with the aim of
helping the Group identify important issues. Through such
an assessment and analysis, the Group has identified various

We have in place a well-maintained supplier management system,
which enables a clear division of the supervisory functions and
combines supplier assessment and approval, supplier selection and
performance evaluation to oversee the supply chain management in
all aspects.
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We are committed to the long-term and ambitious development
of our business and creating more job opportunities for the
community. We will try our best to gradually reduce emission and
consumption of energy, reduce greenhouse gas emission and
improve energy efficiency while vigorously practicing our corporate
social responsibility and promoting the development of philanthropy
in the regions where we operate.
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resource utilisation,

major issues and has described the Group’s response to such
important issues in a more complete and accurate way in the

ESG Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
DISCLOSURE

A.

ENVIRONMENT

The Group has been committed to ensuring strict
compliance of its business activities with local laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of People’s Republic of China” and the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes”. It
also imposes stringent requirements on the management
measures for environmental protection and discusses the
reduction goals with its contractors and requires them
to strictly follow the environmental protection principles.
The Group has also formulated a series of environment
protection measures to reduce emissions and energy
consumption, prevent dust and reduce noise, so as to
integrate environmental management into its daily operation
and strive to minimise the impact of its operations on the
environment.

A1 EMISSIONS

Emission reduction is an important issue in the Group’s
environmental protection program, for which it is
making constant efforts to reduce emission in its daily
operations and enhance its energy efficiency. In our
daily operations, we used environment-friendly devices
such as OA office automation system and water-
saving products. Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, we also encouraged our employees to
hold video conferences more frequently and reduce
the number of business trips during the year, in order
to safeguard employees’ well-being and enhance
work efficiency. As a result, the above measures were
effective in reducing emissions of greenhouse gases
and other air pollutants.
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During the year, the Group included in its assessment
the emissions of greenhouse gas and other air
pollutants by its core projects of the real estate
business and collected data by region and development
projects.

A1.1 AIR POLLUTANTS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B HERERERSE

SERAFEARMEXBT
EROBABNAREREREAM
ZERITRMPEA AT - Bt
e R ERERETEERK

£ o
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Percentage
Air pollutants 7 Unit 2019 2020 change
ERITRYED B 20194 20205 < EHALLHR
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) from vehicles Tonne 908.88 375.70 -58.66%
REEHNR AL WNOX U]
Sulfur oxides (SOx) from vehicles Tonne 195.70 36.14 -81.53%
R B E &A1 (SO0x) I
Particulate Matter (PM) from vehicles Tonne 86.69 0.71 -99.18%
R B 8 & AT IR R OF R RL(PM) U]
Total air pollutants emissions ot 2 Tonne 1,191.27 412.55 -65.37%
872 ROR R a2 I
Notes: Bt -

(1)  The statistics for air pollutants emissions in 2019
included 8 subsidiaries, while the statistics for
greenhouse gas emissions in 2020 included 10

subsidiaries.

(2) Committed to reducing air pollutants emissions,
the Group encouraged employees to commute by
public transport, thereby bringing down the total
air pollutants emissions by 65.37% as compared to
the previous year. This year, due to the impact of
the COVID-19 outbreak, the total emissions further

decreased despite the larger reporting scope.
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A1.2 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

To reduce emissions, the Group implemented the
following rules:

Work and construction vehicles should be
driven within their respective speed limits;

Regarding work vehicles: Telephone calls
are prioritized over face-to-face business
meetings. No more than one vehicle will be
leased out for company business conducted
at the same location (or areas nearby) by
different departments. Work vehicles will not
be leased out for business travels under 4
km, and the use of taxis is prohibited;

A repair approval system for car parts is
strictly enforced. Only broken car parts are
eligible for repair;

Fuel oil storage equipment is regularly
reviewed to ensure that it is in good condition.
Fuel refills are duly recorded.
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RIR - HERERHE

Scope of greenhouse Percentage

gas emissions (o9 Unit 2019 2020 change

BERBHKER By 2019 2020F B &

Scope 1 Direct greenhouse gas

emissions (o9
HEIEBEREREHERVY
— Greenhouse gas emissions relating to Tonne 618.48 129.85 -79.00%
mobile combustion sources (land, air,
and water transport)
- nPRERNAEREBHEREL M 19
= RKEE®)
Scope 2 Indirect greenhouse gas
emissions
HE2EERERBHRK
— Purchased electricity Tonne 857.73 2,149.91 +150.65%
- BEED 7
Scope 3 Other indirect greenhouse gas Tonne 3.99 4510 +1,031.73%
emissions 9
HESHMEZERAEREH RV i
— Waste paper disposed in landfills Tonne 3.38 26.90 +696.97%
- BEIMEEANER i
— Greenhouse gas emissions arising from Tonne N/A 17.63 N/A
the use of electricity by government
departments to treat freshwater and
sewage
—BRHFERAENRERKKF KM I ~ER ~ER
HHREREHR
— Business travels by airplane Tonne 0.61 0.58 -5.36%
—EERLRBEIDE 2

Total greenhouse gas emissions Tonne 1,480.19 2,324.86 +57.07%

BREREHER W

Greenhouse gas emission intensity Tonne/ 1.84 3.70 +100.88%

employee

BRERBEE W/

BT

Notes: B &t -

(3) The statistics for greenhouse gas emissions in (3) 20194 B = & B P M B
2019 included 8 subsidiaries, while the statistics & B 58 A A 20204
for greenhouse gas emissions in 2020 included 10 BERBHREIEEE
subsidiaries. 10fAl A F] ©

(4)  Committed to reducing greenhouse gas emissions, 4 EEZAORLEERE
the Group encouraged employees to commute BEBR - 72020 E B 4
by public transport, thereby reducing vehicle TARAEMERE B
usage in 2020. This year, due to the impact of the BEIFAAAXRMIEA
COVID-19 outbreak, the total direct greenhouse T SFRARIE
gas emissions decreased by 79% as compared to 2 FTUAE DB R E R
2019, despite the larger reporting scope. BHEEANZT  #Mm

EEZERERBEMRD
@2 R L2019F BFIR T
79% o

(5)  To gradually enhance the quality and comprehensiveness 6 EBEZLREARENHE
of the ESG Report, the Group urges its staff to ZEk2EYE BRERET
collect environmental data to effectively manage WESERBHE  UE
and formulate environmental protection measures. E ?}l}% fg K#lERER

EH B
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RIE  HERERRE

A1.83 HAZARDOUS WASTE PRODUCED

The Group is committed to reducing waste from
its source and adopting recycling practices. The
Group is also committed to avoid producing
unnecessary waste during the operation of its
real estate development business, through the
adoption of different measures.

AL FTESX B ZEFEEY

SERNEBRBRER
BERBAUBRDEZRY -
HNEEBEHEZRER
SEFHFEBIETEHE
REETVENEY -

Hazardous waste 09 Unit 2020
BEEBEY i B 20204
Hazardous waste kg 5,133.54
BEEEY T

— Cleaning chemicals kg 517.38
— BREER T

— Electrical appliances kg 4,610.00
— BEFRE Fr

— Batteries kg 6.16
— &) Fre

Hazardous waste intensity kg/employee 8.16
EEREYER TR/ BET

Notes: o

(6) To gradually enhance the quality and
comprehensiveness of the ESG Report, the Group
urges its staff to collect environmental data to
effectively manage and formulate environmental
protection measures. In 2019, no such data was
collected by the Group.

6 HEEZTRABENG
EhazmlE BRERET
WEEREHE  UE
BE R RHE R K
& e o & B 122019
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A1.4 NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE PRODUCED

In respect of the construction works, the Group
adopted a variety of environment protection
measures, for example, in the stage of planning
and construction in real estate development,
the Group tried to reduce land excavation and
mountain damage through careful planning
and design. In addition, waste paper collection
bins are placed in our office area, so that our
staff can dispose of waste paper, magazines,
books, newspapers and other paper products for
centralized collection and selling, with the income

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE  HERERRE

AldFTELFEEZEZEY
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offsetting the relevant costs. The total amount of BEE YR B E A R BB A
non-hazardous waste recycled and processed ™
during the year is recorded as follows:
Percentage
Non-hazardous waste 7 Unit 2019 2020 change
BEREYL B 20194 20205 < EHALLHR
Total amount of non-hazardous waste kg 4,817.73 4,429.00 -8.07%
BEREEMES T=
Kitchen waste Mote 8 kg N/A 1,899.00 N/A
B g (Wiz8) Fr i A i A
General office waste kg 4,817.73 2,5630.00 -47.49%
—BBEREED Tr
Non-hazardous waste intensity kg/ N/A 7.04 N/A
employee
BERENEE TR/ i@ R i@ R
FMET
Notes: B i -

(7)  The statistics for non-hazardous waste produced in
2019 included 8 subsidiaries, while the statistics for
non-hazardous waste produced in 2020 included
10 subsidiaries.

(8) To gradually enhance the quality and
comprehensiveness of the ESG Report, the Group
urges its staff to collect environmental data to
effectively manage and formulate environmental
protection measures. No data in relation to
kitchen waste was collected in 2019, whereas 2
subsidiaries provided such data in 2020; therefore,
there was a significant increase in the data.
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The Group will continue to adhere to the policy
of energy conservation and emission reduction,
reduce paper consumption in an appropriate and
proper way and encourage employees to use
electronic equipment to record information or
cut back on unnecessary printing, for we aim to
further reduce general office waste.

A2 USE OF RESOURCES

A2.1 Direct and indirect energy consumption

The Group has formulated the “Administrative
Measures for Energy Conservation and
Consumption Reduction” to encourage its
employees to reduce unnecessary paper
consumption. As required, the use of office
paper is put under strict control, the both sides
of paper are used for printing, and the non-
confidential wastepaper is reused. In terms of
business engagements, the Company mostly uses
telephone communication to reduce the demand
for using vehicles, upholds the mindset of “saving
being a glory, waste being a shame”, and actively
implements the energy conservation strategy of
the Group.

RIR - HERERHE
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In addition, the Group attaches great importance
to cultivating employees’ awareness of energy
conservation and calls on its employees in
various departments to jointly resist the waste
of energy. The Group requires each employee
to switch off computers, lights and other office
equipment at the end of each working day.
When the natural temperature is appropriate,
the air conditioners should not be used. When
the outdoor temperature in summer is higher
than 30°C, the air conditioners can be turned
on. The air conditioners should be set at above
26°C and adjusted to low wind, and the indoor
temperature should be maintained at 25 to 26°C.
In winter, when the outdoor temperature is lower
than 8°C, the air conditioners can be turned on
and set at about 20°C. The room temperature
should be maintained at 18 to 20°C. When the air
conditioners are not in use, they should not be left
in the standby state, and security guards should
be sent to take a patrol after the office hours on a
daily basis to check and confirm that all the lights
and other unnecessary power-consuming devices
on each floor have been switched off. At the
same time, compact fluorescent lamps and safety
lamps should be used. The use of electric stoves,
portable immersion heaters and non-energy saving
appliances with high power consumption is strictly
prohibited.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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During the year, the Group included various
types of energy consumption by its core projects
of the real estate business into the assessment
and collected data by region and development
projects. The data on energy consumption by the

- HERER

HE

SESAFEAFBESR
BEEZOIEB N HEE
TROBFEM A GE G > 8T 50
B MEREBERETHERK
K -SEXAEFELEEER

Group during the year is set forth as follows: HEMEEOT
Percentage
Use of energy Unit 2019 2020 change
BER B 6 A B 2019F 20205  EALLR
Non-renewable fuels (direct) Mo 9 Mwh N/A 472.75 N/A
FTUBERM(E#E)W=2 VY @R TiER
— Petrol Mwh N/A 433.83 N/A
— R K i A i A
— Diesel Mwh N/A 38.92 N/A
— 5 KL A iE A T iE A
Purchased energy (indirect)
BEER(EE)
— Electricity fote 10 Mwh 1,361.47 2,384.59 +75.15%
— B Wwaw K LB
Total energy consumption Mwh 1,361.47 2,857.33 +109.90%
BEERE JK B
Energy consumption intensity Mwh/
employee 2.92 4.54 +55.52%
REREEBERE KEB,/
BT
Notes: B i -
(99 To gradually enhance the quality and 9 EEZHREAREHE

(10)

The

comprehensiveness of the ESG Report, the Group
urges its staff to collect environmental data to
effectively manage and formulate environmental
protection measures. No data in relation to non-
renewable fuels was collected in 2019, whereas 7
subsidiaries provided such data in 2020.

The statistics for purchased energy (indirect) in
2019 included 8 subsidiaries, while the statistics
for purchased energy (indirect) in 2020 included 10
subsidiaries.

Group will continue to monitor its employees’

energy saving in an effort to reduce energy
consumption, achieve energy conservation and
emission reduction and create a green corporate.
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(10) 20194 B & 8¢ R ([ #)
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RIR - HERERHE

A2.2 WATER CONSUMPTION

The Group is committed to raising the awareness
of its employees on water-saving, to reduce water
consumption. Measures adopted by the Group
include:

° Putting up posters in our offices to remind
employees not to consume unnecessary
resources;

e Turning off taps that are not in use/setting up
automatic water dispensers;

° Requiring construction staff of our project
department to carry out general inspection of
water delivery pipes to check for leakages, to
prevent water wastage;

e Using water efficient products;

° Recycling and reusing water resources;

e Water meters are installed in our offices,
common areas, and construction sites, with
registration and monthly analysis carried out
by a responsible officer based on the water
consumption records of each department.
Departments and employees with serious
wastage are fined.
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RIE  HERERRE

All freshwater and flushing water used by the SEFEAMTE A KM
Group are provided by municipal water supply SRIAK HHEFEFRR
authorities with authorised licenses/permits. The F& BB F AT R Ay T BR K
Group faced no issues when purchasing suitable HERME WRBRER
water. MEREAAKES & -
Percentage
Water consumption o 77 Unit 2019 2020 change
B 7k ) B 20194 20204 B ®
Water consumption m3 27,166.00 28,418.58 +4.61%
k2 MK
Water consumption intensity m3/ N/A 4518 N/A
employee
FKEE NAEKS 38 A E A
MBI
Notes: it -
(11) The statistics for water consumption in 2019 (11) 2019 FERKEHIEBE
included 8 subsidiaries, while the statistics 8fEl A |]: 2020F FEKE
for water consumption in 2020 included 10 HIE B0 AF] °
subsidiaries.
In addition, the Group’s determination to save FHN 0 2020F FE MY 42 BE M
energy and reduce emissions was evidenced by 2= R 1T BB B R A In Al 3B
the reduction in overall air travel distance in 2020. S EEBE R BERY R A ©
Percentage
Unit 2019 2020 change
B 20195 20204 Bo &
Air travel distance km 8,417.00 5,064.00 -39.84%
fin 22 1k 17 20 B FoK
2020 Annual Report 7 5
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R HBREA

HE

A3 ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

A4

In order to respond positively to the national strategic
policy which requires speed-up of construction of
conservation-oriented society and implement the
Company’s administrative measures for energy
conservation, make the Company become an efficient,
conserving and energy-saving example, and regulate
the specific management of energy conservation and
consumption reduction of construction enterprises,
the Group actively promotes environment-friendly
concept and instills it in every stage of the whole
construction project, i.e. planning, design, construction
and sale, striving to integrate the concepts of green
and environmental protection into the architectural
style of the Group. The Group also cooperates with
the outstanding design institutes to integrate the
architectural design with the surrounding natural
conditions, and strives to create a comfortable
living space and provide ecological green homes for
customers.

The Group complies with the national and local
environmental protection laws and various types
of environmental protection laws and regulations
promulgated by the PRC as it carries out its project
development. In the stage of planning and construction
in real estate development, the Group proactively
communicates with contractors and advocates green
construction work and strives to save resources
and reduce the impact of construction work on the
environment through scientific management and
technological advancement.

CLIMATE CHANGE

With increasing concerns about climate change and
environmental degradation, sustainable environmental
protection has become a strategic priority for the real
estate industry. The Group is committed to maintain
high standards of environmental protection during its
business operations to meet relevant requirements, and
will continue to devote human and financial resources
for environmental protection, reduction of carbon
footprint and environmental compliance as required
under applicable laws and regulations.
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A Climate Change Policy and relevant rules and
regulations have been formulated for the sound
and effective management of energy consumption,
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, as well as
discharge of waste, sewage and other pollutants, as
summarized below:

e  Comply with applicable environmental protection
laws and regulations;

e |Incorporate environmental factors into our
business operation;

e Set appropriate goals and indicators for ESG
management practices on a regular basis;

e Continuously improve our ESG management
system by setting and maintaining strict standards;

e  Ensure environmentally responsible sourcing of
materials;

o Protect natural resources and reduce waste to
prevent pollution and to protect the environment;

e Raise environmental awareness among our staff
through regular communication; and

e  Communicate our environmental performance to
stakeholders, and (where applicable) engage their
involvement in environmental issues.

During the year, the Group complied with environmental
protection laws and regulations in relation to air and
GHG emissions, discharge into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
The Group did not violate any environmental protection
laws or regulations of the region where we operate,
nor was it subject to significant fines, non-monetary
penalties and litigation relating to environmental
protection.
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B. SOCIETY

B1 EMPLOYMENT

The Group always believes that our employees are
important assets of the Group. The Group adheres
to the people-oriented philosophy and guarantees
employees’ rights and benefits. By creating a pleasant
and healthy work environment, improving the salary
and welfare systems, and increasing the training
opportunities, we encourage employees to actively
carry out career planning, motivate employees’
enthusiasm for work, and enhance employees’ sense
of belonging.

Policies on Employee’s Compensation and Benefits

In order to attract and retain talents, the Group
takes the characteristics and needs of the posts and
positions into full account when it is hiring people,
forbidding gender discrimination and promoting gender
equality. In addition, for the protection and welfare of
its employees, the Group tries its best to provide them
with good protection and care, including competitive
remuneration, equal and fair pay, a comfortable
and safe work environment, and annual free body
examination etc.

We provide social insurances for employees such as
pension, medical care, unemployment and maternity
insurance according to national and local provisions.
We also contribute to the housing provident fund for our
employees and maintain insurance coverage against
person injuries and accidents for employees in special
positions. In winter, heating fees will be distributed and
in summer, cooling fees will be distributed. We will also
provide allowances for medical care and missed meals,
and title subsidies, special subsidies such as relocation
subsidies, home renting subsidies, as well as allowance
for transportation, communication, and missed meals.
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We provide benefits for working mothers in accordance
with national regulations, such as paid maternity leave
and breastfeeding leave during our female employees’
pregnancy, childbirth, and breastfeeding periods.

We take the realisation of “internal equity” and “external
competitiveness” as our fundamental principle. The
Group establishes and improves its remuneration
system through “three matchings”, which refer to that
the remuneration matches the value of the position, the
remuneration matches the ability, and the remuneration
matches the performance.

The remuneration of an individual will be determined
with reference to the employee’s personal
qualifications, education background, length of
service in relevant professional fields, actual years of
experience and professional qualification. The salary
scale is assessed according to the employee’s position,
responsibility and obligation, value and experience.

The Group will conduct a fair and open performance
appraisal for all employees through assessment on the
results of relevant companies and job performance.
Appraisees prepare and summarise the completion of
monthly priorities and record in the form of “Completion
of Monthly Working Plan”, which will be signed by the
appraisers for confirmation. It is an important evidence
for appraisers when making appraisals for appraisees
in respect to the completion of their priorities at the
end of year.

Salaries of employees are paid on an annual or monthly
basis, both of which are composed of fixed salary and
performance bonus. The fixed salary is determined
mainly based on the assessment result of the value
of employees’ positions, and the performance bonus
is determined mainly with reference to the appraisal
results. The salary of employees being paid on an
annual basis comprises of monthly payment part and
year-end payment part. The specific payment method
is implemented according to the terms agreed by both
parties in the acceptance letter.
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Equal Opportunity

The Group adhered to the principle of openness,
justice and fairness in recruitment and a unified
principle without discrimination in employment
standards and selection procedures. The Group takes
the characteristics of the posts and positions into full
account when hiring people and fights against gender
discrimination. Those who have made significant
contributions in daily work would be rewarded based
on the reward & punishment measures for employees.
Outstanding employees would be given priority when
opportunities for promotion or improvement came up
during annual employee appointment.

Employee Diversity

The Group cares about the diversity of its employees
and constantly expands its recruitment channels
(social recruitment, headhunting, internal and external
referrals, etc.), aiming to maintain the diversity of its
employee structure in such aspects as employee
education, working background and specialties. The
Group analyses the diversity of its current employee
structure on a regular basis to provide guidance for the
follow-up recruitment.

Anti-discrimination and Anti-harassment

The Group’s labour and employment procedures are
strictly aligned with national policies, requirements and
standards on anti-discrimination and no discrimination
against religion, ethnicity, race and gender is found
in policies for recruitment and daily employment
procedures. The Group also strictly adhered to and
observed related institutional norms and ensured
the execution was in place in various ways including
regular reviews, random checks, feedback, notification,
rectification and self-inspection in each subsidiary in
daily work.
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The Group has also set clear regulations to severely
punish different kinds of discrimination and harassment
behaviours in violation of the regulations and
encouraged employees to report behaviours that
were against the regulations or incidents harmful to
the Group’s interests. Employees may report related
behaviours through various channels at any time. As
phone numbers and emails of the Group’s management
and head of each department were open to employees,
employees may report anonymously or in their real
names at any time. Human resource and administrative
personnel would collect employee opinions and
suggestions in such ways as making questionnaire
among all employees and doing individual interviews
to gather related information from our employees.
During this reporting year, the Group has not received
any report on discrimination/harassment incidents.
The Group would strictly deal with such reports in
accordance with the laws and regulations once any
reports were submitted.

Employment Highlights

By the end of 2020, the total number of employees
of the Group was 629, and all of them were engaged
with labour contracts. Two employees worked in Hong
Kong, while the others worked in Mainland China.
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Percentage
Total number of employees by gender 2019 2020 change
RUEBEINETAY B 20194 2020F EHALLR
Total number of employees No. of people 483 629 +30.23%
HMETAH A
Male No. of people 274 368 +34.31%
3 A
Female No. of people 209 261 +24.88%
X A
Male-to-female ratio of employees 1.31 1.41 +7.55%
ELBT AHKLA
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Percentage
Total number of employees by age group Unit 2019 2020 change
RERBRESINETIHAY By 20194 2020F EHALL®
Aged<30 No. of people 129 237 +83.72%
FRIEI0IAT A
Aged 30-50 No. of people 320 352 +10.00%
F #30-5075% A
Aged>50 No. of people 34 40 +17.65%
F e B iB50 A
Employee Turnover Rate ES x

Percentage
Employee turnover rate by gender Unit 2019 2020 change
RUBBEINEESRAE By 2019% 20205  EHALLE
Male % 20% 12% -39.08%
5 %
Female % 15% 19% +22.62%
k58 %

Percentage
Employee turnover rate by age group Unit 2019 2020 change
BEERBEASNEERAE By 2019 20205  EHALH®R
Aged<30 % 26% 22% -12.58%
FRESZEMUT %
Aged 30-50 % 16% 11% -31.82%
F #30-507% %
Aged>50 % 6% 5% -15.00%
F ik 8 1850 %

In 2020, the Group recruited talents and attracted
people from all walks of life to join the Group. The male-
to-female ratio of employees was maintained between
1.00 and 2.00 in 2020. The Group is committed to
promoting gender equality in the workplace with
appointments to be made on a merit basis. With regard
to age, the number of employees under 30 years old
increased by 83.72% in 2020, pouring vitality into the

Group and expanding its talent pool.
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B2 HEALTH AND SAFETY B2 ERZZ

The Group provides our employees a comfortable
and safe work environment with well-equipped office
hardware. The office building is spacious and clean
with abundant ancillary resources including meeting
rooms, resting areas and etc. The Group carries out
fire drills regularly and always reminds our employees
of paying attention to public safety.

Occupational Health and Safety Protection

In respect of employee health and medical protection,
the Group provides free health checkup services each
year for employees, and also provides social insurance
for employees, among which includes relevant
insurances for major diseases, accidents, work-related
injuries, outpatient and inpatient medical care.

The Group has been complying with all laws and
regulations relating to health and safety. The Group
also has specific safety requirement documents, with
the established goal of “having zero work injuries
throughout the year”. It conducts safety inspections
on site each year to ensure the health and safety of
employees at the workplace. At the same time, the
Company organized a safety training session, where
we covered the following five topics: safety culture,
risk incidents, everyday safety, construction safety,
and safety production in the summer. The aim of the
training session was to enhance the safety awareness
and the safety operation skills of our staff, to prevent
incidents from happening.
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B3 DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group highly emphasises employees’ professional
skill improvement, training and learning and allows
employees to fully utilise their specialty and potentials
at different positions. The Group encourages
individuals to combine their own specialty and habits
with the Group’s business development and proactively
strive for opportunities. In addition, the Group also
encourages employees to take internal job rotation
and develop across functions. The Group has already
set up a mature training and learning system including
hierarchical and classified training and learning maps,
matched with all sorts of training projects. The Group
also has diversified resources and patterns to support
employees’ training and learning, such as online
learning platform, internal training, external training and
SO on.

The Group ensures the pertinence and practicability
when designing training plans. Every year the Group
combines with the need of business development and
sets up corresponding learning projects according
to different business sections, specialties, titles and
levels, job categories so as to make sure employees
of various positions can obtain corresponding training
and learning opportunities and resources according to
their job types. Every year the Group formulates annual
training plans according to the need of businesses
and employees and regularly reviews the plans to
make proper adjustments in order to ensure learning
arrangements conform to the need of business and
employee development.
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In the annual training plan, the Group will formulate
exclusive internal and external learning plans and
opportunities aiming at the present status and
business challenges faced by middle-level and
senior management so as to make sure middle-
level and senior management also has rich learning
opportunities. For all the internal training projects,
the Group conducts research before training and
makes evaluation after training, listens to opinions
and suggestions of attendants about learning
arrangements, meanwhile makes relevant adjustments
to the arrangements based on the results and
outcomes of training. The Group’s training plan, notices
about detailed training programs and reports after
training will be informed to employees timely via a
variety of channels.

On 23 June 2020, the Group organized a special
training on legal practice, which was attended by more
than 60 people from the Group’s headquarters and
other departments. The training aimed to promote legal
knowledge and raise legal awareness among staff from
all departments of the Group, and allow them to have
a better understanding of legal concepts. By “learning
the law, understanding the law, abiding by the law, and
using the law”, employees can better protect the rights
of our enterprise.

Mr. Hou Fang, director of Focus Law Firm (i & & & 12
Bl =& 7% FI7), the legal advisor of the Group, was invited to
be the lecturer of the training. Training content included:
the history and current status of civil and commercial law
in China; knowledge in relation to the signing, reviewing
and performance of civil and commercial contracts;
business management characteristics; prevention
of contract risks — a detailed analysis from various
aspects, such as the examination of creditworthiness of
contractual parties, the feasibility of contractual terms,
and the refinement of breach and release clauses;
and finally, an analysis of specific cases. Through the
training, attendees’ awareness of compliance and risk
prevention were enhanced.
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On 10 July 2020, the Group organized a training on
legal practice for the domestic operation of listed
companies, which was attended by more than 50
people from the Group’s headquarters and other
departments. GFE Law Office (/& ® 18 %5 12 i = 7§
Ffr), the legal advisor of the Group, was invited to the
training.

On 24 October 2020, the Group organized a special
training on the standardization of cost management
processes, which was attended by more than 50
people from the Group’s headquarters and other
departments. Deheng Management and Advisory
Company* (12 18 & B % # 2 7 ) was invited to
give a detailed talk on three areas regarding the
standardization of cost management processes:
cost management process systems, target cost
management processes, and project pre-settlement
management. This training aimed to educate the
Group and its project companies on cost management
process standardization, so as to further optimize
the Group’s cost management and control model,
build a sound cost management system, achieve
cost management and control standardization, and
contribute to the Group’s better and faster growth.

*

English name for identification purpose only
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IR

The following is the record of employees’ average
training hours of the Group during the reporting period,
which is categorised by rank and gender:

Training and development statistics Unit
EIRBEREE By

B HEgRERKRE

MTIREERREHANET
T 5ol B BUey RO 8 0 IREBAR
KA RIS 5

Percentage
2019 2020 change
20195 20204 BALHER

Percentage of trained employees by gender

BUuRBINZIRERS L

Male %
5 %
Female %
Z %

Percentage of trained employees by
employment category

RERERNAINZIEETIL

Senior management %
BREEAS %
Management %
ERAE %
General staff %
Epiloa=! %
Training and development statistics Unit
EIRERBE By

63% 59% -6.35%
37% 41% +10.82%
5% 11% +102.00%
27% 17% -39.31%
67% 73% +7.97%
Percentage

2019 2020 change

20194 20204 BB

Average training hours per employee by

gender
BEMRES SEEEEHEINEYURY
Male hour
= N
Female hour
% B

Average training hours per employee by
employment category

RERERNES BEEETHEINTIRY

Senior management hour
aREBAR N
Management hour
ERAE N
General staff hour
TRBE aN:

2.39 6.20 +159.45%
2.62 3.00 +14.50%
4.83 4.04 -16.36%
2.68 4.69 +75.24%
2.21 5.06 +128.84%
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B4

During the year, the number of managerial personnel
and general staff members of the Group’s subsidiaries
being trained and related training hours both increased.
The Group is committed to providing work support to
employees, and actively conducting training to help
employees achieve career development and personal
growth.

LABOUR STANDARDS

Recruitment

The Group adopts internal competition for certain
positions and prioritises the deployment or selection
of suitable qualified employees inside the Group. The
Group advocates employees to participate actively
pursuant to competition conditions and procedures,
and encourages each department to support
employees to participate in internal competition without
barriers. The Group would also apply open elections,
regardless of qualifications, sources and backgrounds,
all applicants must follow the Group’s recruitment
principles and pass the required inspections from all
aspects and our Group only recruits qualified applicant.
The Group takes the Company’s culture and value as
the basic recruitment criteria, and mainly focuses on
the adaptability and also takes into consideration the
future development potential.

The labour policies and standards of the Group
conform to all sorts of national regulations and rules.
Related labour environment, employment duration,
working time, rest and vacation and other rules all
complied with laws and regulations. Meanwhile, the
Group clarified in labour contracts and also kept
employees informed about labour protection, labour
conditions and occupational hazard protection. The
Group also complied with the requirements of national
and local regulations and policies in aspects of labour
handling procedures, procedure completeness and
procedures thereof. The Group will closely monitor
the latest status of related governmental laws and
regulations and make corresponding adjustment and
update about its internal systems and procedures. At
the beginning of every year, the Group also conducts
analysis and evaluation on current systems and policies
and makes optimization and adjustment accordingly.
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Measures for Prevention of Child Labour or Forced
Labour

As for prevention of child labour or forced labour,
the Group ensures that applicants have the right to
interview and apply for a job voluntarily. Meanwhile,
it sets up a strict approval procedure for labour
employment. Before employment, all sorts of
credentials, files and information should be complete
and shall undergo strict inspection. Employment should
also get approval from all levels of management so as
to effectively avoid child labour or other nonstandard
labour employment. The Group also complies with
equal and voluntary labour employment. When signing
contracts or agreements with employees, the Group will
completely and accurately convey necessary statutory
information such as labour working location, time,
salary and so on. Both parties sign labour contract
or agreement under the voluntary principle in order to
avoid forced labour.

SUPPLY-CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has in place a well-established supplier
management system, including a clear division
of supervisory function, supplier assessment and
approval, supplier selection and performance
evaluation, and supervises the supply-chain
management from various aspects. When selecting
suppliers, the Group would inspect their contract
performance, honesty and legal compliance,
meanwhile incorporate proper appraisal so as to make
a comprehensive evaluation. Through contractual
agreements, the Group required that all the suppliers
must comply with national and local environmental laws
and regulations and the Group properly evaluated them
to make sure they complied with all the environmental
and social requirements and fulfilled their environmental
and social responsibilities.
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B6 PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Product Quality Management

The Group highly emphasises product quality
management and establishes a strict product quality
management system within the Group. Every quarter,
the Group carries out a third-party inspection to make
sure the quality of all products met standards. The
Group also attaches great importance to provisions of
the laws and regulations applicable to our products,
and continuously pays close attention to and
complies with them. The construction materials that
our Group uses are of high quality, which satisfy the
relevant requirements in terms of construction and
environmental protection on one hand, and promote
environmental-friendly and power-saving construction
on the other hand.

The Group also has a complete repair and maintenance
mechanism. Once product defects are found, the
Group would be responsible for repair at its own
costs, and would arrange delivery only upon the
completion of repair works. If customers suffer a
loss due to quality defects, or if there are still quality
problems that seriously affect the normal residential
use of the customer after various repeated repairs,
the Group would definitely follow up carefully and pay
compensation or arrange the return of the house if
appropriate. On the other hand, the Group also has
post-disaster response measures, upon encountering
natural disasters such as typhoons, earthquakes
and fires, the Group will conduct comprehensive
inspection towards buildings and public facilities,
including aluminum doors and windows, entry doors,
railings, curtain walls, public decoration, various water
& electricity systems and equipment, etc., as well as
carrying out repair or reinforcement works according to
the damage level.
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Maintaining and protecting intellectual property (IP)

As a leading brand in the Xuchang market, we are
committed to protecting our own IP while complying
with the IP policies of other companies. We have
implemented a comprehensive IP management system
to protect both internal and external IP rights. We also
have a contingency plan in place to provide guidance
and solutions for the handling of any cases in relation
to IP infringement.

During the reporting period, the Group did not record
any material infringement of IP rights.

B7 ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group operates its business in accordance with
high ethical standards and adopts good practices
in the industry in respect of prevention of bribery
and anti-corruption. The Group has always complied
with applicable laws and regulations relating to anti-
corruption. The Group has in place the “Measures on
Integrity and Self-Discipline Regulation”, which provides
guidelines to employees on how to handle business
transactions with business-related entities and interest-
related entities.

According to the guidelines, it is strictly forbidden to
provide any form of payment, gift or offer by means
of bribery or corruption. It is not allowed to abuse
the position to encroach on the Company’s property,
misappropriate public funds, and abuse power for
personal gain.

All the employees and representatives of the Group
shall operate the business and perform their duties
in accordance with the integrity requirements set
out in the “Measures on Integrity and Self-Discipline
Regulation” and in an ethical manner. The Group
understands the potential risks brought by unethical
practices to our business and has zero tolerance to
any form of corruption (including deception, bribery,
forgery, extortion, conspiracy, misappropriation of
public funds and collusion). All employees are required
to attend the training on the “Measures on Integrity and
Self-Discipline Regulation”.
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B8 COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Ever Reach always keeps in mind its social
responsibility as an enterprise when growing its
business. As an accountable and proactive member of
the community, the Group is fully committed to making
positive contributions to help the underprivileged and
those in need.

Ever Reach cooperates with different social
organizations and proactively contributes to community
and charity work. In 2020, Ever Reach donated more
than RMB560 million in total to social organizations,
including but not limited to:

e Weidu Charity Federation

e  Xuchang Charity Federation

e Red Cross Society of Yanling County
e  Zhaizi Village Primary School

Meanwhile, the Group actively participated in education
and charity. We have been helping students for many
years. In 2020, the Group distributed student grants to
20 students. Ever Reach always believes that making
donation to education is a current philanthropy that can
benefit the society for generations. In the future, the
Group will continue to repay the society with a positive
attitude and fulfill its corporate social responsibility.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic,
Ever Reach has strictly complied with the specific
requirements of the central government and
government authorities at all levels regarding epidemic
prevention and control. We proactively adopted relevant
measures, formulated contingency plans, distributed
epidemic prevention supplies, for we have made
epidemic prevention and control our first priority. As
a demonstration of our corporate social responsibility,
we took practical actions and donated a total of
RMB4,577,000 to help combat the epidemic.

During the sixth “99 Public Welfare Day”, the Group
mobilized all staff members, called on the staff of all
departments, party members and owners to take active
actions, and encouraged them to make donations. The
Group donated more than RMB900,000 during the
event.

Tencent’s “99 Public Welfare Day” is a nationwide
online charity campaign organized by the Cyberspace
Administration of China and the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the PRC. It aims to promote community-wide
participation in pubic welfare, instill a sense of civic
responsibility in the society, help to eradicate poverty,
improve people’s livelihood, and improve education
standards. The Group’s donation will be used for
the construction of civic projects and education
infrastructure in the Weidu district, to spread positive
social energy. Thus far, Ever Reach has made a fair
share of contribution to the creation of a harmonious
society by donating approximately RMB34 million to the
community.
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance
report in the Company’s Annual Report for the year ended 31
December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving good corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Company to
safeguard the interests of shareholders, enhance corporate
value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has devised its own code of corporate governance
based on the principles and practices as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange which are applicable to
the Company.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year period
ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code.
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Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
‘Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of
the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was noted
by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance
and takes decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from
a Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition

The Board of the Company currently comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xiaobing (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Zhenfeng

Ms. Qi Chunfeng

Mr. Wang Quan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Kwok Lun

Mr. Wei Jian

Mr. Fang Cheng
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The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 31 to 38 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. Li Xiaobing and Mr. Wang Zhenfeng respectively. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive
Officer focuses on the Company’s business development and
daily management and operations generally.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
is of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors
The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a

specific term of 3 years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the
then current term.
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Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or if their number is not three of a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads
and provides direction to management by laying down strategies
and overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound
internal control and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for
ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company
and providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective
independent judgement on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company and may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of
Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would
be arranged and reading material on relevant topics would
be provided to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
organized a training session for all Directors. Such training
session covers a wide range of relevant topics including
directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance
etc. In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and
regulatory update have been provided to the directors for their
reference and studying.

The record of continuous professional development relating
to director’s duties and regulatory and business development
that have been received by the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to date of this report are summarized as
follows:
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Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Li Xiaobing FNKFE A
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Ms. Qi Chunfeng BEERZ LT
Mr. Wang Quan FRESEAE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTEE
Mr. Lee Kwok Lun TR
Mr. Wei Jian BalkaE
Mr. Fang Cheng FAAEEAE

Note:

Types of Training

A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines
and relevant publications
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the importance and
benefits to achieve diversity on the Board. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Board has adopted a board
diversity policy for the purpose of ensuring that the Board has
the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain high standards of corporate governance.

The Nomination Committee of the Board has the primary
responsibility for identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board based on various measurable
objectives with reference to the Company’s business model and
specific needs, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
language, cultural and educational background, industry and
professional experiences. All nominations and appointments of
the member of the Board will be made on merit basis taking into
account the business of the Company needs from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity
policy and the measurable objectives at least annually, and as
appropriate, to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board
in support of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted nomination policy sets out the
objectives, selection in criteria and nomination procedures for
identifying and recommending candidates for appointment or
re-appointment of Directors in order to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level. During the year ended 31
December 2020, no candidate was nominated for directorship.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Legal Compliance Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with their authority and duties. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Fang Cheng, Mr. Lee Kwok Lun
and Mr. Wei Jian. Mr. Lee Kwok Lun is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The
main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of
the internal audit function, scope of audit and appointment of
external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of
the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee
held three meetings to review the interim and annual financial
results and reports and significant issues on the financial
reporting, operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems and internal
audit function, appointment of external auditors and relevant
scope of works and, connected transactions and arrangements
for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice
without the presence of the Executive Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Fang Cheng, Mr. Lee Kwok
Lun and Mr. Wei Jian. Mr. Fang Cheng is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
of no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.
The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management, the remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year to
consider the relevant matters regarding the remuneration policy
and the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely
Mr. Li Xiaobing, Executive Director, Mr. Fang Cheng and Mr. Lee
Kwok Lun, independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Li Xiaobing
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s
Directors’ nomination procedures, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional
experience etc. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
character, qualifications, experience, independence, time
commitment and other relevant criteria necessary to complement
the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors, and
to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors standing
for election at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination
Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.

Legal Compliance Committee

The Legal Compliance Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Wang Zhenfeng, Executive Director, Mr. Fang Cheng
and Mr. Lee Kwok Lun, independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Fang Cheng is the chairman of the Legal Compliance Committee.
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The principal duties of the Legal Compliance Committee
include monitoring, identifying, reviewing and assessing the
key compliance issues in relation to or arisen in the course
of the Group’s business operations such as, among other
aspects, usage of all acquired parcels of land as well as
construction process and sales arrangements regarding property
development projects; and conducting regular review on the
compliance matters identified by the committee itself, senior
management members of the Group and/or other relevant
parties.

The Legal Compliance Committee held twelve meetings
during the year to monitor, identify, review and assess the key
compliance issues related to various aspects of the Group’s
operations.

Corporate Governance Functions

The functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code
are performed by the Audit Committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee met three times to review
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this corporate governance report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the
table below:

SREARE

EENHERR

TRHFIZEZTHREH 22020512 H31H
TFERTNARNEZSENEEELE
CeHEANBREASHHFELS:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

e/ BTEERY

Legal

Audit  Remuneration Nomination Compliance Annual General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ESpR Exg ENZEE FHZEE REZEE HRAAZEE RREEAE
Mr. Li Xiaobing kg E 4/4 N/A TE R N/A 748 FR 11 N/A T8 R 1
Mr. Wang Zhenfeng IRELE 4/4 N/A 78 A NA B N/A 8 B 12112 11
Ms. Qi Chunfeng EEERZT 4/4 N/A 7 B N/A T8 N/A T8 N/A i F 1/1
Mr. Wang Quan TREE 4/4 N/A 18 A NA T E A N/A T8 A N/A 8 A 11
Mr. Lee Kwok Lun FEBAE 4/4 3/3 1 1 12112 1N
Mr. Wei Jian Rk 4k 4/4 33 11 N/A 8 A N/A i A 0N
Mr. Fang Cheng R 4/4 3/3 1 11 12112 1

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks that it is willing
to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.
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The

*EAWmE

Company has developed and adopted various risk

management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office
functions, including project management, sales and leasing,
financial reporting, human resources and information technology.

The

Company’s risk management and internal control systems

have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes and are reviewed by the Board on annual basis:

the Board is responsible for and has general oversight of
the management and conduct of the business of the Group,
and is in charge of the overall risk control of the Group.
Any significant business decision involving material risks
are reviewed, analysed and approved at the Board level to
ensure a thorough examination of the associated risks at the
highest corporate governance body.

the Board and senior management are in charge of overall
business operations and risk monitoring of the Group, and
are responsible for the supervision of the respective fields
of operations as well as the supervision and approval of
any material business decisions of the Group’s project
companies. Procedures and policies are established
setting out clear reporting lines and responsibilities with
a view to facilitating efficient communications among the
Board, regional headquarters and the project companies.
A standardized property development process that governs
each step of the property development activities was also
developed.

the Audit Committee is responsible for, among others,
maintaining a satisfactory control environment and
an effective system of internal control (including any
arrangements for internal audit) and to review the Group’s
financial information, by monitoring the integrity of the
Group’s financial statements and annual report and
accounts and half-year report and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them.
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the Group’s city and site selection decisions are made by
the Board. The project management department at Henan
regional headquarters is in charge of formulating feasibility
studies for development plans and investment strategies,
which takes into account and involves the participation
of other departments, including the finance department,
engineering management department and costs control
department.

for certain operational and market risks, control measures
are adopted at an operational level. For example, major
construction risks are minimised by reviewing background
information on general construction contractors before their
appointment and imposing strict contractual requirements,
while adhering to regular quality control measures overseen
by the Group and third-party construction supervision
companies.

the Company has adopted various internal policies and
procedures for individual employees in respect of different
aspects of the property development process based on
the operational needs. The Company also provides both in-
house and external training to the employees in order to
enhance their industry knowledge to manage the operational
risks.

the Company has established anti-fraud and corruption
policy and whistle blowing policy. The policies have listed
out the guideline, activities considered as fraud and
corruption and whistle blowing mechanism for internal staff.
The reporting channel is posted on the Company’s website
for external parties’ reporting. The complaints or report can
be filed through postage or email.
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e the Company has also established the policies of financial
reporting and month end financial closing which list out the
guideline on preparing the monthly financial pack, the duties
of different departments, and the procedures of reviewing
and submission of the financial related documents. The
policies also listed out the segregation of duties of the
financial record preparation within the finance department,
reporting channel within the Group and the monthly financial
closing and monitoring procedures. The finance department
of the subsidiaries is responsible for preparing the financial
record on a day-to-day basis and perform monthly financial
closing based on the monthly financial closing checklist. The
monthly financial pack including the financial statements,
cash flow forecast and the key supporting schedule are
reviewed by the finance manager of each subsidiary before
submitting to the Group’s finance department for final
review. The Group’s finance department further reviews and
approves the financial pack received from the subsidiaries
before submission to the Executive Directors for review. The
Board would further discuss the financial performance on a
monthly basis.

The Company has engaged independent consultant to perform
the internal audit function for the Group. The independent
consultant has conducted its internal audit review activities
according to the internal audit plan during the year. The
Board, as supported by the Audit Committee, the independent
consultant as well as the management report, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the year ended 31
December 2020, and considered that such systems are effective
and adequate.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.
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Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorised access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 113 to 124.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the
Company, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit
services for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
RMB2.16 million.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Leung Kam Fai
Anthony, who is an employee of the Company and has day-to-
day knowledge of the Company’s affair. During the year ended
31 December 2020, he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in accordance with rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate
resolution should be proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the election of individual
Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened on requisition
of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
should be made in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting should
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Acts or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will
not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1409, Floor 14, Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (For the attention
of the Board/Company Secretary)

Email: enquiry@everreachgrp.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address
and provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. For this purpose, the Company has set up a website
(www.everreachgroup.com), where relevant latest information,
the up-to-date state of the Company’s business operation and
development, the Company’s financial information and corporate
governance practices and other data are available to the public.
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The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings
and other general meetings. At the annual general meeting,
directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication
policy to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends
pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code which sets
out the factors in consideration of the payment of dividend.
The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management
with a sustainable dividend policy and will continually review the
same and make modification when appropriate.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of
Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ever Reach Group
(Holdings) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(the “Group”) set out on pages 125 to 274, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

1. Recognition of revenue from sales of properties; and

2. Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter?

B E = A

Recognition of revenue from sales of properties

BRBMEHERSRA

Refer to Notes 4 ‘Critical accounting estimates and
judgements’ and Note 23 ‘Revenue’ to the consolidated
financial statements.

F2HRE VB RRWT41EZE G 54 5T R A B &M
FE28 AL °

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised over
time when the Group’s performance under a sales
contract does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date; otherwise,
the revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
buyer obtains control of the completed property. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, revenue of the Group
from sales of properties was RMB2,417.639 million, all
of which was recognised at a point in time.

MEHEMBRAR BEXBERHEEARRTHNED
AElEY EEEABEREANEE M E5£EH

BHMITERRESEAOIBS MR ERERFRER:
BAIMAEERNSE T EEHENE —FEER o
B E2020F12A31HIEFE X ESEBEYEBESHEK
A B ANRBED2 417,639,000 * &N E— R IHIER °
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNEFUNAEEEEETSIE

Our procedures in relation to identifying sales
contracts which are subject to revenue recognised
over time include understanding management’s
process in identifying sales contracts with or
without enforceable right to payment, and reading
the key terms of sales contracts, on a sample
basis, to assess the presence of enforceable right
to payment based on the contract terms.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) ERENSEHA)
Key Audit Matter' (Continued) How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEEFEE (&) BN EF NN EEEREETEE
Recognition of revenue from sales of properties Our procedures in relation to revenue from sale of
(Continued) properties recognised at a point in time include:
BRYEEEMSBRA(E) BOBBARNE —SHERYEHERANE B -
We focus on revenue from sales of properties because e Understood, evaluated and tested the key
of the significant volume of transactions which requires internal controls over the recognition of
significant audit time and effort. The Group recognises revenue from sale of properties at a point in
revenue when effective control of ownership is time.
transferred to the buyers, which is dependent on the o T - FERBAREBERNE B IERAYE
contractual arrangements for the sale and the laws and HEMBSWATER BRI ES -

regulations in the relevant jurisdiction.
HREAXRZEFTEREFTHBERIE - KMAIE o Selected sales transactions of properties

MEHEERA ESEEMARNERZEHZEEY recognised at a point in time, on a sample
ZERKERBA EBORREENERTHEREA basis, and performed the following
AEEERAERER ° procedures:

« ERAX-BEBBROVENEXSRME
2E) BRI

a) Read the signed sales and purchase
agreements to evaluate contractual
arrangements relating to effective transfer
of control.

a) BBECEEENEEMRATHEBEHEABEN
THIEEBN SR HE -

b) Checked the transfer of effective control
of ownership to relevant documents,
including completion certificates,
occupation permits or customer
acceptance.

b) MEMEAENERESZEEENHERBX
@(@)%EI%}% CFEEFAERIEFPR

i o

c) Agreed the sales amount of transactions
to the amount set out in the signed sales
and purchase agreements and bank
statements.

) RAXFGNHEELHECDEZTEEH =
e RRITHEE - -

Based on our audit procedures, we found that
transactions tested were supportable by the
evidence we obtained.

BRERMAOESEF  BRMABRAASANZSA
A MESHZBRNZEE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B TR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) B ESBIEA)

Key Audit Matter2 How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMWEF NN EEEREETEE
Assessment of net realisable value of properties Our procedures in relation to management’s NRV
under development and completed properties held assessment on PUD and PHS include:
for sale BMERAEREHRAETDERFIEHERTY
AN YERFEHELRTIYENTRR FE FHAERFENTENREF B

BEETEE?

Refer to Note 4 ‘Critical accounting estimates and e  Obtained an understanding of the management’s

118

judgements’ and Note 10 ‘Properties held or under
development for sale’ to the consolidated financial
statements.

B2HRE VBRI T4[EE G551 & 6] Rt
HIOMFIEHERFERFEME] -

The properties under development (“PUD”) and
completed properties held for sale (“PHS”) of the Group
amounted to RMB5,423.337 million and RMB1,537.734
million respectively as at 31 December 2020, which
are significant to the Group’s total assets. The carrying
amounts of PUD and PHS are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value (“NRV”).
2020128318 -+ EXEFREPYE(HEHYE]D
RFELERIVME(HELERIYEDNEED A
& A R #5,423,337,0007T & A E #1,537,734,0007T
1 EEEREENKRKNY HREFYELRFELE
% TR BREEE AR AR RAT# IR FE ([T # 3 FE )
HERIEEFE ©

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

internal control and assessment process
of the NRV assessment on PUD and PHS,
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and subjectivity.

THREEBHAETMELRFBELEXRTY
FORETFEN NG R ERRE
NEREBEREATEEERTHENIRE -
AEHBEERERRANEBRER -

Obtained the management’s calculation
schedules on provision for PUD and PHS,
and tested the completeness of development
projects and the mathematical accuracy of the
schedules.
RISEBBAERETYELRFELERT
MEREORER URAAFAZEHRERASN
RN RERRAEMERE -

Tested management’s key estimates, on a
sample basis, for:
RAHAEEENERMG RMEEE) AR

a) Selling price which is estimated based
on the prevailing market conditions and
ageing profile of PHS. We compared
the estimated selling price to recently
transacted prices by making reference to
the Group’s selling price in the same or
similar projects or the prevailing market
price of comparable properties with
similar type, size and location.

a) ERBITHMARFELERIVENR
e Bk AT B BB o T A8 (4 5T 3
EERETHATFIERETER A2
Z EXEMERNELUEENEE R
PUEE  RERUCENAILL Y ENRT
M5 ERE -



Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter2 (Continued)

BEETTEE2 (H)

Assessment of net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties held
for sale (Continued)

FEABRPYUERFELERTIVRNTERFEER)

Determination of NRV of PUD and PHS involved critical
accounting estimates on the selling price, variable
selling expenses and, for PUD, the estimated costs to
completion. Given the significant balance of PUD and
PHS, the high degree of estimation uncertainties and the
subjectivity of management’s significant judgement, the
assessment of NRV of these properties is considered a
key audit matter.

EERETFMERBELERTIYMENATER FEY
REEHHEER FEEEER URBAEPYE
WA RIAAEENE ARGt c EXRFRETRY
FEFBELERTIVENRBEARN AN ETHE
EUMUNRERBELEARHBENZTE L  KMRA
A ZEMENRELR FES —HEREITEE -

B RBENRE

REESHA)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EFOAEEEAESETSIE

b) Variable selling expenses which are
estimated based on certain percentage of
selling price. We compared this estimated
percentage with the actual average selling
expenses to revenue ratio of the Group in
reoent years.

b) BREEERAUNAGHEERN —F
t KR AT A AT o BTG & A P &
ﬁ ﬁ%lﬁ¢%%§%$ﬂ% EH
EM A B L REITEL R ©

c) Estimated costs to completion for PUD.
We compared the estimated costs to
completion to the budget approved
by management and examined the
construction contracts or compared
the anticipated completion costs to the
actual costs of similar type of completed
properties of the Group.

o FERWEMNMETRINR - HMHH
J&Iﬁ$ﬂaﬁFm&mﬁ%ﬁﬁm

E IMELMAH S % FB 5T 3R TR
A BEEEREHEERIVNENER
ﬁEZKﬁi??ttii o

e Compared the NRV assessment and provision
for impairment provided in prior years, on
a sample basis, with the subsequent actual
written-off and investigated if any significant
variance exists, to assess, historical estimation
accuracy for NRV assessment and impairment
made by management.

o BABB FEMNMEREFIIRAMERE (R
MERERE) ABRETERMELER A HF
ENEREREZERETHAE  UTHERE
PrER IR R ENERBER BN BEMRET
M ZERE L o

Based on our audit procedure, we found the key
estimates used in the assessment of NRV of PUD
and PHS were supportable by the evidence we
obtained.

BEBERMOETREF  HMBERBRTMEEREEHR
MERFELERTYENAIZ IR FEN MGG
AN EERMESNERN R -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M A% B A R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the 2020 Annual Report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

Ht &

ERAEFAHEMBENEER - EitE
BB E2020F FHmAMEAM = FEH (B
TEREAVHERE LEMAM LA
2B E) o

BMEGEMBERRONBELNREER
mEH RMATHZFEMERERE
I EE S o

BAaRMYEEEUBERENEST - M
METEHEEMER - LEUBRET
EERHEMENEDRGEE M B HRRIRK
MEBATEBRTMTENBAFEEK
EExEUFFEEANFERRANIBR -

EREMAMITHIE WREMR A
HEMFEEANBERRL  RAFTE
BEZFE - -RMEESTELAEEMNS
EHE °

ESNRERZEENGASMBER
ARENELE

BERRESFEAAERBEEBEANAE
WMHNEBEMBREEL RE QA MK
PIMBEERAERREEMTBENES Y
BHER THEAR/RESEMHHRE
B fm BT 77 1 B BRRF 3K R AR T B B
ERBEREAMFBHAMENESE -



Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

B RBENRE

ESNERZEENGEMBERE
ARENEE(E)

ERUEGAVBHERRE EFREF
i ERERELENEN YEER
BATEREESELEERNER A
RERBEKERGTER KIEES
BER BESEBEREIEFELEE S5
BEHMBERMNBERTSR -
ERZEQRAREE ESENUK
EFHBIZ

% B ED L BT AR AR S B Rk PRI
MEME

BMWER RUSAMBHREIBER
ErFEARKFXRERMEBMNERKX
HRRAMGSAERSE  LHABRER
MERANZHEM®EE - HAER BT
(ERBRB)RERMHBRL Rtz
AmEREEMEH o RIS AT
EHATEEMEMALE ERAEE
MEME - A BREBFRSKTHRE - B
THRERBBBFENETHE
EX-ERERRAGFERAREER -
BHAR B AT A R AR FF S E AR Bl R - IR
EEREHEMEBNELRRATETE
RAVBERRERERBEZESAMB
WREDALERTE - BB R R R
AR RIEE K »
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M A% B A R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

BT E AR S M MR AT AR
MEE (&)

ERBE BB ENETETHBIEF -
BMERTEZHE  RETERRESR
REE o I

o BAMAAMBANKFHERMER
RAMBBRREFEERERRAD
BB REARATEARTAERS
SLRAR  UREDRZTRNEER
BEARE ERRMASRNER-
MRRFAESRER RE &
BER ERRM - SOZER AR
262 £ Rt REFRERKFM
BYMEA#HRBAWERSRK K
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R BEEMNEFEF EEMXLFE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

B RBENRE

BHE R E AR S M MR AT AE
MEE (&)

HESRABERKESHERNSG
EMEL AR MBREMERNE
AARE BMERGFERSTHEAR
MBBONEATMEE M - M Al s
EyY BEEENFELEENE
EERRE - MREMBR/RTFHEE
RNHETE M - A BRI & 2D 3R
THRBEAEIZEAUBRE
TEBRE AIREFENRE
T AIRMEERXRFEERER
R RANGEREERNZHEN RS
HIEFESEREED - A
AREREIBAAELER EEHE
TRREKS -

AHEREM B RANERIIHRT I
BENAR BREFE URES
MBHRREEPTERBRBEBEXZM
TR -

# EEERNERIER SO
BERNERE BEMNELER
NEBEHGEEVBRERERER - &
MEaEafBERFHTR  EEMHR
7 HPRBFABRAERIEME -

BMEERZZERBERT (AP
EMEFHE KRR ERETE
B BRRMEREATRAINENEMNE
RAERIE IR HF IR o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B TR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Leung Kwok Wai, Jimmy.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

BT E AR S M R AT RS
MEE (&)

BT EZZESRRRIEH  FHAR
MEREEBEBLIUENEEEXERE
Ko WERMFEBRBEAREAEBERA
SERERMBLMENMEBENEME
H- UREERANBRT  BAHERS
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBARRR

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

H1 it ARETT ARETTT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB K& 6 45,768 40,685
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 6(b) 22,852 19,214
Investment properties HEME 7 94,050 96,700
Deferred tax assets R IAE E 22 142,138 102,947
An investment accounted for using % B #2555 R IR &
the equity method 8 20,042 =
Total non-current assets EMEBEERE 324,850 259,546
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments for leasehold land HE T BN FIB 9 192,758 443,330
Properties held or under RELEXRABEREFEME
development for sale 10 6,961,071 5,104,128
Trade and other receivables and 2 5 I H th JE U 5018
prepayments T8 I8 11 275,865 299,183
Prepaid income taxes TSR 74,615 55,119
Contract assets AEREE 5,769 4,005
Financial assets at fair value EAFEEBES ARD
through profit or loss TREE 12 133 181
Restricted cash X PR HIR & 13(b) 119,002 115,740
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBCEEY 13(a) 554,504 245,157
Total current assets mEEELE 8,183,717 6,266,843
Total assets wWEE 8,508,567 6,526,389

2020 Annual Report
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BARR R

As at 31 December

M12831H
2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
K it AR¥ T ARMTF T
EQUITY =
Share capital fig A& 14 10,645 10,645
Share premium 1% 0 & (B 14 299,188 299,188
Retained earnings REBEF 15 1,022,188 752,291
Other reserves H A% B 16 167,938 153,824
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ ZARA A A A &5 25
Company 1,499,959 1,215,948
Non-controlling interests FE1E IR 1 = 38 30,131 17,551
Total equity 4R 1,530,090 1,233,499
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Bank borrowings RITE R 17 29,000 —
Other long-term borrowings Hi R EER 19 212,377 432,348
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFHIBBAE 22 16,699 13,139
Lease liabilities HEaE 6(b) 18,336 16,223
Total non-current liabilities EME BE R 276,412 461,710

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBARRR

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
2020F 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iikz3 AR¥ T ARETFor
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowings RITE R 17 110,000 291,000
Other current borrowings H b B HA 18 5K 18 64,640 —
Current portion of other long-term Hih REEB RO o
borrowings 19 136,000 342,752
Contract liabilities ERAE 20 3,877,453 2,702,327
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A A R IE 21 2,081,117 1,114,038
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFR 15 T B & 426,729 377,855
Lease liabilities HEAE 6(b) 6,126 3,208
Total current liabilities mE B ERRE 6,702,065 4,831,180
Total liabilities waE 6,978,477 5,292,890
Total equity and liabilities HEZKEE 8,508,567 6,526,389

F125E 2748 W iR A& B 1% 7R 3= E 102021
F3A2HEARREESHE  BEAE
FERRAREAETIALTRERZE:

The consolidated financial statements on page 125 to 274 were
approved by the board of directors on 25 March 2021 and the
consolidated statement of financial position was signed on its
behalf by:

Li Xiaobing Wang Zhenfeng
Z NIk -
Director Director
EE EFE

bt A M AR KR ERBEN RS T
BRI E—HRIE -

The above consolidated statement of financial position should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

2020 Annual Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

Year ended 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

K1 it ARETT ARET T

Revenue A 23 2,422,051 1,974,060
Cost of sales 5 & B AR 25 (1,643,090) (1,208,771)
Gross profit EF 778,961 765,289
Fair value (losses)/gains on REMENRAFE

investment properties (B8 = 7 (3,811) 4,484
Selling and marketing expenses HERMISEERX 25 (101,981) (63,502)
Administrative expenses THRAX 25 (132,132) (90,558)
Net impairment losses on financial & &t & E R E E 8% 58

assets 25 (694) (44,771)
Other income Bk A 1,096 -
Other (losses)/gains — net Hi (BB Kaz — F58 24 (20,627) 19,581
Operating profit &K FE 520,812 590,523
Finance income B 75 A 26 1,414 1,230
Finance costs B 755 Bk 7R 26 (10,876) (73,861)
Finance costs — net BHAE — FE (9,462) (72,631)

Share of results of an investment FEE R B EREESIRS

accounted for using the equity "EXEE

method 8 - (548)
Profit before income tax R B 48 B A0 R 8 511,350 517,344
Income tax expense FTis % X 29 (228,759) (226,579)
Profit for the year F R F 282,591 290,765

1 28 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 December

MW12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iikz3 AR¥FT ARETFor
Attributable to: T BTN
Owners of the Company 2NN BN 284,011 293,040
Non-controlling interests FE VR IR #E = (1,420) (2,275)
282,591 290,765
Earnings per share attributable ZXATEEAEBEEREF
to the owners of the Company (LAR®RR)
(expressed in RMB)
— Basic and diluted earnings per — BREARAREERF
share 30 0.24 0.24

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the

consolidated financial statements.

Lt AR BB 25K FE B BE P 47 A B 75 R
B SE— GFBIAE -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHEWE

Year ended 31 December

MW12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMTF T
Profit for the year FRFHE 282,591 290,765
Other comprehensive income Ht 2 E KA
— Jtem that will not be reclassified —TERERET D EZEm
subsequently to profit or loss #9715 B
— Revaluation surplus upon transfer of an —¥XTEAVEERAERE
owner-occupied property to investment YRR B A % (0B
property, net of tax i 18) - 7,459
Total comprehensive income for the year, FRZHEW A B
net of tax ({0 RBRBLIA) 282,591 298,224
Attributable to: THEFE:
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIEZ F SN 284,011 300,499
Non-controlling interests JEVE R E S (1,420) (2,275)
282,591 098,224

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to

the consolidated financial statements.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

HRHE—HBIE -

bR a2 HE EREEENSA B



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREER

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEEARE
Non-
Share Share  Retained Other controlling Total
capital  premium  earnings  reserves  Sub-fofal interests equity
Bx ROEE REBENM  HeEE N FERESR BiEn
Notes — RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBU00
Wit AEEFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFI ARETT
At 1 January 2019 R2019F151R 10,645 299,188 549,035 118,821 977,689 19,826 997,515
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profit for the year ERHE - — 293040 — M0 25 290765
Other comprehensive income Et2ERA - - - 7,459 7,459 - 7,459
Total comprehensive income ER2EANAEE
for the year = = 293,040 7,459 300,499 (2,275) 298,224
Transactions with owners AEBANRE
2018 final dividend 018EXHMK S 31 = = (62,240) = (62,240) = (62,240)
Appropriation to statutory reserves ERZETEHE 16 - - (75 27544 - - -
Total transactions with owners REARZEE - - (89,784 2754 (62,240) - (62,240)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%125318 10,645 299,188 752,291 163,824 1,215,948 17,951 1,233,499

2020 Annual Report
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meEREER

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARRARE

Non-
Share Share  Retained Other controlling Total
capital  premium  earnings  reserves  Sub-total interests equity
kx  ROEE REERN HHRE Nt OFEREE  AER
Notes  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wi ARETR ARBTR ARETE AREFL AREFZ AREFL ARETR

At 1 January 2020 R2020%1A1A 10,645 299,188 752,291 153,824 1,215,948 17,551 1,233,499
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profit for the year ERHE - - 284011 - 284011 (1,420 282,591
Transactions with owners REBANRE
Appropriation to statutory reserves ERZETRE 16 - - (14114 14,114 = - -
Capital contributions from non-controling ~ FF#2 R & i+ &

shareholders - - - - - 14,000 14,000
Total transactions with owners REARZAE - - (14114 14114 - 14,000 14,000
At 31 December 2020 20205125318 10,645 299,188 1,022,188 167,938 1,499,959 30,131 1,530,090
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should LA ST RIEERBENN E S T
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the mMEMN T —FRE -

consolidated financial statements.

1 32 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December

MW12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥FT ARMF T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMBEERE
Net cash generated from operations EBEARS IFE
(Note 32(a)) (K1 7£32(a) 1,180,463 45,591
Interest paid B & (47,865) (55,479)
PRC income tax paid ERTHRBFTER (155,786) (96,849)
PRC land appreciation tax paid B A B -t 3B (A B (79,226) (30,099)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEFEHEL (FFH)
operating activities REFHE 897,586 (136,836)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHMERERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BWELZME (12,494) (6,167)
Increase in investment properties & Y EE M (1,161) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand HEWE  BERREFRS
equipment (Note 32(c)) KIE (M1 i232(c) 17 48
Temporary funding provided to third parties ME=ZFIRHEERES (23,817) —
Repayments received from third parties B8 =7 WE A E &K 20,010 —
Prepayments of equity acquisition J% 2 Ui B8 TE {5 5K 1B (84,900) —
Investment in an associate &% & B 2 N A (18,042) (24,000)
Cash proceeds from disposal of an associate T EE & XA aHE S
P15 R I8 - 24,000
Interest received B4 F B 1,414 1,230
Restricted cash deposits 2RI TR (3,262) 10,188
Net cash (used in)/generated from BREEE(FTA) EE
investing activities ReRE (122,235) 5,299

2020 Annual Report

“ERCREER



134

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

Year ended 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFor
Cash flows from financing activities METEMSRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEKPTIERIE 139,000 342,000
Repayments of bank borrowings EEBRITIERK (291,000) (276,000)
Proceeds from borrowings from non-financial & & 3F & &l # # & 5 5
institutions FT 155838 - 71,412
Repayments of borrowings from non-financial & & 3k & raﬁ T 18 18 3K
institutions (426,723) (141,822)
Temporary funding received from related KEMBITNERE S
parties (Note 35(b)(i) (B 735(b)()) 222,002 —
Repayments to a related party (Note 35(b)(ii) 7 BBt 77 18 3X (H1 72 35(b)(ii) (219,090) —
Temporary funding from third parties REB=ZFHNBREES 190,500 =
Repayments to third parties ME=FHEX (109,627) (3,321)
Temporary funding received from minority RELERENGERE 2
shareholders 25,910 30,900
Capital injection from non-controlling EERRERFE
shareholders 8,000 =
Payments of lease liabilities TRHEEAE (4,976) (3,662)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company ENARAEHEEAKRE - (62,315)
Net cash used in financing activities METBAAREFR (466,004) (42,808)
Net increase/(decrease) incashandcash BREREESZEEY
equivalents g, R BE 309,347 (174,345)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F£#13R & IR & EEY 245,157 419,502
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year FEAE L RELEZEEY
(Note 13) (Kt &E13) 554,504 245,157

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited (Cayman
Islands Company Number: 313570, the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 22 July 2016 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in property development
business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 12 November 2018 (the “Listing”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

e PR RRME

—REH

BEEEBRER)BERARHA=E
B AR # 5 313570 ' [ARQ AR
2016F7H22R £ [ & B & & it X
VREREBRAT o Haf#ts
Bz b 4iF & Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

ARAB—RREERRDF - AR
AREMBLAR(MEAIAEE]
T2EPEARAMBEIRED I

AN TR D R2018E11 B12B N &
BHAXSHER QA (B AT
EFREWTEMD -

BRIESZBER KT BEHRK TN
ARBETITEY -

EXEHBEBRE

AWEHImBEZERAMBHRE
BRARANERSFERR -B2H
BN WERRERMBEINF
EEBER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i)

(i)

Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“HKCO”)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and disclosure requirements
of the HKCO (Cap. 622).

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
followings:

e financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss — measured at fair value through profit
or loss, and

° investment properties — measured at fair

value

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs require the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

2 ERERHEMEE)

21 HEEEE

()

(ii)

BrEEUBHEER
(BB BHEER )R
EBAAFH([EERE
1% 611) 19 # & B K

RAMBHRRERERE
MR ELENREF AR QA
& BI (F & E DI E622F) #)
BRERTERH

EL KA EH

RAMBHRREREESL
RAREERFER  LTAR
B 51 -

e BAFEBBERA
FHNEREE — A
FEEBEBERE
54

s REWE - ZHAFVE

ite

RENATERBRESE
Al 4R & M MR AER
FETHREHE TH
EEEERRAAKSES
AT ERSRROBRZ TP MR T -
R A B = K H B Sk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii) New standard, and amendments of
HKFRSs effective in 2020

The Group has applied the following new standard
and amendments for the first time for its annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:

° Definition of Material — amendments to HKAS
1 and HKAS 8

° Definition of a Business — amendments to
HKFRS 3

° Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

° Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting

° Covid-19-related Rent Concessions —
amendments to HKFRS 16

The amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

e PR RRME

2 EXEEREBMEA)

21 EBEE(E)

(iii) 20204 4 3 B9 F7 5T R 42 15

FEBHMBHREER

7N £ B B R2020F1A1A B 14
MEERESHANEXER T
R MAERT AN

. BAMEE - BHEIE
RIZE15 RE B RS
89% (& T 40)

s XBHMEER - BEVK®R
FERE3E (BRI A)

s FREENE - FEYH
HREEBFIN - FE G
%R F395% M FE B M 75 W
FERNETR(EFTA)

s MHHmEMNKEITMSE

g&

e HCovid-19HAMNE 2 &
E-EFAVBHREENRE
165% (1 7T 4)

EE ET I B A 1 B AR
WEBEKRTANZE  BHAT
NS 3 A B ] SRR 2R B RO K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 EXEEREBMEA)

21 RREE(H)

(iv) i K EFRA B & BRI &
B R Z FTERI R A5 AT

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv) New standard and amendments of HKFRSs
not yet adopted

AN A&E %M E I & RKR2020F
12A31E R EH MR B EXE
REXAEBRERMANITT G5
EHI MR- BHZEELT
eHAHMN AR RABNEE
ARAIE R KRR 5 E K E

B2 48R
RN & o

The following new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2020 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards are not expected to have
a material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after
RUTBEEH
ZERBN
FEHBEX

HKFRS 17
B S 1 RS LR E175R
Amendments to HKAS 16

QLR F16%5 (55T A)
Amendments to HKAS 37

B8 @ R BO7H (55T &)
Amendments to HKFRS 3

B 7 B 3R o 2 B 35K (15 4T %)
Amendments to HKAS 1

BB G ERIF15R
Improvements to HKFRSs

BAMBHRELA ZBEEE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

EBPEREE
| 528

EERF105 RE B
2 5T £ Rl 55285

> (15 5T )

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

Insurance Contracts

REEE L

Property, Plant and Equipment
— proceeds before intended use

mE - WENKSZE — ERERER
T 13 2R

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

BEEH — BITEAKMKR

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

HESERR R

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

HEEDEARBARIIERBEE

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2018-2020

¥20184F £2020F B B M B & %
Al 2 F E g

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

KEEEABE R ARG EREZ
HOWEELHES FE

1 January 2023
2023F1H1H
1 January 2022
2022F1H18
1 January 2022

2022 1A18
1 January 2022

2022%F1H1H
1 January 2023

2023%1H1H
1 January 2022

2022F1H1H

To be determined

N

FE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHHEBEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries 2.2 BT

2.2.1 Consolidation 22145 58KH

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of financial position
respectively.

WEBAREAEEHESRZ
FIENFTEER(RELE
)  BASEARLE
ELHEBERATESMHAEMD
®OBBEEENBEBEESE
BERIHNENTEZRS
O] 3k b5 - Bl 2N £ B 47 &) 3%
TS o KB A A) AR E G M
EREASEZAZHELR
AAE - HE QA EEH
ERIEZBEELESEAA
BE o

SEARAMBRS &8
A Ko &= B R A ) 2 5 P
EEMNRER K@Y TN
B RERMNEIRIME
L RIERFRERHAE
BEELBRRBEZRRE M
VE - IMBRAMNEFK
REFHRBUFTELRE
2 5K AR EY KSR

MEBAREAE DI
TR RN EABRER
EHREER - BREHRK
K F 15 R 2R o Bl B L

ER I
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting, after
initially being recognised at cost. Under the
equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group, the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement,
and fair value of any pre-existing equity
investment in the subsidiary. ldentifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

2 EXEEREBMEA)

2.2 WEBRATE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHHEBEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 fEAR (&)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 22145 85K E (&)

@ REEGE)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

R £ B 4 M B M RE &
R BT T
EEZEE: E T
BIWEERERSR
ARENEREER
THFTEFHFBEAR
BRERLISEE
ENFEE AR
FEIRARHEEE
R B U R T AT
HEFEENER T
BLLBImEt & - JRHE
PSR PTE H Al
B BB o3 4% We B B H A9
NFEFE KREE
BHBHREERRE
BANEMETEREE

FTHE e
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as WHE B BN R E A
incurred. B4 o

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of

X% & 0o ba B e
ToWBLZAKA

the acquirer’s previously held equity interest B 4 W B 7 AR HE A UK
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value EHHEEAENWE
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses BERIE AR FEEHGT

arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

B ZEHEEL
M sk BERNER

Any contingent consideration to be AEBKTEENE
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair Ak ARERUER
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent B N FEER - ®
changes to the fair value of the contingent RIEEESAER K
consideration that is deemed to be an asset RREQAFEHER

or liability is recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

EHRNERER - H
L ELET
SE S E AT gn
AL N B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

®)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the
net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
statement of profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. It means
the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specifically permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). Since the majority of the assets and
operations of the Group are located in the PRC,
the financial information is presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency of the
Group.

2 EXEEREBMEA)

2.2 MtELATE(4E)

221 %5 5KH (&)

) HLEHEA]
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RERNTMAREE
mRAKERGIEER
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RYVERREE ° 1IN
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EEERLERHE
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fio 2 ER AR E
BEEREEVBR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, within “Finance income or expenses”.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within “Other (losses)/gains — net”.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

() assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position are translated at the closing
rate;

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies (continued)

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rate; and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as executive directors that makes
strategic decisions.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHEHEBEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 ¥k - MERRE (&)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Motor vehicles 4 years
— Furniture, fittings and 5 years
equipment

— Electronic devices 3-5 years

— Buildings 20 years

— Leasehold improvements the shorter of lease
terms or useful
lives

The assets’ residual value and useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised as
“Other (losses)/gains — net” in the statement of profit or
loss.
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e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHHEBEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 FFHEMBPHFENE

2.6 Properties held or under development for sale

Properties held or under development for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Development cost of properties comprises cost of
land use rights (including land auction price, other
demolition cost to acquire land and resettlement
housing construction costs after deducting related
government grants), construction costs and borrowing
costs incurred during the construction period. Upon
completion, the properties under development are
transferred to properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion.

Properties held or under development for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction
period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group. It also includes properties
that are being constructed or developed for future use
as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties
when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases
concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined by
management of the Group at each reporting date
taking into account of any available valuation results
performed by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in
the statement of profit or loss as a separate line item.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHHEBEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Land use rights 2.8 tihfE ARk

Land in mainland China is state-owned and no
individual land ownership right exists. The Group
acquired the rights to certain land, and the premiums
paid for such rights are recorded as land use rights.
Land use rights are classified and accounted for
in accordance with the intended use of respective
properties as erected on the land.

For properties that are held for own use, corresponding
land use rights are regarded as right-of-use assets, and
are stated at cost and amortised over the use terms
using the straight-line method.

For properties that are under development and held for
sale, corresponding land use rights are accounted for
as part of the development costs, and are accounted
for in accordance with the policy stated in Note 2.6.

For properties that are held as investment properties,
corresponding land use rights are accounted for as
part of the costs, and are accounted for in accordance
with the policy stated in Note 2.7.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting

date.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

2101 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive

income, or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHHEBEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets 210 R EREMERMEE(HF)
(continued)

2101 Classification (continued) 2101 2 2 (4&)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
debt instruments, this will depend on the business
model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“OCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

2102 Recognition and measurement
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group
classified its debt instruments into the following
measurement category:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHHEBEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets 210 R EREMERMEE(HF)
(continued)

2102 7 A &t B (%)

2102 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established. Changes
in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in other
gains/(losses) — net in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income are
not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

2103 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
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income. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk, Note 3.1(b) details how
the Group determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

2103 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value of
all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the
financial assets.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted
by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the assets. The provision matrix is determined
based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the contract assets and trade
receivables with similar credit risk characteristics
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

Impairment on other receivables are measured as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. If a significant increase
in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 EXEEREBMEA)

21 EHEEMEERERS

2.11 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in statements of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
relevant company or the counterparty.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for properties sold, leasing of properties or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13 Contract assets and liabilities and cost for

obtaining contracts

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the
Group obtains rights to receive consideration from
the customer and assumes performance obligations
to transfer goods or services to the customer.
The combination of those rights and performance
obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net liability
depending on the relationship between the remaining
rights and the performance obligations. The contract
is an asset and recognised as contract asset if
the measure of the remaining conditional rights to
consideration exceeds the satisfied performance
obligations. Conversely, the contract is a liability
and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure
of the remaining performance obligations exceeds
the measure of the remaining rights. Costs such as
stamp duty and sales commissions incurred directly
attributable to obtaining a contract, if recoverable, are
capitalised and recorded in contract assets.

For contracts where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised
property is different, the transaction price is adjusted
for the effects of a financing component, if significant.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated and
Company’s statements of financial position, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

e PR RRME

2 EXEEREBMEA)

2.15 A

EBRERAERS  BITHK
MABREEZREBOIEEN
AR HE s 57K & B P75 3R
B WL B A H0RL ©

2.16 &£

BRERNIRAFEFGKEE
ERRZRA)ER - EREE
REEH A AR o TS 50R (30
B S AR) B g OB E M &
MEBRDRABEEREMNB AR B
KB EESR TARER -

RERBREAMELEDHEH
REMBERT  RRLZEFRE
EXNMERDEARERR
SRAE - EWBERT  ZERB
BELEERMERELR - £

Brlgeaf ok 2 2R MM B R
T ZERBRENERRY
B2 RBOBMNRE X RHE
MHEA R E B A T IA B -

BROEAKEAEREENKER
BENEERTEEREMREE
b+—ER BRAERIER
mEAIE -

2020 Annual Report
—B-BEER

157



158

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowings
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

2 EXEEREBMEA)

217 B AR

AR EEXEESERE
ECENVARE KRBT AIERE
AEHENEE) MERES
B — MR B TE B SRR S 5RO BX
FEENRA BEEZEER
AEAMEREREGRBERL -

TERRBGRECEREE
B 5 X B AR E B IR B PR IS
MEERAGEREREANL
B 8 KA AR R AR -

PR B A8 SRR AR T I EE A B
RBAAEN B ER -

BEERHEMEMNRE

EHORNRERRAREELB
TR R R A S SRS
B AE - HABKRR IR
—FHzRA(HNBBRRFEH -
AIA—REEBHAE) B -
BEHREMENREAD BRI
BRE SAERFERBEE
25 -

BoREMENRBONFER
FEER EEREXBERNE
SRR BHR NG E -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, and the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference
for associates. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Employee benefits

2.21

In accordance with the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group
participate in various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under which the
Group and the PRC based employees are required to
make monthly contributions to these plans calculated
as a percentage of the employees’ salaries, subject to
a certain ceiling.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired PRC based employees payable under
the plans described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation for
the payment of retirement and other post-retirement
benefits of its employees. The assets of these plans
are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administrated funds managed by the
PRC government.

The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHHEBEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 %15 (&)

2.21 Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.22 Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.

Financial guarantee are initially measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee liabilities. After
initial recognition, such contracts are measured at the
higher of the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9 and the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation of income
recognised in accordance with HKFRS 15. The fair
value of financial guarantees is determined as the
present value of the difference in net cash flows
between the contractual payments under the debt
instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from the
consolidated statements of financial position when, and
only when, the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expired.

BETRBABAN EIZEME
TEEMTHAXNBETE
ZBANERBRMSERHE
BKEHEENTELRZEEN
B E R B o [ B A A 3 A0
MBBER/NERAX -

222K IEREME

IF?

MBERAHONBITEREE
RRMBAE -

MBERODLRIFEMEL
MBERABERELENRS
OAEHE - RAVIARERIR - %
FRRDNERBEESUHRE
EHFORBENBERES
BRENEEREBUARSER
B)RERBEE BV B RS EL
1657 B 3 A0 W A R Gt B 56 5T
E-WHBERNRFEDETE
RARREBEEBEIAELNSRM
RRERBERTHAEELD
NHMEZENFREREE
BMHBRE A AEEEMA
RARFE=N NG -

MBERABEEEEART
RAHETCHEREHKER
BT RERAM RN RFLLE
MR -

2020 Annual Report
—B-BEER

163



164

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales of
properties and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of discounts
and after eliminating sales with the Group companies.

(a) Sales of properties

Revenues are recognised when or as the control
of the asset is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the
asset may transfer over time or at a point in time.
Control of the asset is transferred over time if the
Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer; or

° creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

e do not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a) Sales of properties (continued)

(b)

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation is measured based on
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation, by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for
each contract.

For property development and sales contract for
which the control of the property is transferred
at a point in time, revenue is recognised when
the property is accepted by the customer, or
deemed as accepted according to the contract,
which is the point in time when the customer has
the ability to direct the use of the property and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
of the property, and the Group has present right
to payment and the collection of consideration is
probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effect of a financing component if it is
significant.

Rental income
Rental income from properties being let under

operating leases is recognised on a straight line
basis over the lease terms.

2.24 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to properties held or under
development for sales are presented in the statement
of financial position by deducting the grants in arriving
at the assets’ carrying amounts and are credited to
the statement of profit or loss upon the sales of the
properties.

2.26 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHHEBEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.261HE (#&)

2.26 Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26 Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

e any initial direct costs, and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHHEBEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.261HE (#&)

2.26 Leases (continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise motor vehicles.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets are
included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of
adopting the new leasing standard.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.28 Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

e by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

° the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Where the number of ordinary shares outstanding
increases as a result of a capitalisation, bonus
issue or share split, or decreases as a result of a
reverse share split, the calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share for all periods presented
will be adjusted retrospectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 EXEEREBMEA)

2.29 %3 B iRk

2.29 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
also required in accordance with Note 2.9.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks comprising market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, fair value interest rate risk and cash
flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

RHB AR MR E R KR E
BMEIE RABERENE
ERBRA - ARAIEE R K
@S-y SN NI
AR -

fisd B B BB )48 B UEL BN B B
T R AR B H %M B LR
By 2 O AR - 3K (8 Bl B
BHRENREREEBLES
MBEHRRATERERANE
EFEEREFB)INKREME"
81 78 70 U B B B B B B )
BEETRERD -

HBRR MR EIE LR
2. 9EITRIERA -

3 SRERER

31 SREARESE

AEBBSHERZRERER -
BEMSER(BEINERR -
D EFERRE R &R ERE R
XEk) FERRERBDES
Bk - AEENEERRE R
B FaE kA iRl RN
A YHAOKHAEER K
RENBEREAYERERKE -

2020 Annual Report
—B-BEER

171



172

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is engaged in the development,
sale and management of properties solely
in the PRC with almost all transactions
denominated in RMB. In addition, the majority
of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. Accordingly, the Group
is not exposed to significant foreign currency
risk, except for certain bank deposits
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”).

Fluctuation of the exchange rates for HKD
against RMB will affect the Group’s result
of operations. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management closely monitors the
foreign exchange exposure and will take
actions when necessary.

As at 31 December 2020, if HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against RMB,
all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit of the Group for the year 2020 would
have been lower/higher by RMB40,000 (2019:
post-tax profit lower/higher by RMB127,000),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange loss/
gain from bank deposits denominated in HKD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. Except for bank
deposits with stable interest rates, the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing
assets.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest
rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings
from banks and non-bank third party
lenders. Borrowings at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. The Group has
not hedged its cash flow or fair value interest
rate risk. The interest rates and terms of
repayments of borrowings are disclosed in
Note 17, Note 18 and Note 19.

Management does not anticipate significant
impact to interest-bearing assets resulting
from changes in interest rates, as the interest
rates of bank deposits are not expected to
change significantly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

The Group’s profit or loss are sensitive
to higher/lower interest expenses from
borrowings at floating rates as a result of
changes in interest rates.
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Impact on post-tax profit

HHREAMNBHNEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETFor
Interest rates — increase by FlE — b FB50MEE 2

50 basis points (96) (1,069)
Interest rates — decrease by AE — TRE50ME &

50 basis points 96 1,069

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. The carrying amounts of bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, contract
assets and financial guarantee contracts included
in the consolidated statements of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Bank deposits

Cash transactions are limited to high-credit-
quality financial institutions. The table below
shows the bank deposit balances as at 31
December 2020 and 2019:
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As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARET T

Counterparty HFH
— Deposits in the four major — RHPEMNKEERT
state-owned banks of the B 17 7K
PRC 460,418 195,407
— Deposits in other listed banks — B E A FHR1T
of the PRC CORERN 97,235 101,842
— Deposits in other banks — REMBITHFRK 115,457 63,163
673,110 360,412
Management does not expect any losses from EEEBRHTIEHE
non-performance of these counterparties. ZEHFHARELD
imEEFEMBRANE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)~ Financial guarantees

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales are made to purchasers with an
appropriate financial strength and appropriate
percentage of down payments. The Group
has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of the Group’s property units and
provided guarantees to secure obligations
of such purchasers for repayments. If a
purchaser defaults on the payment of its
mortgage loan during the guarantee period,
the bank holding the guarantee may demand
the Group to repay the outstanding principal
of the loan and any interest accrued thereon.
Under such circumstances, the Group
is entitled to take over the legal title and
possession of the related properties after
the relevant legal procedures to recover any
amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In
this regard, the directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Financial guarantees (continueq)

The Group has granted a guarantee to
an associated company (Note 34(b)). If
the associated company defaults on the
repayment of loans to major shareholder
on schedule, the major shareholder of the
associated company might demand the
Group to repay certain outstanding balance
and interests accrued thereon. Under such
circumstances, the Group is entitled to
obtain future repayment from the associated
company through sales of its properties under
development or properties held for sales. The
directors consider the associate company has
sufficient assets for the repayment so that the
credit risk is limited.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach
to providing for expected losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected losses provision for all trade
receivables and contract assets.

3 TEEREEE)

31 LEERREEE)

(b) 1=E /(&)

(i)

(i)

B HIER ()

AEBECERAEBKZ
N AR R R
34(b)) ° fisi B & A B
B X ERRE
BER ZBEQA
MEBEBRRAGES
KAEBEEESR TR
EESERNERAE -
EEBERAT A&H
EREBHERET
MERFHELEME
) Bt & 2 B BX 15 R 2K
BREB - BEFRA
2 RNERARHE
EEN BREERR
BR -

EBEZENZKELE R
BE

AEBERABLRZX
LB B MRS £ R
FOR P AR E B TR B
BRAIERE ZE
ARFREEMAE
FRRFEIRAERE
EEREBEFHNE
HEEERS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivables
and contract assets to ensure the adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amount. Credit is only granted to tenants with
sufficient financial strength. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
Therefore, credit risks of the Group from sales
of properties and lease of properties are
limited.

The loss allowance provision for those
balance was not material for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

Other receivables (excluding prepaid tax and
surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)

The Group closely monitors these other
receivables to ensure actions are taken to
recover these balances in the case of any risk
of default.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(iv) Other receivables (excluding prepaid tax and

surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)
(continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on
the asset as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition.
The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables
impacting credit risk and expected loss. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating
e external credit rating

e actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations

e actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the borrower

e PR RRME

3 TEEREEE)

31 LEERREEE)

(b) 1=E /(&)

(iv)

A JERHE(TE
AN E LA E
LA R T 4[5 49 55 18 )
(%)

REREHE A&
EZEBEREE
By & AR A K13
BERBESHEKNE
g BB EEER

RERBEIEM K
SEBEERE®RER
A RELR KRR
VB ERBHNED
R EITLH & - K&
BEEETEEL DN

THREYEEZERR

RIEBHBEENEEL
EEH - AEBEEZE
THESHNAERA
BEXHEMAETENEE
B BHEERET
HIFEAZ -

M B 15 A A AR
o SNEREHRTR

e HEHEBHER
ABITEHEAED
EhEEERE
:00

REBERANE
%iﬁ%EKT
72 B

. ERAMEBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(iv) Other receivables (excluding prepaid tax and
surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)
(continued)

e significant increases in credit risk on
other financial instruments of the same
debtor

e significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status
of debtor in the Group and changes in
the operating results of the debtor

A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 365 days of when they fall
due.

The Group uses four categories for other
receivables (excluding prepaid tax and
surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)
which reflect their credit risk and how the
loss provision is determined for each of those
categories. These internal credit risk ratings
are aligned to external credit ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(OS]

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(iv) Other receivables (excluding prepaid tax and
surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)

(continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning
the Group’s expected credit loss model is as

follows:

Category
5l

Group definition of category

% 5 19 A B R E

e PR RRME

TR EkREE (A

31 LEERRERH)
(b) =5 /@ (&)

(iv) E b e E (T &
FETE T F B K B 0 E
LA K% B 4 5] 9 15 (8 B )
(&)

THEAEEBEHEE
BEERANBRIBE
N

Basis for recognition of
expected credit loss provision

BRAMGCEGRBENESE

Performing
EH

Underperforming
7Pz

Non-performing

!

Write-off

Customers have a low risk of
default and a strong capacity to
meet contractual cash flow
ERFENRBRE WEAEAR
/%E/\Hfzgui//wia}],\j]

Receivables for which there is a
significant increase in credit risk;
as significant increase in credit
risk presumed if interest and/or
principal repayments are more than
30 days past due

JEWFRIR S K Y15 B bR AR 0
() B fief ) 2 &/&K%ﬁfkﬁﬁﬂ
8 3@30K A T8 A{E & & g X 08 15
pill

Interest and/or principal
repayments are more than 365
days past due

MER /A&

B B365K

Interest and/or principal
repayments are more than 2

years past due and there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery
FER /A ERBEBB2F -
I B & 3% 78 B & 1 B

12 months expected losses.
Where the expected lifetime of

an asset is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime.
TEET12EANERE - MEEMNTE
HFEHILMN2E R - BIEREER
HEHF M & o

Lifetime expected losses
REFHANTEREE

Lifetime expected losses
BEFHHRNKHTERSE

Asset is written-off
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(iv) Other receivables (excluding prepaid tax and

surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)
(continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected losses
on a timely basis. In calculating the expected
credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

The Group writes off those receivables, in
whole or in part, when it has exhausted
all practical recovery efforts and has
concluded there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include
ceasing enforcement activity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 TrRIEREEGE
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 LRAREEE)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEEE (&)
(iv) Other receivables (excluding prepaid tax and (iv) E A fEWKFE (T &
surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable) 15 BT BB K E
(continued) LA % B] Y [5] B 12 (B F )
(#&)

As at 31 December 2020, the loss allowance 7R 2020F 12 A31H -
provision was determined as follows: EEBHEETOT

As at 31 December 2020
R2020F12A31H

Carrying
Gross amount (net
Expected Carrying of impairment
Loss Rate Amount provision)
iR B (4 F&
HHBAE REAE HERE)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFT AREFTT ARETRT

Current BN H 0.11%-1.34% 95,485 94,936
More than 30 days past due i H B30k 0.5%-1.34% 26,237 26,081
More than 365 days past due & H 18365 20.0% 1,153 922
More than 2 years past due BB M E 100.0% 55,926 -

178,801 121,939
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(iv) Other receivables (excluding prepaid tax and

surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the loss allowance
provision was determined as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

Tl E ke (A

31 LREREEE)

(b) 1=E k(&)

(iv)

H ERFE(TE
AT E LA E
LA R BT 4 [5] 649 35 18 )
(%)

M2019%F12 A318 -
BEEEREE TN
T

As at 31 December 2019
M2019F12A31R
Carrying
Gross amount (net

Expected Carrying  of impairment
Loss Rate Amount provision)

REEME

BHBELE EHAE W E R )

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ANEEFT AREFn AREFT

Current B EA 0.1% 201,077 200,876
More than 30 days past due o HA 8 30K 0.5% 39,328 39,131
More than 365 days past due 1) HR iR 18365K 20.0% 1,652 1,322
More than 2 years past due B HARR B A 100.0% 55,440 -
297,497 241,329

The allowance recognised in profit or loss for
impairment losses on financial assets for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are

disclosed in Note 25.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3 TREREEGE)

31 LEERREEE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims to maintain
sufficient cash through internally generated sales
proceeds and an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet its operation needs and
commitments in respect of property projects.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

(c) HEEZLEME

REBEREBEESAEBNR
HEEMSRER T D
ARG EEREREREN
REURMETHEYEEED
& BT KA o

TRDBEREEREA
BEBHBEHRGEBE &
R EBAR DT AE R
CHmEE - RAREENS
AAERARMERERE -

>

DYr}

Between Between
Within 1and 2 2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
1R 1226 2Z5% 5#H0 L # 5t
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ABEFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFZT
As at 31 December 2020  142020%12A31H
Bank borrowings RITER 110,000 - 29,000 - 139,000
Interest payments on bank R 1T FAY
borrowings R MR 6,120 2,068 470 - 8,658
Trade and other payables BoREMEFNTIE 1,811,525 - - - 1,811,525
Other long-term borrowings ~ E i & Ei 3 136,000 90,377 122,000 - 348,377
Interest payments on other ~ E b & B £ )
long-term borrowings R MR 33,932 8,988 6,420 - 49,340
Other current borrowings Hit R B a5 64,640 - - - 64,640
Interest payments on other ~ E 4% &) £ 54
current borrowings FERR 11,460 - - - 11,460
Lease liabilities BEAE 6,126 4,348 11,894 6,782 29,150
2,179,803 105,781 169,784 6,782 2,462,150
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

3 FINANCIAL

RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial

risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

3 TEEREEE

31 LREREEE)

(c) HEBEZLEREE)

Between Between
Within 1and 2 2 and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
1ER 1526 2%5% 5FELE @
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12831A
Bank borrowings RITIEN 291,000 - - - 291,000
Interest payments on bank 1T K
borrowings FERR 10,423 - - - 10,423
Trade and other payables B o R E MR B 988,260 - - - 988,260
Other long-term borrowings ~ E R Ei {23 342,752 171,128 261,220 - 775,100
Interest payments on other ~ E fti & Hi fE 30 )
long-term borrowings GilBSXRE 46,548 16,861 21,419 - 84,828
Lease liabilities HEAR 4,207 3,982 8,629 6,533 23,371
1,683,210 191,971 291,268 6,583 2,172,982
Note: Interests on bank borrowings, long-term Bat: RITEHR REEX

borrowings and other current borrowings are
calculated based on borrowings held as at 31
December 2020 and 2019, respectively. Floating-
rate interests are estimated using the prevailing
interest rates as at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3 TEEREEE)

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEKRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings,
including interest bearing borrowings from related
parties and third parties, lease liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as total
equity, as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position, plus net debt.

AEBERERNBFREBR
AEBRFELE  UARRK
TRER LEFREEARR
BAR D EARRA -

BEBRBEELRE AR
BB TRRHR LS
B BT HTARD S i 4 A
W BT -

AEBNERLRSEEER
HER - ZLRZEBHFRE
NERBETE - MEBFE
mERAB(BERABE IR
F=ZNWEEER HERE
MR kReEFEYDAE
BERBRBAREA MM R
FIRRMHE s AR R 0 LB F R

| A
= B o
al 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2020 and 2019

were as follows:

3 TEEREEE

3.2 EXmfEE(H)

Rt

MR20204F 201912 A31B M i&

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFor
Borrowings (Note 17) &R aE17) 139,000 291,000
Other long-term borrowings (Note 19) Hib R HEE R Z19) 348,377 775,100
Other current borrowings (Note 18) HAiREVE K (M it 18) 64,640 —
Lease liabilities (Note 6(b)) HEBEMZ6M) 24,462 19,431
Total borrowings EREEE 576,479 1,085,531
Less: Cash and cash IR e MRS
equivalents (Note 13(a)) ZEBW(HF13() (554,504) (245,157)
Net debt B %5 21,975 840,374
Total equity Rz B 1,530,090 1,233,499
Total capital RNk 1,552,065 2,073,873
Gearing ratio s 1.42% 40.52%

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such
inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair

value hierarchy as follows:

— Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for =
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within =
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based =
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

See Note 7 for disclosures of the investment properties

that are measured at fair value.

e PR RRME

3 TEEREEE)

3.3 AFEMEH

TREAFEFENBERM
FIRBABBENERDITAS
BERAFEARNEZRIA-
BRAE A BRI IR T ATt m
DPEBEARTFERBEAN=E
J& 4%

REAEXRBENERT
5 LM HECRERE)(E
1) -

AAFIEAREAINE
EXBENABRE A
B AwmERENER K
M & (B 01 & B B 18) (%2
E)-

FERABEMSHED
BEESREHARERED
ABRE ABIR)(EIE) -

RATFEGENREDEHR
TR 2B -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E E2[E E3E Fo
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

ANEETT ANRETT ARETT ARETT

Financial assets at fair value BRAFEEBRER

through profit or loss ARHNERMEE
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 133 - - 133
At 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H 181 — — 181
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

3 TEEREEE

3.3 DF{EMGE (&)

Level 2 Level 3 Total
E2[E E3E Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB000

ANEETT ANRETT AEETT ARETT

Investment properties REME
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H - 94,050 94,050
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H = 96,700 96,700

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

As the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss held by the Group are security assets traded in
active market whose fair value is based on quoted
market price at reporting date. Therefore, they are
included in level 1.

The investment properties are not traded in active
markets nor does the fair value determined by
using valuation techniques that maximise the use of
observable market data. Therefore, they are included in
level 3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors
including expectation of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The management makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
outlined below.

e PR RRME

3 TEEREEE)

3.3 DF{EME (A)

HRASERANERFEE
BEDSARNEREESER
BMBEEBENESEE  EAQ
FEDLDRERBRSEHNTHS
WETE - B HEFHA S
g o

BREMEIFEERRMEBES
FBBRAREERAIBEM
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Ht - HEHAFEIE -

EEE T TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

41

4.2

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised over
time when the Group’s performance do not create
an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date; otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the buyer obtains
control of the completed property. The Group may not
change or substitute the property unit or redirect the
property unit for another use due to the contractual
restrictions with the customer and thus the property
unit does not have an alternative use to the Group.
However, whether there is an enforceable right to
payment depends on the terms of sales contract and
the interpretation of the applicable laws that apply to
the contract.

Development costs directly attributable to
property development activities

The Group estimates property construction costs upon
recognition of respective costs of sales. Such estimates
are substantiated by detailed budgetary information as
developed by the management, and will be assessed
periodically, as the constructions progress. Should
these estimates depart from their actual finalised costs,
such differences would affect the accuracy of costs of
sales recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.3

4.4

Provision for impairment of properties held or
under development for sale

The management makes provision for impairment of
properties held or under development for sale based
on the estimate of the net realisable amount of the
properties. Determination of net realisable amount of
the properties involved critical accounting estimates
on the selling price, variable selling expenses and the
estimated costs to completion. Management estimated
the selling price based on the prevailing market
conditions; the variable selling expenses based on
certain percentage of selling price; and the costs to
completion based on the project budget approved by
management. Given the volatility of the property market
in the PRC, the actual net realisable amount may be
higher or lower than the estimate made as at the end
of the reporting period. Any increase or decrease
in the provision would affect the Group’s operating
performance in future years.

Land appreciation tax of the PRC

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax
in the PRC. However, since the implementation
and settlement of the tax varies among various
tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount
of the land appreciation tax. The Group recognises
the land appreciation tax based on management’s
best estimates according to its understanding of the
interpretation of tax rules and latest practice of local
tax jurisdictions in the cities where the Group’s projects
are located. The final tax outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, and
these differences will impact the current income tax
and the deferred income tax provision in the periods
in which such taxes have been finalised with local tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.5

4.6

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income tax in the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for corporate income tax. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that we initially recorded,
such difference will impact the current income tax
and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for the properties with similar lease and
other contracts. In the absence of such information,
the management determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making
its estimation, the management considers information
from a variety of sources including:

(@) Current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject
to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to
reflect those differences;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.6 Fair value of investment properties (continued)

(o)

Recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and

Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the
term of any existing lease and other contract and
(where possible) from external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market assessment of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash
flows.

The Group assesses the fair value of its investment
properties based on valuations determined by
independent professional qualified valuers, which
were based on income approach and by reference to
comparable price in an active market.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the key assumptions
used by the valuer in determining fair value were as

e PR RRME

4 EEETHEHFR A (&)

4.6 REWMENDFEA)

(b) BAEEE T 5 PR U
WMERIHER (ZERS
ELAE  UARBRBERZ
EERETRINARE
REBEARNNEREBR) K&

© BREHRKRSAREBET
B B] 5E 7 7 T T8 ORI A9 RE 3R
Beng MzxEEAT
EREMIRAHELEHEA
B R AR & (A A] BE 1R
) ONE R (10 3 B %
A S AE R B BB LY X B B
mEEZ) YRARAR
RERDSHEXSEN
FERRESBRLIKRE
ETHEOMBRBREAGE -

AEERBBIEXAERM
EMERBNERZEERT
LEV AL BB T E E W A 1E
AEEREMENAFE-

MR20204F K% 2019512 A31H - {4
EMRETAFERFERNE

follows: BHREBOT
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
Term yield F HY o] ) K 3.5%-7.00%  3.5%-7.00%

Reversionary yield

18 7 [0l 3 %

4%-7.50% 4%—7.50%
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have been identified as the CODM.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the executive directors, which
are used to allocate resources and assess performance.

The Group is principally engaged in property development
in the PRC. The CODM reviews the operating results of
the business as one segment to make decision about
resources to be allocated. Revenue and profit after income
tax are the measures reported to the executive directors
for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

The major operating entities of the Group are domiciled in
the PRC. All of the Group’s revenue are derived in the PRC
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of non-current assets
of the Group were located in the PRC.

There was no revenue derived from a single external
customer that accounts for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenues for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

6 WX BMERKE

Furniture,
Motor Electronic fittings and Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices equipment improvements Total
B %8
L E RE Etih &L HEXE @it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
NRETL  AEETT  AREFn  AEETT  ARETn  AEETX
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1A1H
Cost BA 22,138 29,079 126 3,017 17217 78,577
Accumulated depreciation i fE (4,489 (24,520) (5,102) (2171) (1,264) (37,546)
Net hook amount BEFE 17,649 4,559 2,004 846 15,953 41,031
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019512A318
LEE
Opening net book amount ENRETE 17,649 4,559 2,024 846 15,953 41,031
Additions AE 10 1,642 1,370 354 2,791 6,167
Disposals Vot 32(¢)) NEWZ0) - (46) Q) - - 48
Transfer to investment ERERENE
properties (Nots 71b) (Witm) (155) - - - - (155)
Depreciation charge (Note 25) NEBRW#2) 017) (1,897) (1,104 (288) (2,104) (6,310)
Closing net book amount EXRERAE 16,587 4,258 2,288 912 16,640 40,685
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12531R
Cost A 21,993 30,675 8,494 3,371 20,008 84,541
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (5,406) (26,417) (6,206 (2,459) (3,368) (43,856)
Net book amount RERE 16,587 4,058 2,088 912 16,640 40,685
Year ended 31 December 2020 H 22020512 831A
[12:3:4
Opening net book amount ENEEEE 16,587 4,258 2,288 912 16,640 40,685
Additions AE - 5,598 2,478 994 3,424 12,494
Disposals (Nota 32(c)) HEWZ300) - (56) (65) (24) - (145)
Depreciation charge (\ote 25) WEERW22) (913) (1,755) (1,515) (335) (2,748) (7,266)
Closing net book amount EXREFE 15,674 8,045 3,186 1,547 17,316 45,768
At 31 December 2020 #2020512A31R
Cost A 21,993 34,177 8,804 4,033 23,432 92,639
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (6,319) 26,132) (5,618) (2,686) (6,116) (46,87)
Net hook amount BEFE 15,674 8,045 3,186 1,547 17,316 45,768
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 WYX  BERRHEE)

(CONTINUED)

Depreciation charge of the Group has been included in A £2020%F K2019%12A31H IF &£

administrative expenses for the years ended 31 December EoAEBEMNITESE B ATHR

2020 and 2019. B o

Buildings with carrying amount of approximately HR20204FE12831H ' BEEME 4 A A

RMB15,263,000 as at 31 December 2020 were pledged R #15,263,0007T B 1& = & & #

as collateral for the Group’s borrowings. No buildings were ABAREBERESIHERS - R

pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings as at 31 2019412 A31H @ W EE F {E 5 K

December 2019 (Note 17). 01 LA 380 LA B4 A 52 I8 e £ % (B
F17) ©

6(b) Leases 6(b) HE

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated () RESHBEHRLFEES
statement of finance position o]

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT ARETT

Right-of-use assets FERHEEE

Buildings BT 22,852 19,214
Lease liabilities HEAEE

Current B &8 6,126 3,208
Non-current JEENHR 18,336 16,223

24,462 19,431
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 M¥E- BMERRKEE)
(CONTINUED)
6(b) Leases (continued) 6(b) HE (&)
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) RBBEFEEBZNE
statement of profit or loss E]

Year ended 31 December

BZE12831BLEFE
2020 2019
2020 20194F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B i AREFT ARETT

Depreciation of right-of- FHEEERE

use assets
Buildings BF 25 (3,956) (3,358)

Interest expenses (included in Fl & 5 5z (FF A

finance costs) B 75 PR 7S) 26 1,077 961
Expenses relating to short- B HHE

term leases (included in BHEMAX

administrative expenses) (GFAITE R ) 25 80 74

Expenses relating to leases £ _F 327 K %I & 52 85
of low-value assets that are HEMWEKEBEEE
not shown above as short- FfAEABBHMHX

term leases (included in (FFAFTE R )
administrative expenses) 25 262 15
The total cash outflows for leases in 2020 was 2020F WA E 3/ & W
RMB4,976,000 (2019: RMB3,662,000). =8 5 N R#4,976,0007T
(20194 : A R #3,662,000
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6
(CONTINUED)

6(b) Leases (continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group’s leases are mainly for offices. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1
to 10 years. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

M BERRE&E)

6(b) HE (&)

(iii) X EBHHEZTER W
1 £ 1T A B

AEEMNHEEZTZAR N
NE-HMESAHETH
RBEEEIZI0FE - HE
1p 5 N £ B DN AT ] R 5%
HHEAFENHEHEELEE
NRERERKRN - HE
BETSRBEERNER

2o
7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 7 REYHE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥ T ARMF T
Opening balance F 4 96,700 75,250
Transfer from properties held or under EEAEENENFAET
development for sale (a) FEMEE) - 8,600
Transfer from property, plant and EREBEME BEK
equipment (b) Bl - 10,100
Addition NE 1,161 =
Net (losses)/gains from fair value NEEFHEN(BBE)S
adjustment Wz F 58 (3,811) 2,750
Closing balance F R 4 8 94,050 96,700
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

On 1 July 2019, a property was transferred from properties
held or under development for sale to investment properties.
On the date of transfer, the net book value of the property was
approximately RMB6,866,000 (Note 10) and the fair value was
RMB8,600,000.The difference of approximately RMB1,734,000
was recognised as fair value gains on investment properties
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

On 31 March 2019, a property was transferred from property,
plant and equipment to investment properties. On the date of
transfer, the net book value of the property was approximately
RMB155,000 and the fair value was RMB10,100,000.
The difference of approximately RMB7,458,000 (after
deducting deferred income tax liabilities of approximately
RMB2,486,000) was recognised as other comprehensive
income by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
(Note 6).

Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment
properties

e PR RRME

7 REWE(E)

iz

(@)

R2019F7A18 » —THY XM IF1E
HERFAEPFENEERETR
EW¥E - REEBEAY ZWENKE
R E 4 B A R 6,866,000t (M
F£10) B R F1{E A A K %8,600,000
JC o EFHAR¥A1,734,0007T A
& BN E E2019F12A31B L E
BRABLEMENRFEKS -

201946 3A31H  — B EHY
¥ BELSGEEBEZREDE -
REEBEH  ZVWENERFAEYD
A AR 155000 KA FE A A
R ¥10,100,0007T » Z8 H A R
7,458,000 T (B IELEFTBSH A
& #) A R #2,486,0007T 1% ) B AN &
BN E 22019128318 It FE 1
RAEHEM2E U A (K E6) °

RREVERBZBRINEH

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARM T ARETFor
Net (losses)/gains from fair value ANTFEAEN(EBER)/
adjustment W % 58 (3,811) 2,750
Fair value gains resulting from transfer BRFELEXRERSFE
from properties held or under MEEBREIREYE
development for sale to investment EAENQFEKE
properties - 1,734
Total fair value (losses)/gains on HEMENRFE
investment properties (BB, WxBsE (3,811) 4,484
Rental income arising from investment WEWMENBAS KA
properties 4,261 2,877
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurement at 31 December 2020 and
2019 using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) are
investment properties located in the PRC, amounting to
RMB94,050,000 and RMB96,700,000, respectively.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019 by an independent
professionally qualified valuers, Vincorn Consulting and
Appraisal Limited who hold recognised relevant professional
qualification and have recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued. For
all investment properties, their current use equates to the
highest and best use.

Valuation techniques

The Group has six investment properties for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: six), all of which are located in
Henan Province, the PRC.

The valuation of investment properties was determined
using the income approach (term and reversionary method)
which was based on capitalisation of net rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance for
the reversionary income potential of the properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Information about fair value measurements as

at 31 December 2020 and 2019 using significant

7 REWE(E)

BN 2020 % 201951283184
AEARFAHZ A S (53E) A

unobservable inputs (level 3): FEFENER
Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description  Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
# RTSIBENATE HERHE TUEZRAHE TUEER\HESE FTTEEBAYER
ATENEG
Property | 31 December 2020: Income approach  Term yield Term yield of 7% (2019: 7%), taking The higher the term yield, the
RMB3,280,000 (term and into account of yield generated from lower the fair value
31 December 2019; reversionary comparable properties and adjustment to
RMB3,400,000 method) reflect the certainty of term income secured
and to be received.
nE- 20205128318 : WAEEBRR EHRRE EHERET% (2019 :7%) - LKA FHERXHE AATE
AR¥32800000  BHE) BNEFEENARERAREENERE HE
20196125318 : WREBRANEERIELEE -
AR 3,400,000 Reversionary yield  Reversionary rate of 7.5% (2019: 7.5%),  The higher the reversionary

aBEEE

Market unit rent of
individual unit

AR BT 5E
Lk

taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the
comparable properties.

BB ERE7.5% (2019F :7.5%) * iR
ABENENFEEN TR RARE
fr e -

Market unit rent is RMB8.2 (2019: RMB8.2)
per square meter per month, using direct
market comparable and taking into account
of location and other individual factors,
such as road frontage, size of property and
facilities.
MEELREBATTARARSES2T
(2019% - A\RM8.27) - EREETHLL
BRETRAEREBENRE - Gl
B WERRRRH -

yield, the lower the fair value
ABORELE HATE
B

The higher the market unit
rent, the higher the fair value

msENEEHS AR
EEm
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Information about fair value measurements as

at 31 December 2020 and 2019 using significant

7 REWME(E)

BN 2020 % 201951283184
BAEARFA B Z=ig A S (53E) A

unobservable inputs (level 3): (continued) TFEFAENER: (&)
Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description  Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
e RISIBHNATE HERE TUBRBAEE FUBRBAHEEE FUBRERAHER
NTENEE
Property |l 31 December 2020: Income approach  Term yield Term yield of 6.5% (2019: 6.5%), taking The higher the term yield, the

RMB20,900,000 (term and into account of yield generated from lower the fair value

31 December 2019; reversionary comparable properties and adjustment to

RMB21,400,000 method) reflect the certainty of term income secured
and to be received.

mx= 2020F12A318 : WAEERRES FHERE FHOFR65% (2019 :6.5%) F:tR  FHORRLS  ALTE

AR#20900000 ) AENEELNRRERARMERE HE

20195127318 : RERRERRANEE L ELRE -

AR 21,400,000 Reversionary yield  Reversionary rate of 7% (2019: 7%), The higher the reversionary
taking into account annual unit market yield, the lower the fair value
rental income and unit market value of the
comparable properties.

EHEORX EHEERET% (20195 :7%) LRy REEHEHS HLTE

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Market unit rent of
individual unit

{ERI BT 5 E
Lk

NFNEFENMAEHSRARELT
f&e

Market unit rent is RMBA47 (2019: RMB48)
per square meter per month, using direct
market comparable and taking into account
of location and other individual factors,
such as road frontage, size of property and
facilties.

ML AeGAETARARKLTT (2019
EARB0T) RREETHLRRE
ARUEREMERNRZ - fimeEsE 9
SRBRRM -

B

The higher the market unit
rent, the higher the fair value

mHEEMEEHER AT
B8R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 7 REWX(A)
Information about fair value measurements as BEMR2020F % 20195123104
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 using significant AEARTA B R AHIE(EIE) A
unobservable inputs (level 3): (continued) FEFENER: (F)
Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description  Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
e RTSIBHNATE HERHE TUBERBAEE FUBRBAHEEE FUBEERAHER
AYENEE
Property Il 31 December 2020: Income approach  Term yield Term yield of 4% (2019: 4%), taking The higher the term yield, the

RMB8,060,000 (term and into account of yield generated from lower the fair value

31 December 2019; reversionary comparable properties and adjustment to

RMB8,300,000 method) reflect the certainty of term income secured
and to be received.

nx= 202012318 : WAEERRES FHERE FHEREL (2019% : %) BHRAY FHEOHXHE ULTE

AR¥8,060000 %) NFEEMORERARBERERE HE

20195127318 : WERFBRAMEEIELEE -

AR 8,300,000 Reversionary yield  Reversionary rate of 4% (2019: 4%), The higher the reversionary
taking into account annual unit market yield, the lower the fair value
rental income and unit market value of the
comparable properties.

EHEOHX EHEEREL% (0195 : 4%)  EHRANL BREEHEHS ULTE
NFNEFELMEHSRARELT HE
ED
Market unit rent of ~ Market unit rent is RMB63 (2019: RMB65)  The higher the market unit
individual unit per square meter per month, using direct  rent, the higher the fair value
market comparable and taking into account
of location and other individual factors,
such as road frontage, size of property and
facilties.
EREuHTZE TREUASEABTIAARST WRENASHER AAT
fir i & (20195 : AR¥6o) RAERTHLR E#E
REGHRAEREAMERNRZ - flmEE -
MERBE R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Information about fair value measurements as

at 31 December 2020 and 2019 using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3): (continued)

7 REWE(E)
BN 2020 % 201951283184
BAEARFA B Z=ig A S (53E) A
FEFAENER: (&)

Relationship of

Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description  Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
e RISIBHNATE HERE TUBRBAEE FUBRBAHEEE FUBRERAHER
NTENEE
Property IV 31 December 2020: Income approach  Term yield Term yield of 4.5% (2019: 4.5%), taking The higher the term yield, the

RMB43,200,000 (term and into account of yield generated from lower the fair value

31 December 2019; reversionary comparable properties and adjustment to

RMB44,500,000 method) reflect the certainty of term income secured
and to be received.

nxEm 2020F12A318 : WAEERRES FHERE FHEBRELE% (20195 : 4.5%) FitR FHEOHXHE ULTE

AR#43200000T %) AENEELNRRERARMERE HE

20195127318 : RERRERRANEE L ELBE -

AR %44,500,0007T Reversionary yield  Reversionary rate of 5% (2019: 5%), The higher the reversionary
taking into account annual unit market yield, the lower the fair value
rental income and unit market value of the
comparable properties.

EHEOHX EHEERESY (20195 :5%) L RAY REEHEHS HLTE

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

Market unit rent of
individual unit

{ERI BT 5 E
Lk

NFNERELMEHSRARELT HE
f&e

Market unit rent is RMB18.7 (2019: RMB20)
per square meter per month, using direct
market comparable and taking into account
of location and other individual factors,
such as road frontage, size of property and
facilties.
mEELREBAGTARARBIBIT
(2019% : A\RH207) - ERER TSR
REFRUEREMENEE - fimiEs -
WERBE R -

The higher the market unit
rent, the higher the fair value

mEEMEEHER AT
E8R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 7 REWMHEE)
Information about fair value measurements as BEMR2020F % 20195123104
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 using significant AEARTA B R AHIE(EIE) A
unobservable inputs (level 3): (continued) FEFENER: (&)
Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description  Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
e RTSIBHNATE HERHE TUBERBAEE FUBRBAHEEE FUBEERAHER
AYENEE
Property V 31 December 2020: Income approach  Term yield Term yield of 5.5% (2019: 5.5%), taking The higher the term yield, the
RMB10,140,000 (term and into account of yield generated from lower the fair value
31 December 2019; reversionary comparable properties and adjustment to
RMB10,400,000 method) reflect the certainty of term income secured

and to be received.

NER 2020F128318 : WANZEBRESF FHEHRE EHEREL5% (2019F :55%) &5tk FHRBERYES AL TE

ARE101400007 %) THENEELHERIRARREDS HE

20195124818 RARIEHRA BT S fEL AR -

AR 10,400,000 Reversionary yield  Reversionary rate of 6% (2019: 6%), The higher the reversionary
taking into account annual unit market yield, the lower the fair value

rental income and unit market value of the
comparable properties.

EHEOHX EREHEE% (20195 : 6%) FatRAL BHEORELE ARTE
NENERELMEASRARELT HE
ED
Market unit rent of ~ Market unit rent is RMB21.6 (2019: The higher the market unit
individual unit RMB22.3) per square meter per month, rent, the higher the fair value

using direct market comparable and taking

into account of location and other individual

factors, such as road frontage, size of

property and facilities.
ERlgummng THENREBABTARARK26T TWhHELHGHES HAT
frfe & (20195 - A\RM2237) ERERTHYL EER

AREFRUEREBENRE Gl

8 MERERRIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Information about fair value measurements as

at 31 December 2020 and 2019 using significant

7 REWME(E)

BN 2020 % 201951283184
BAEARFA B Z=ig A S (53E) A

unobservable inputs (level 3): (continued) TFEFAENER: (&)
Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description  Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
e RISIBHNATE HERE TUBRBAEE FUBRBAHEEE FUBRERAHER
NTENEE
Property VI 31 December 2020: Income approach  Term yield Term yield of 3.5% (2019: 3.5%), taking The higher the term yield, the

RMB8,470,000 (term and into account of yield generated from lower the fair value

31 December 2019; reversionary comparable properties and adjustment to

RMB8,700,000 method) reflect the certainty of term income secured
and to be received.

EIN 2020F125318 WNEESRESR FHORE FHERE35% (20195 :35%) Fitk FHEOHXHE ULTE

AR#B4T0000T ) AENEELNERERARMERE HE

20195127318 : REBRERRANEE L ELBE -

AR 8,700,000 Reversionary yield  Reversionary rate of 4% (2019: 4%), The higher the reversionary
taking into account annual unit market yield, the lower the fair value
rental income and unit market value of the
comparable properties.

EHEORX BHEEREL% (019F : 4%) EHRAL REEHEHS ULTE

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

Market unit rent of
individual unit

[ BT 5E
fid &

ENFNERENMEHSRARELT
ED

Market unit rent is RMB16.8 (2019
RMB17.6) per square meter per month,
using direct market comparable and taking
into account of location and other individual
factors, such as road frontage, size of
property and facilities.
mEELREBATTAIRKARKI68T
(20195 : ARB176T) EREZMAL
AREGRUEREBENRE  flink
8 MEREREE -

i

The higher the market unit
rent, the higher the fair value

mipE e HE AT
E8R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 7

Information about fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3): (continued)

If the reversionary yield increase or decrease by 10% from
the parameter used by the qualified valuer, the fair value
of the investment properties as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 would have been as follows:

e PR RRME

REWX (&)

BN 2020 % 201951283184
AEARFAHZ A S (53E) A
FEFENER: (&)

WEHFEREREGEWRGHERMK
B2 B Er & sk 210% - 1D
20204 M2019F12 A31H & & ¥
¥R FEHOTHAR:

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR FT AREF T

Investment properties (decrease)/increase 3% & ¥ % O 4) /& N

— 10 percent increase in reversionary yield —— 78 5 B 3R = 1% 1110% (4,659) (4,898)
— 10 percent decrease in reversionary yield — 18 & [0 & & i 210% 5,370 5,662

There will be no significant change for the fair value of the
investment properties as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
if the term yield increase or decrease by 10% from the
parameter used by the qualified valuer.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no
unprovided contractual obligations for future repairs
and maintenance. Operating expenses relating to unlet
investment properties are immaterial to the Group.

The Group measured deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties by adopting the
tax rates and the tax bases that are consistent with the
expected manner of recovery of these investment properties
(Note 22).

No investment properties were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

fisi € R [B] ) = & & & & (B A K
B2 SE & sk 210% + R
20204 M2019F 12 A31H X E ¥
¥R FETESERNET -

R2020%F M 2019128310 » KEE
WEEBARREECREENRES
AREE - EEALHEEMED
LERATHAEBMELTERK o

AEEBRBRAFAEFKEZE
BREMERANBEERBRENES
BZEREDENEREZBNET
i 18 (B 3£ 22) o

20204 K 2019412 A31H » &%
B ¥ B E ARG F L EE
AEBMBER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

8 AN INVESTMENT ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

*

8 EARTEEARNKRE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFor
Opening balance F V)4 2R — —
Addition (a) NE(a) 20,042 24,000
Share of results EhEE - (548)
Disposal (b) & (b) - (283,452)
Ending balance F R 4 87 20,042 —

@)

On 3 August 2020, the Group’s investment in Xuchang
Xujian Real Estate Company Limited* (“Xuchang
Xujian”) was approved by the board of Xuchang
Xujian. The Group contributed an initial investment of
RMB20,042,000 by cash consideration in return for
20% shares holding of Xuchang Xujian, and obtained
significant influence over Xuchang Xujian. Xuchang
Xujian was therefore classified as an associate. As at
31 December 2020, the change of investor registration
with the State Administration for Industry and
Commerce for Xuchang Xujian has yet to be completed.

On 25 January 2019, the Group set up an associate,
Yanling Henghui Real Estate Company Limited*
(“Yanling Henghui”), with an independent third
party. The Group contributed an initial investment
of RMB24,000,000 by cash consideration in return
for 40% shares holding of Yanling Henghui. As a
consequence, the Group obtained significant influence
over Yanling Henghui and Yanling Henghui was
classified as an associate.

English name for identification purpose only.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

MR2020F8A3H « AN & B R FF
EFREEXERARIFET
BIWNKRECETETREES
eHE - AEBURERER
NER TV REESBARE
20,042,0007T * A # B FF & 5F
EH20% R H B A R I E
BHEFFEME RIZHIHE - 3F
EFREIBEARHERRA - R
20209F12A31H © i & 578 K R
BRIBETHREERMNEFE
EMEEEELERNNTFE -

R20194%1H25H @ AN & [F 82 —
BB E = 5K E R
EEERMESRR AR (K
Bl REBUE & KEE
) 2 % & A R #24,000,000
T AR EEREEEN
40% A% #E o A Il - A& B EE
HEEEENERNFZE  mE
EREBAH S EABE QR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

8 AN INVESTMENT ACCOUNTED FOR USING 8 HERARIBEARNRKRE(E)
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
(b) On 23 December 2019, the Group disposed its all (b) F2019F12H23H * & £ & LA
equity interests in Yanling Henghui with a consideration R E A R #24,000,0007T ) &
of RMB24,000,000. The Group recognised the gain HRBEEENZHDAE - K
from the disposal amounting to RMB548,000 as other SERGEEERRPEANRE
gain in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. R Hem (A B i ss) A

R #548,0007T °

9 PREPAYMENTS FOR LEASEHOLD LAND 9 HETHFESFIE
The Group made prepayments of RMB192,758,000 as at 31 MR2020F12A318 * &N £ E 5t K
December 2020 (31 December 2019: RMB443,330,000) for BHETHEERBMNREARE
the acquisition of leasehold land, which will be transferred 192,758,0007T (201912 H31H = A
to properties under development for sale upon receipt of R #443,330,0007T) ° 3% K E & R
ownership certificates or commencement of development WE T MM EE LR
activities. I EEBRERAEPEEDE -

10 PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER 10 FEHESFBRPRFEDE
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE
Balances of properties held or under development for sale BIEHEXREREFEMELEHB AT
are as follows: T

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT A BEEF T

Properties under development for sale RSy 5,423,337 3,822,341
Properties held for sale BIELEME 1,601,448 1,312,323
7,024,785 5,134,664

Less: Provision for decline in values of BB IEHEMER
properties held for sale A S (63,714) (30,536)
6,961,071 5,104,128
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

10 PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER 10 FHEHERFERPSFEYWE(F)
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Properties held or under development for sale comprise: BIELEXREFHFEWEBRIE:

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT AEETT

Land use rights and demolition and 7 30 B A B8 IR 4 B 12 &9
resettlement costs after deducting T b5 AR R AFE A
related government grants ZEEH 2,898,537 2,161,778
Construction costs and capitalised
expenditures BERKARERNMCHAZ 3,843,377 2,703,402
Interest capitalised (a) B AR F S (@) 282,871 269,484
7,024,785 5,134,664
Less: Provision for decline in values of B FBIEHEMER
properties held for sale AR (63,714) (30,536)
6,961,071 5,104,128
Note: iz
(@) Interest rate of capitalised borrowings for the year ended 31 (@) #H E2020F12A31BLLFE EX
December 2020 was 5.78% (2019: 5.63%) per annum. {b & R F F| & /£5.78% (20194 :
5.63%) °

21 2 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
EEEE (ER) GRAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

10 PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER

DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Movements of properties held or under development for

sale are as follows:

10 FFHENRRTFENR(F)

RELESARBETFHFENXEDH W

T

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR¥FTT AR T

At beginning of the year FE 1) 5,134,664 3,895,797

Additions NE 3,500,033 2,428,844
Costs of properties recognised in EEZPERA

profit or loss L7/ (1,609,912) (1,183,111)
Transfer to investment properties B EYE

(Note 7(a)) (K1 7% 7(a) - (6,866)

At end of the year FR 7,024,785 5,134,664

Movements on the provision for decline in values of

properties held for sale are as follows:

LERBELE AR AN S D

LU

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BILLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARMTF T
At beginning of the year F 1] 30,536 4,876

Provision for decline in values of BIELEMEDN

properties held for sale VAR 34,418 25,763
Provision realised upon sales HEREENEE (1,240) (103)
At end of the year FR 63,714 30,536
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10 PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER

DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Management expects that the amounts of these properties
held or under development for sale as of 31 December 2020
and 2019 will be recognised as cost from sales of properties
during the following periods:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

10 FEHENRMBTFENR(A)

EEEEFZEFELHERAREF
e W) ¥ EH £20204F K2019512 A
SIEMNSEBRNUTHEERAEY
EHEMRBA:

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2020 2019
2020F 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR T T

Amounts are expected to be recovered: TEE# W Bl & &

Within 12 months 1218 A LA 1,148,435 578,005
Beyond 12 months B @128 A 5,876,350 4,556,659
7,024,785 5,134,664

The properties held or under development for sale are all
located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s properties
held or under development for sale amounting to
RMB803,072,000 were pledged as collateral for the Group’s
bank borrowings (Note 17) and other long-term borrowings
(Note 19) (2019: RMB897,117,000).

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

5 1 1 o0 B B b 5 B M 2 49 1 0
I -

MR2020F12A318 * "EE & T A
R #808,072,0007T & # 1E i & 3k
B A E Y XD ER IR R IK
LA BR 15 7K & @ /9 3R 17 18 3k (P 7E17)
K E b & HA 2 30 (T 5£19) (20194F ¢
A R #:897,117,0007T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

e PR RRME

11 ESKkHiEWFIEMBESRIE

PREPAYMENTS
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFr
Trade receivables 2 5 e WK IE - —
Prepayments of construction costs (@) EENK AT RIEB @) 25,789 24,241
Prepayments of equity acquisition (b) % 1 U T S SR IE (D) 84,900 2,000
Costs relating to demolition and A B BT U B A B 3 5B AN
resettlement activities recoverable ZEEE A BB AC
from government (c) 82,639 211,783
Receivable from project service (d) 18 B AR 7% & U 2B () 55,440 55,440
Tender deposits (g) B2 € (e 29,626 21,460
Value-added-tax recoverable A Uy 0] 2 (B 25,376 16,752
Prepaid tax and surcharges (f) T8 A5 B 18 K BT b0 & (7) 17,863 16,861
Deposits paid for property development 2t ¥R & 4,284 4,277
Temporary funding receivables (g) FE UL ER IS & & KB (g) 3,824 —
Others Hh 2,986 2,537
222,038 329,110
Total of trade and other receivables and 2 5 [ H b i Ug 2k 18 F1
prepayments TEI FRIB B 5 332,727 355,351
Less: Allowance for impairment of other 3 : H b Jig U 7% 18
receivables BE B (56,862) (56,168)
275,865 299,183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

11 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

*

Notes:

(@)

Prepayments of construction costs represent the prepaid
construction costs, which will be transferred to properties
under development for sale.

Prepayments of equity acquisition of RMB2,000,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was reclassified from tender
deposits to conform with the presentation for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The balances represent the prepayment for investment of
equity interests in certain property project companies. The
equity interests are in the process of transfer and registration.

The balances represent demolition and resettlement costs
paid on behalf of and recoverable from the government.

Receivable from project service represent the outstanding
balance recoverable from a customer for the construction
costs and project management fees incurred. The Group
manages the construction projects on behalf of certain
customers, and earns a pre-determined service fee for the
services provided.

The balance represents tender deposits for bidding of land
use rights, which will be subsequently refunded or transferred
to prepayments for leasehold land upon successful bidding.

Prepaid tax and surcharges are levied when the Group
receives advances from customers and the prepaid taxes
are recorded as prepayments before the relevant revenue is
recognised.

Temporary funding receivables are mainly non-interest bearing
receivables from Yanling Zhengli Real Estate Development

Company Limited*.

English name for identification purpose only.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

11 ESKkHMEKRFEMBESKIE
(#&)

Hrat

(@)

BERAEMNRBREAEMNZEK
K ZEFESEREREBERFE
(U

R E E2019F12 8318 I+ £ E @&
BEKEESENBENRBARE
2,000,000t E ERIZR S EEH
D8 LA A B E2020%F12A31H
LEEEMEF AR -

HEBRREBEETWERBE QA
B RE R TR FRIE - IEE LB R AR
BHREERTRLTE -

ZEBIERRBUF XS FEM L
EERAUEATARMFEEARIA -

HERBEEFIRIEREERNESE
KARBEEEEEATAERF KM
By MR AR o REBARKET
FFEBRZRABY RBALEE
BFTIR R REE -

ZAEREHR R T ERENRR
Be  ZEFRBERENFRER
CEEEEE L IEN A -

BRNHERMME IR AEERZ
BRSO  TR A AR IR R
A RA UG A BE SR AT A0 8% R TR K
18 o

EUREFESRBIERBRKE
EEREEMERZARIFAND

FHEFRRE ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 11
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The loss allowance provision for other receivables as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 are reconciled to the opening
loss allowance for that provision as follows:

e PR RRME

B 5% H o FE WK TH TR A 7K'
(&

R2020%F K2019F12A31H @+ H fib
FERGRIEN S EEGREEZ RS
MEREIBEBYROT

Other

receivables

H fth fE Wt TR 18

RMB 000

ARMTF T

At 1 January 2019 R2019F1H1H 11,397
Provision for loss allowance recognised in RETPERNEBEERE

profit or loss (Note 25) (Kt 7#25) 44,771

At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 56,168

At 1 January 2020 202041 H1H 56,168
Provision for loss allowance recognised in RETPERNEBEERE

profit or loss (Note 25) (Ht 7#25) 694

At 31 December 2020 7R2020F12 A31H 56,862

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of each
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral security.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair value of trade
and other receivables and prepayments approximates their
carrying amounts.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts
of trade and other receivables and prepayments are all
denominated in RMB.

RERESARERKAZNHZRAE
B A bt & 2R R W R IR B BR E
B ANEEYERFATAETR -

R2020F K2019F12A31H & 5
K H b B UL ZR0E RO FE £ ZE A A
BHEHEEREMRS -

R2020F K2019F12A31H & 5
N E A fE YR R IB A A A FRIB R BR T
BE2HUAAREEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

12 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 12 BEAVEZEBES ARNTHE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE

As at 31 December
MW12A831H

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARM T ARM T T

Listed securities — held-for-trading LIT#&ESH - BIEFER
Equity securities — PRC AES — R 133 181
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent EATEHEBAE AENEREE
shares listed in the PRC for trading purpose. EEFRE EMAIERZERBRGD °
13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 13 BERBITEER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents (a) RERBREEEY
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFor
Cash at banks RITIF R 554,108 244,672
Cash on hand FEAE 396 485
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 554,504 245,157

21 8 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
EEEE (ER) GRAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(a) Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

e PR RRME

13 BERBITHEER(E)

(a) RERRESENHE)

As at 31 December

M12831H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR FT

Cash at banks and on hand BITEARNFHEIEBS

— denominated in RMB — UAREEE 553,710 242,609
— denominated in HKD — B TTEHE 794 2,548
Cash and cash equivalents RERBSEEY 554,504 245,157

The Group’s bank balances consist of bank deposits
carrying interests at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.

(b) Restricted cash

AEERTEBOERENE
B4R 17 17 SR R 32 B F R 3
BERITER -

(b) BRERS

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETFr
Deposits as security for customers’ FREFIEBERIES
mortgage loans (a) EROF K@ 119,002 115,740

Notes:

(@) These bank deposits are restricted to secure the
bank loans taken by certain customers of the Group
pursuant to the local regulations of certain cities. Such
deposits will be released upon the issuance of property
ownership certificates.

EE

@ ZERTEARRAAEKH
ETEPRESR TH MmO
7305 R BUE R 17 B AR
TR - ZEFRHRE D
WP REE R T LARRRR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

As at the date of incorporation, the Company had issued 10,000
ordinary shares and further increased to 100,000 ordinary shares
during 2016.

On 12 November 2018, the Company issued 300,000,000 new
ordinary shares at par value of HKDO0.01 per share for cash
consideration of HKD1.24 each, and raised gross proceeds of
approximately HKD372,000,000 (equivalent to RMB329,994,000),
in connection with its global offering and commencement of the
listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange on the same date. The
excess over the par value of RMB2,661,000 for the 300,000,000
shares issued, net of the transaction costs of approximately
RMB20,162,000 was credited to share premium with an amount of
RMB307,171,000.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution dated 22 October 2018,
the directors were authorised to capitalise HKD8,999,000
(approximately RMB7,983,000) upon listing, standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company by applying such
sum in paying up in full at par 899,900,000 shares for allotment
and issue to shareholders of the Company (the “Capitalisation
Issue”) to their then shareholdings in the Company.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

14 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 14 BRARBR G RE
Authorised shares EE R A
Number of
authorised Authorised
shares share capital
EERGDEB EE R A
HKD
BT
At 31 December 2019 and 2020 R20194F & 2020F12 A31H 2,400,000,000 24,000,000
Issued shares BRITRG
Number of
ordinary Share Share
shares capital premium Total
LERYA R& R %EE b
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000
ANEEFIL AREFTL AREFTL
At 31 December 2019 and 2020 20195 ) 1,200,000,000 10,645 299,188 309,833
202012 A31H
Notes: K&t -

REMMKZBH  AAREAC T
10,000/% & 8 % - I R2016%F 1 — 4 4
££100,0008% E@ AL

R2018F 118128 » AR AIFEE 2 EREE
MERMDARBEBIMAR EMRS
% E {50.01/% JT % 17 7300,000,0000% %1
LTER - U EREEI24ETHIRS
KRB - E % P15 5/ T8 £ % 49372,000,000
B (G E R A K #329,994,0007T) ° Ht
300,000,000 B 1TRMH M E @ BiEM|
B ED A R #2661,0007T (FIB K 5K
A A R#20,162,0007T) 2 5F A B H A
R #307,171,0007T B9 X195 (B -

1B ¥ B H A2018510H22H ¥ i B 3R
FR O ETEBBRARLETEBARQA
f% 19 3% 8 BE F78,999,000# 7T (49 A R ¥
7,983,0007T) ERBE T EARN W E A
% % FE 1% B | E $1 £899,900,000 %
BB AAARRREIZEFESEERA
ANRIMBFR AR ERETRG (ER
{EEE1T]) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

15 RETAINED EARNINGS 15 REZEF
RMB 000
ARETF T
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H 549,035
Profit for the year F 1A E 293,040
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves EREETFTRBREE (27,544)
Dividend paid BT AR & (62,240)
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F12 8318 &
1 January 2020 2020F1H1H 752,291
Profit for the year FARFHE 284,011
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves ERESETRGBHEE (14,114)
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 A31H 1,022,188
16 OTHER RESERVES 16 Hfthf#E
Statutory Asset
Capital Merger surplus revaluation
reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve Total
AT BE

BXffE GHEE BBEE EUEE )
RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBU00  RMB000
NEBTTL ANRETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January 2019 R2019%1A1H 16,224 4,774 93,796 4,027 118,821
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves (¢) ERFETRBRGEEC - - 27,544 - 27,544
Transfer of property, plant and equipment to NE BERZEBRZE

investment properties, net of tax RENEMBRHE) - - - 7,459 7,459
At 31 December 2019 and R2019E12831A K

1 January 2020 20201818 16,224 4,774 121,340 11,486 153,824
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves (¢) ERFETRBRGEEC - - 14,114 - 14,114
At 31 December 2020 720205128318 16,204 4774 135454 11486 167,938
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

16 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(@)

Capital reserve as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
represents the difference of aggregate consideration
paid by the Group for acquisition of non-controlling
interest of existing subsidiaries and the aggregate
carrying amount of those non-controlling interest, after
elimination of investments in subsidiaries.

Merger reserve as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
represents the difference of aggregate consideration
paid by the Group for the acquisition of subsidiaries
and the aggregate capital of the subsidiaries acquired
during the Group’s reorganisation for the Listing.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the articles of association of the PRC subsidiaries,
these subsidiaries registered in the PRC shall
appropriate 10% of its annual statutory profit (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory
surplus reserve (“SSR”) account. When the balance of
SSR reaches 50% of the registered capital/share capital
of these subsidiaries, any further appropriation is
optional. The SSR can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses or to increase paid-in capital. However, SSR
shall be maintained at a minimum of 25% of registered
capital/share capital after such utilisation. The SSR are
non-distributable for cash dividends except in the event
of liquidation and are subject to certain restrictions set
out in the relevant PRC regulations.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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16 Hfthf#fE (&)

(@)

20204 NK2019F12A31H 0 &
AEBEAEERWEREW
BAREERERIANER
BHRZEFETERESFEAE
KIEERHBARMEERN
= o

MR20204F N2019412A31H &
EREBERAEE R LETM
HEITEHABE XEEHKE
B AR MM AaRERER
KRB AR ERNBENES -

BREFBEARLERPEKBEQ
RIS ERMA ZEEFH
SAMHHBARESE AL EE
FABREEHETMBEEE
EIB1E)M10% B AKX T R %
BlEATRBBREDEFE - &
AEBRBHEELEHRETZEMH
B AR EMME AR BRAH50%
% RAIRBIEERE—SEE o
ATRBHEITRAREHEBE
FEBBREMBHBRAE - R
M EEZSER®R%E  B8%
TRHBEEATLOREMREAR,
B AR H925% o BRIB N 0 SR E
BHERFERETTARDIERIR 2K

B Y XENETHEPBEZER
P PR 1 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17 BANK BORROWINGS

e PR RRME

17 RITER

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBTF T
Long-term borrowings REBEX
— Banks, secured (a) —iR1T - AR @) 29,000 181,000
Less: Current portion of long-term B R EIE KRNI ER o
borrowings
— Banks, secured (@) —#R17 - BEF @) - (181,000)
Subtotal NET 29,000 —
Current borrowings i R
— Banks, secured (@) —R1T7 - HEA @) 110,000 110,000
110,000 110,000
Add: Current portion of long-term mn: REBEZRNENBHIT D
borrowings
— Banks, secured (a) —R1T - BEHRE) - 181,000
Subtotal NEE 110,000 291,000
Total it 139,000 291,000
Note: g
(a) As at 31 December 2020, certain properties held or under () M2020F12A31H ' A& EE T

development for sale (Note 10) and property, plant and
equipment (Note 6) of the Group are pledged for the bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2019, certain properties
held or under development for sale (Note 10) of the Group is

pledged for the bank borrowings.

B & s B 2 B AR & 1 2 (FF 5210)
LA K% - B K& (K &E6) 3t
RITEFEITEA - KR2019F 12 A
318 EF AL EFEH S5 %
R S 2 (MY 3E10) 3t SR 1T 18 3
TR o
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17 BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the non-current portion of
the Group’s long-term bank borrowings were repayable as
follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

17 RITERE)
R2020%F M 2019128318 * A"&EE
MERHRITERPIERBDILD ER
T I B (8

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AEET T

Between 2 and 5 years 2FEBMF

29,000 —

29,000 =

The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

MR2020% K 2019512 A 310 ) hi # F
HEBRFIRMAT

As at 31 December

M12HA31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
Bank borrowings RITE 6.98% 7.08%

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 17 RITERE)
The exposure of the Group’s long-term bank borrowings to ANEBERKBRITERAN R B R
interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates or S REREHN TEB K HBE (A
maturity whichever is the earlier date is as follows: E%Z% )T
6 months 6-12 1-5
or less months years Total
R E 62128 A 1E5% st

RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT

Amounts included in non-current FAERBAR
liabilities: HRIA :
As at 31 December 2020 2020512 A31R - - 29,000 29,000
As at 31 December 2019 2019512 431H = = = =
Amounts included in current liabilities: STARBAFBRFR:
As at 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A31H 50,000 60,000 - 110,000
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31H 145,500 145,500 = 291,000
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair value of bank 720204 K 2019F 12 A31H » iRIT1&
borrowings approximates their carrying amounts. FHATFEEAERABEMRS
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all bank borrowings are )‘5"20205 N2019F12A31H * Fr A iR
denominated in RMB. THREFAAREE -
OTHER CURRENT BORROWINGS 18 Ht BB
As at 31 December
R12H31H
2020 2019
2020%F 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTF T
Interest bearing borrowings from third RKEE=FH
parties HEfE K 64,640 -
During the year ended 31 December 2020, other current R2020F12A318 IEF & - E bR
borrowings bore interests at annual interest rates varying B {8 AN F-8% £12% A F ) K &1
from 8% to 12%. Sle
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s other current MR2020F12 4318 » N & B H fb %
borrowings were payable on demand. EERHEARERER -
As at 31 December 2020, all other current borrowings are MR2020%F12 8318 + FT A H b /& &
denominated in RMB. BHRAUAREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

19 OTHER LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

19 HitRHIER

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Other long-term borrowings

— Non-financial institutions, secured (a)  — & BB 97,537 211,500

— Non-financial institutions, unsecured —JEe R E  EIEKA 250,840 563,600
348,377 775,100

Less: Current portion of other long-term & : E b &= B {

borrowings

— Non-financial institutions, secured (a) —3E& I E - B K (3 (75,000) (116,500)

— Non-financial institutions, unsecured — SRR - KA (61,000) (226,252)
(136,000) (342,752)
212,377 432,348

Note:

(@ The Group’s other long-term borrowings are secured
by certain land use rights and properties held or under
development for sale (Note 10) of the Group.

Other long-term borrowings mainly represent borrowings
relating to projects under various urban redevelopment
schemes. The non-financial institutions are designated by
the local governments, who get funding directly from banks
and then use the funding to finance project developers

under such schemes.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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UES

@ AEBENEMEHREZRANERD
ETLHERAERNEBIZELE
BFEEPHEWEELSERME
10) °

HiERHEREIERESHMFA R
HER T IRBHEBER - kg
MEBABTBRAEE HEERK
RITESES  RAEAZETRE
BAtEMEERERREHRES -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 OTHER LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the non-current portion of
the Group’s other long-term borrowings were repayable as

e PR RRME

19 HihRHBERK(E)

R2020%F K2019F12A31H + K &
EMEMKEBERTIERSD IS E

follows: AT fEE E
As at 31 December
M12A831H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥FT AR F oL
Between 1 and 2 years 15224 90,377 171,128
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5%F 122,000 261,220
212,377 432,348

The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

R20204F K2019F12 4318 Ay N #E
FHEBRFEMAT

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194F
Other long-term borrowings H b & B fE 5K 5.02% 5.18%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

19 OTHER LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 19

(CONTINUED)

The exposure of the Group’s other long-term borrowings to
interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates or
maturity whichever is the earlier date is as follows:

Hitv R G (F)

A EEE AR SRR EEEE
S RAREFCEARIHE UK
B HEAE) T

6 months 6-12 1-5
or less months years Total
618 A3 Lk 621218 A 1855 o
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ANRETFLT ANREFn AREFT ARETT
Amounts included in non-current FAEREBAE
liabilities: fF0E -
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12 A31H 205,537 - 6,840 212,377
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H 337,348 = 95,000 432,348
Amounts included in current liabilities: FARBEENFE:
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12 4318 98,000 38,000 - 136,000
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31H 99,794 242,958 = 342,752
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair value of other 20204 Kk201912H31H © E fh
long-term borrowings approximates their carrying amounts. RHEFNAFEEARAERS °

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all other long-term
borrowings are denominated in RMB.

20 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

20

N20204F K2019512A31H - AT B
H REEROAAREE -

AFAME

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TFT ARE T
Contract liabilities &R aE 3,877,453 2,702,327

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The Group receives payments from customers based on
billing schedule as established in contracts. Payments are
usually received in advance of the performance under the
contracts which are mainly from sales of properties. The
change in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly attributable
to the increase of the proceeds received from the Group'’s
contracted sales.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised during 2019 and 2020 relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities.

e PR RRME

20 EREEE)

AEEZ A R AR E SN KL BER
EPWERNR - BENRBERER
RAaRBENMER MzxEEEE
ZREMEHE - N2020F & A
BEEMEHEIEREHANEBAEH
BREERMNMAERBRMER
PR

T 3R 5| 7R FR20194F K 20204F 7t 45 &2
AREBEMERNKRACE -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBTF T

Revenue recognised that was included FAFEVERBELE ST
in the contract liabilities balance at the B R A

beginning of the year 1,828,369 1,299,649

Management expects that the contract amounts allocated
to unsatisfied performance obligations as of 31 December
2020 and 2019 will be recognised as revenue from sales of
properties during the following periods:

EIEEEY - B E2020%F K20194F
1AESREEREXNBHEEHN
ARSEBNTIHEEREDE
HEBWA:

As at 31 December

Expected to be recognised within one year 8 i — F RN #ER
Expected to be recognised after one year 8 HIH —F &R

M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AR F oL
1,954,391 1,001,249
2,667,104 2,095,657
4,621,495 3,096,906
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21 EZRHMERKIE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARH T AREETF T

Trade payables H 5 kN RIE 1,026,796 765,417
Deposits received from customers (a) P& ®(a) 572,587 59,257
Value-added-tax and other RED R HAM

taxes payable (b) FERI B IR Db) 216,233 90,799
Construction deposits from suppliers HEBRELRS 71,426 82,962
Amounts due to minority shareholders (c)  JE > A% B 7 3E () 50,810 30,900
Interest payable FEAS FI B 50,500 41,461
Accrued payroll ERTE 26,527 16,811
Temporary funding payables (c) Be B € BT B ) 24,681 8,449
Construction deposits from BT R2EES

related parties (Note 35(c)(i) (B 735(c)(i) 20,403 16,876
Accrued provision (Note 24(a)) P& 5T 1 A (KT it 24(a) 13,000 —
Amounts due to related parties FE 1S BA Bt 75 5B

(Note 35(c)(iv)) (B i35(c)(iv)) 2,912 —
Maintenance fees collected on behalf RIKREE 832 522
Other payables due to a related party ) 8 Bt 5 H At 3R

(Note 35(c)(ii) (K1 7£35(c)(ii) 599 -
Others HAb 3,811 584

2,081,117 1,114,038

Notes: K et -
(@) The balance represents the advance payment received for (@) HZEHRRKBERE B Y ZEIKER

purchase of properties under development, contract of which
are yet to be entered. Such balance will be transferred into
contract liabilities once the sales contracts have been signed
with customers.

(b) The standard value-added-tax (“VAT”) rate was 9% since 1
April 2019. Certain sales of properties and rental income of
the Group are qualified for the simplified tax rate of 5% but
the input VAT is not deductible.

()  Amounts due to minority shareholders and temporary funding
payables are non-interest bearing payables to third parties.

230 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the ageing analysis of
trade payables based on invoice date are as follows:

e PR RRME

21 EZRHMERRIE(E)

R20204F N2019%F12 831H @ % 3%
ZEHHE S MNESENZREBENERER
DT :

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T AEET T

Less than 1 year 1ER 822,560 694,164
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 173,669 41,572
Between 2 and 3 years 2E3F 11,917 23,397
Over 3 years 3E E 18,650 6,284

1,026,796 765,417

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair value of trade
and other payables approximates their carrying amounts.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables were all denominated in RMB.

R2020F K2019F12A31H & 5
FEMEMKENAFELREER®R
(ER =R

R2020F K2019F12A31H & 5
FEMEBEMAREBEOERREZIINUA
RHEEETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 22 BEEFFEH

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR FT
Deferred tax assets: EERIEE E -
— To be recovered after more than — B E121E A % Uk @
12 months 33,957 21,974
— To be recovered within 12 months — B 121E A R Uk [El 108,181 80,973
142,138 102,947
Deferred tax liabilities: FEERIEAGE
— To be settled after more than — #1218 Bz E
12 months (2,503) (2,131)
— To be settled within 12 months — 1218 A W E Rt (14,196) (11,008)
(16,699) (13,139)
Deferred tax assets, net EETIE & BE SR 125,439 89,808

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is

as follows:

EXFMEREENAEZS BN
FIEnE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR For
At beginning of the year F4 89,808 38,324
Credited to the consolidated statement FFAGAIEER
of profit or loss (Note 29) (Mt 7#29) 35,631 50,859
Withholding tax paid EREH - 3,111
Charged to other comprehensive income 1 8 & fth 2 @ U A - (2,486)
At end of the year FR 125,439 89,808

As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities amounting to approximately RMB8,530,000 (31
December 2019: RMB11,172,000) were offset.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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R2020F12A318 - RHE N AR
8,530,0007T (2019F12 A31H : A B
#11,172,0007T) B IR E B 18 & E &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 22 BEIEFTSH (&)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the #H £20204 K&2019412A31H Ik F
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 without taking B ELEHBEEENRABENES (AL
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same RErRER—BRBR AR AR
tax jurisdiction, is as follows: BREE) T
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE
Provision for
impairment Temporary
of properties differences
held for sale Land on recognition
and other  appreciation of revenue and
Taxlosses  receivables tax cost of sales Accruals Others Total
BELENE
REf BRARAR
EWHE HERRM
HEES HERE IHEER EREER LEE ¢ Rt &t

RMBO00  AMBU0O  AMBU0O  AMBUOO  AMBUO  RMBUOD  RMBOD
NRETT  ARETL  ARETL  AEETL  ARETR  ARETL  ARETX

At 1 January 2019 R2019%1A10 629 3,991 14,568 46,556 1,335 8 67,157
Credited/(charged) to the A/ (18)

consolidated statement GeBak

of profit or loss 1,145 17,555 15,890 13,404 (1,331) 299 46,962
At 31 December 2019 R2019612A310 1,774 21,546 30,458 59,960 4 377 114,119
At 1 January 2020 R2020E1A1H 1,774 21,546 30,458 59,960 4 317 114,119
Credited(charged) to the HA/(8)

consolidated statement GRBaE

of profit or loss 386 7,967 19,160 8,866 (0] 174 36,549
At 31 Decerber 2020 Ro00%12831A 2,160 29,513 49,618 68,826 - 551 150,668
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

22 EIEFRSH (&)

Deferred tax liabilities EEBESRE
Temporary
Temporary differences on
differences on recognition Undistributed
recognition of fair value profits of
of revenue Land gains on PRC
and cost appreciation  investment  subsidiaries
of sales tax properties (Note 29) Total
BRUAR BEARENE TENWELT
BEREH NTEREN  WMARDRAE
ERMEE  THEER ENEER (Wi#29) @t
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000
AREFT  ANEEFT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFx
At 1 January 2019 #2019%1A1A 8,319 1,409 6,786 12,319 28,833
Credited to the consolidated FAGABER
statement of profit or loss (1,792) (1,409) (696) = (8,897)
Withholding tax paid (Note 29) BRENB W #29) = = - (3,111) (3,111)
Charged to other comprehensive MeEEMEEKA
income = = 2,486 = 2,486
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12A31H 6,527 = 8,576 9,208 24,311
At 1 January 2020 120201418 6,527 - 8,576 9,208 24,311
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated HA/ (B RABRR
statement of profit or loss 1,811 - (893) - 918
At 31 December 2020 72020412 A31H 8,338 - 7,683 9,208 25,229

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax
losses could be carried forward for a period of five years to
offset against its future taxable profits. Deferred tax relating
to unutilised tax losses are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow such deferred tax assets to be utilised.

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of RMBS,851,000 (31 December 2019: RMB5,591,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB15,406,000 as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: RMB22,365,000). All these tax losses will expire
within five years from the end of the respective years they
arose.

e PR RRME

22 IRIEFRSH (&)

EEBESE(H)

REBFBEDERZER  AREF A
A5 B8 10 TE B 1R DA R R 3H HOR 2R
ARBRAE - EARBARABEBR
FUEERIB IR AT BE B B B R
MBEAHE A ZE TR EE ERE

R °

PR2020F12 318 » A& B W £ 3 i
TH &5 18 49 A R #515,406,0007T (2019
F12H318 : A R #22,365,0007T) #E
RIELEFTS & E A R %3,851,000
7T (2019412 A31H : A R#5,591,000
L) MEZSEHEBERBESEL
EERERFREE -

REVENUE 23 WA
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLLEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥FT AR Fr
Sales of properties LES kS 2,417,639 1,971,020
— Recognised at a point in time — A E AR R 2,417,639 1,907,952
— Recognised over time —RN—ER R AR - 63,068
Rental income e WA 4,412 3,040
2,422,051 1,974,060
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

24 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET

24 Hi (BB WiE — FHE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BALLEFE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Accrued loss of a contract (a) G R EEE®E (13,000) —
Donations 18 i (6,336) (1,388)
Penalties, fines and compensations BE - SR AEE (822) 64
Losses on disposal of property, HEWE  BELEXREDN

plant and equipment (Note 32(c)) &5 18 (A7 7£32(c)) (128) —
Fair value losses on financial assets BRATESERBR AR

at fair value through profit or loss TREENATFEBE (48) 9)
Exchange gains/(losses) 5 s (EE) (45) 62
Waiver of the interest payable to HRENMIB B EED

Mr. Lin Peiging (b) AIPENTo) - 20,128
Gain on disposal of an associate Eel=d: RN RO R

(Note 8) (K7 728) - 548
Others H A, (248) 176

(20,627) 19,581

Notes: Kt -
(@) The Group entered into a development contract with a co- () AEESE-—ZHAEREEIILTH

developer in which the Group co-develop a project of
associate company with the co-developer. Based on the best
estimate as at 31 December 2020, the Group considered
it might suffer a loss of about RMB13,000,000 under this
contract due to the higher expected future cost over the
future benefits to be received, therefore accrual for potential
loss was recorded.

On 20 March 2019, the Group signed an agreement with Mr.
Lin Peiging, under which Mr. Lin Peiging agreed to waive the
interest payable due to him of approximately RMB20,128,000.
The Group recognised the waiver as other gain in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

25 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing
expenses, administrative expenses and net impairment
losses on financial assets are analysed as follows:

25 BUEETNEH

FRAHERAN  HERT S HERER
XCoTTRAXEEMEENRERS
BEENEROMAOT:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALLEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR TFor
Costs of properties recognised in profit 18 25 FE R A ) 3 R AR

or loss

— Land use rights and demolition and — 440 bR AR B8 I R B 18

resettlement costs, after deducting B - b R R iR B A

related government grants ZEE R 437,319 321,577
— Construction costs and capitalised —BEXARERELAX

expenditures 1,064,977 773,574
— Net provision for decline in values of —REHEMENEBERD

properties held for sale (Note 10) BEFEME10) 33,178 25,660
— Interest capitalised —ERMEFE 89,910 74,526
Staff costs (Note 27) BT A (K t27) 97,594 66,254
Advertising and publicity costs B &R EE KA 43,038 25,084
Professional fees BEXEH 22,589 14,688
Office and meeting expenses MAEREREH 22,605 14,482
Entertainment expenses BEE 20,047 12,324
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- BEREE R

equipment and right-of-use assets FREEERNE Hi76)

(Note 6) 11,222 9,668
Stamp duty and other taxes ENTE T Ko H b 7% 18 11,011 9,644
Tax and surcharges i I8 & B 0 & 8,888 7,081
Sales agent commission HERERS 8,935 4,005
Net impairment losses on financial TRLE EM R EE B

assets (Note 11) EE (K aE11) 694 44,771
Bank charges RITZ WM 493 272
Rental expenses HEMX 342 89
Travelling expenses =R E 274 1,028
Other expenses E b5 4,781 2,875
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing &k A - & K H 5 # E

expenses, administrative expenses M THRAZARES

and net impairment losses on financial BERBEBEFHEES

assets 1,877,897 1,407,602
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e PR ERRME

26 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) 26 BEWA(EA)
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BALLEFE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Finance income R TN
— Interest income on bank deposits —RITFRF BHA 1,414 1,230
Finance costs B 75 A 7R
— Interest on bank borrowings, other —RITEH - MR BER

current borrowings and other long- KHE MR B ERFE

term borrowings (56,529) (59,897)
— Interest on pre-sale deposits received —2WFEEZ L HFE (56,568) (99,384)
— Interest charges on lease liabilities - HEBEBEMERX (1,077) (961)

(114,174) (160,242)

Amount capitalised ERteHE 103,298 86,381
Finance costs expensed B X8 B B 7% AR AR (10,876) (73,861)
Finance costs — net BB A — F58 (9,462) (72,631)
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27 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

e PR RRME

27 EIRA (BREESEHE)

EMOLUMENTS)
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETFr
Wages and salaries TERFS® 80,580 52,544
Pension RIKE 9,280 8,496
Other welfare benefit expenses H A 1R A & A 7,734 5,214
97,594 66,254

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
approved and conditionally adopted by the shareholders
of the Company by way of a written resolution on 22
October 2018 for the primary purpose of recognising and
acknowledging the contribution of the directors, employees
and other eligible parties who have made valuable

contribution to the Group.

As of the date of issue of these financial statements, no
option has been granted, agreed to be granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

RN TR PR2018F10H22H A &
HARZFZRN AR EREEERR
ERETE(ERETED =2
ENARTARUES  EERY
AEBEELEEERNEME ER
EFAFENER

BEAMBREIBROGADS  HER
BREREFIROBERELRER
b 76 EHERERERER
KR e
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e PR ERRME

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS,

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments of the Company’s directors paid/

—_— =

28 EX - ARERSHMALHNER
kEEmkaREEENE

(a) ESRBZETRABHNME

FEBETERAENEA

payable by the companies comprising the Group are ARABEZEENMESFHIN AT :
set out below:
Salaries Retirement Other
and other Discretionary scheme social
Name of director ESf? Fees allowances bonus contributions welfares Total
§4R -4 At
ok g4 MERL  FEER HegEd @t
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000
ABETLE ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFZ
Year ended 31 December 2020  H Z2020F12A31 A LEE
Executive directors HiEE
Mr. Li Xiao Bing Bk E - 931 380 13 20 1,344
Ms. Qi Chun Feng ERRLL - 724 380 2 20 1,126
Mr. Wang Quan TEEE - 424 180 2 2 626
Mr. Wang Zhen Feng TREsE - 725 380 2 20 1,127
- 2,804 1,320 19 80 4,223
Independent executive directors BL#HTEE
Mr. Lee Kwok Lun TEBEL 208 - - - - 208
Mr. Fang Cheng hitfE 208 - - - - 208
Mr. Wei Jian e 208 - - - - 208
624 - - - - 624

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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e PR RRME

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS,
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

28 £ - ARmSHMALHNER
RiEshkeaREZEME (&)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERESTHAESNHE (&)
(continued)
Salaries Retirement Other
and other  Discretionary scheme social
Name of director ESiA Fees  allowances bonus  contributions welfares Total
52k R it
#e =4 Bigta HELS HeRil )
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RUMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ANREFT AREFT AREFr AREFT AREfr  AREFX
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE20195 127318 1L £
Executive directors HITEZE
Mr. Li Xiao Bing FhkEE - 480 300 49 21 850
Ms. Qi Chun Feng EERLT = 480 300 55 2 856
Mr. Wang Quan L - 360 144 43 21 568
Mr. Wang Zhen Feng THErE - 480 300 59 2 860
= 1,800 1,044 206 84 3,134
Inclependent executive directors BT EH7TEZ
Mr. Lee Kwok Lun TABEE 212 - - - - 212
Mr. Fang Cheng AitfE 212 - - - - 212
Mr. Wei Jian ReLE 212 - - - - 212
63 - - - - 63

No inducement fees, employer’s contribution to
pension schemes or compensation for loss of office as
directors were given to any of the directors for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

There was no chief executive who was not also a
director for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

#H £2020%F &2019F12A31H
HtFEE TEATANES N
MBE EEEELHEIHR
RBETEEmME -

#H Z2020%F &2019F12A31H
HFEE BFETERBETMNL
EREXRRZHENS -

# 2£2020F &2019F12 A31H
HEE BMETARAEESH

REITBAR -
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS,
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 include three directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining
two individuals are as follows for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019:

28 EX - ARmRSHMALHNER

RiEzhkaREZEME (&)

(b) EERSHMAL

#H =2020%F &2019F12 A31H
EEE AEENRAERS
MALBRIE=Z2EFF " HED
MeeE RN ES DT RE - #
Z 20204 K2019F12A31H 1
FE - BENHTRE AT
o REH T

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR FT

Basic salaries, housing allowances, EA#H <t - EE 285 -
other allowances and other Em 2t EMmEYH =

benefits in kind 2,151 1,619

The annual emoluments fell within the following bands:

NFTIEENFEME

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Annual emoluments bands FEMWE &M
HKD Nil to HKD1,000,000 =% 7T £1,000,0007% JT - 2
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £1,500,0007 7T 2 —

(c) For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no director or any of the five highest paid individuals
received any emolument from the Group as an
inducement to join, upon joining the Group, leave the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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e PR RRME

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, 28 B  AEBREFMALTHER
REZREREEREMNE (&)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED) (CONTINUED)

(d) Senior management’s emolument

The senior management’s annual emoluments
(excluding directors) fell within the following bands:

(d)

EREEEMS

SREEEFEMNES (TERREE
B)MEREMEWT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HILLEE
2020 2019
20204F 20194
Annual emoluments bands F [Z B < & A
HKD Nil to HKD1,000,000 0% 7T 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
29 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 29 FI8BiMAX
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMF T
Current income tax BN HA BT 15 5
— PRC land appreciation tax — B R E R 104,677 115,386
— PRC corporate income tax —HFEPEMER 159,713 162,052
264,390 277,438
Deferred income tax (Note 22) B IE FT 1S B (47 7#22) (35,631) (50,859)
Total income tax charged for the year F NS R 228,759 226,579
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29 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the enacted tax rate of the home country of the companies

within the Group as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

29 FREHER< (&)

B 7K £ [ 1O B B S B AT A B B B Y
ISR ATRAREARNEEETER
AAEBMND BMHEYXFENER
T BB

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AR T
Profit before income tax bx BT 15 35 A A 511,350 517,344
PRC land appreciation tax o £ i 3 (E A (104,677) (115,386)
406,673 401,958
Income tax calculated at statutory 1% 75 E B E25% T E 1
rate of 25% PRS0 101,668 100,490
Effect of expenses not deductible for NATARHAR TSI A
income tax purposes (a) X B 2 () 16,384 9,920
Tax losses not recognised as AERBELEHIBEE
deferred tax assets EORTREl ] 3,743 783
Temporary differences not recognised as 7 f& 52 /4 IE € 7 18
deferred tax assets BEMNERER 2,332 -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B LRI R R
tax losses A E 18 (45) —
PRC land appreciation tax rh B A s (E R 104,677 115,386
Total income tax expense P15 T 7 X 4258 228,759 226,579

(@) Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes
mainly represent entertainment expenses in excess
of the prescribed cap, non-deductible donations, and
interest expenses without proper invoices etc.
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29 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

PRC corporate income tax

Under the Corporate Income Tax (the “CIT”) Law of the
PRC, the CIT rate applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries
located in the PRC from 1 January 2008 is 25%.

The CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
withholding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by a PRC-
resident enterprise to its immediate holding company
outside the PRC for earnings generated beginning 1
January 2008 and undistributed earnings generated prior to
1 January 2008 are exempted from such withholding tax.
A lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when the
immediate holding companies are established in Hong Kong
according to the tax treaty arrangement between the PRC
and Hong Kong.

No deferred PRC withholding income tax was recognised
on the accumulated unremitted distributable profits up to
31 December 2017, which were generated by the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries and are attributable to the investors
outside the PRC. The Group controls the dividend policies
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that
the accumulated unremitted distributable profits up to 31
December 2017 will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

Based on the management’s best estimation, deferred
income tax liabilities of RMB12,319,000 as at 31 December
2018 have been recognised for the PRC withholding tax
that would be payable upon remittance, in respect of a
portion of the unremitted distributable profits of certain PRC
subsidiaries attributable to the investor outside the PRC.

During 2019, withholding tax of RMB3,111,111 has been paid
by the Group upon the payment of dividend (Note 22). No
additional deferred income tax charge for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2020 has been recognised for the
PRC withholding tax.

e PR RRME

29 FRSHiR< (&)

EIR RSB

RIB(REAREMBECERBRIER)
(I EmBHIA]) - K2008F1 818
A E AR AL E AR B A
AR ERE R X B25% °

TEMBSREREEHEMAEIEE -
FEE R D ¥ 5 52008F1A18 8
EERNZF R ERFREINGEZ
ZERARIRERES - ARI10% 8
RSB - ™ MR2008F1H1H
ZHEENADIREFERZEN
o RIEP HEFBEFT AU
T FEEBEERATNREBK
3 Al E AREAS5% B R o

AEEBVARAEEFRENB QA
EXBFEBEINEEERGHNES
201712 A31H & 51 K [E £ 7] 55 Ik
FEERECHFREMNMER - &
EEZHZENBE AR SR
B R FEE E2017F12A31H By &2 5
REEH A 2K A B R AT B R &R
FRIR o

EREBEMNREMT  HPER
INEBEEEMAETHENBRRHN
9 K IE B Al 9 & KB i 5220184
12A31AELH B EN PR ENR
BRONELEFMSEHAEERARKE
12,319,0007T °

R2019F - AEERNKAKRERE
AT A RES 11111170 (K &
22) o PR20194F %2020 124318 -
N B A B TE 40 F SR R SN IR T
FriS®ip 2 ©
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29 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

PRC corporate income tax (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, deferred PRC withholding income
tax liabilities of RMB101,789,000 (831 December 2019:
RMB82,178,000) have not been recognised on the remaining
unremitted distributable profits of RMB1,017,894,000 (31
December 2019: RMB821,776,000) of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries.

Land appreciation tax

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges for land use rights and
all property development expenditures, and is included in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss as income tax
expense.

Hong Kong profits tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was provided as the
Group’s Hong Kong companies did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

Overseas corporate income tax

No provision for taxation has been recognised for
companies incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands as they were not subject to any tax
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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29 FREHER< (&)

HEIR RSB ()

M2020512A318 @ I K 3t A &
o BB B A Rl 8RR R BE AT R
B A R #1,017,894,0007T (20194
128318 : A R #821,776,0007¢) f&
RELEHPEBNAESHABARE
101,789,000 (201912 A31H : A
R #82,178,0007T) °

T i RE B

fR Bt i (A R T 3R BB30% £60%
MBERRE T M EREHK - £
i 38 (A B8 A & W) X A3 FE R A
MRFAX (B2ELtERERE X H
FEWEZRAS)  WREAE
=RAIEMBSHAS

BEBANEHR

H Z=2020F 201912 A1 HILFE -
HRAEBRE BN AR EESA
BB BNNESHOERR AR - &
BMEELBBRGRHBE -

N FTE B

HZE2020F & 201912 A1 HILFE -
HREREHENEBERAHS
A AR E RSN E (R FLIE
WA B 2SN A R IE A -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
Group’s profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

e PR RRME

30 BRAF
BREARN T IRFAARRD AR

FAEAREREBENBERASELT
BRRMEFAHEGE -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
The Group’s profit attributable to owners ~ ARRQE A A FEAL A £
of the Company (RMB’000) FMEARET T 284,011 293,040
Weighted average number of ordinary EEITEERME T
shares in issue ("000) (FB%) 1,200,000 1,200,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share BRERNREFRA
(expressed in RMB) (AAREREL) 0.24 0.24

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, diluted
earnings per share was equal to the basic earnings per
share as there were no dilutive shares.

HE2020F M 2019F12 A31H IEFEFE
HAMEBRERD NERBER
FRENE/RELRRBF -
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31 DIVIDENDS 31 RE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BALLEFE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

(i) Dividend payable at the end of the (iy 7 =R & HA R A9 FB R 151 % B,
reporting period

(i) Dividend paid in cash during the years  (ii)/A & 220204 20194
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 12H31BIEFEURS
KA Y AR B

- 62,240

(ili) Dividend not recognised at the end of (i) FA ¥ &5 8 K ) R R K
the reporting period (Note) iR B (Hf i)

60,000 —

Note: On 25 March 2021, the directors have recommended the H et -
payment of a final dividend of HKB.0 cents (equivalent
to approximately RMB5.0 cents) per fully paid ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil). Such proposed dividend is not recognised as
a liability as at 31 December 2020.
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32 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 32 mEREREKRME
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Net cash generated from operations (a) REZTHELRSER
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARMTFT AR T
Profit before income tax B PT 1S B4 A A B 511,350 517,344
Adjustments for: RS IBET
— Net provision for decline in values of —BIELEWERE
properties held for sale (Note 25) B F 5 (K 72 25) 33,178 25,660
— Accrued loss of a contract (Note 24) — & REEE
(K1 7#24) 13,000 —
— Depreciation of property, plant and - BEREE
equipment and right-of-use assets MEREEE
(Note 25) ¥ & (#f £25) 11,222 9,668
— Interest expenses (Note 26) — M B (fiF26) 10,876 73,861
— Fair value losses/(gains) on investment — X &EMEN A FE
properties (Note 7) BiE (W)
(K1 527) 3,811 (4,484)
— Waiver of the interest payable to Mr. Lin  — %4 % & (- #K 15 75 55 &
Peiqing (Note 24) ® ) B (K7 i 24) - (20,128)
— Net impairment losses on financial —eMEENREEIE
assets (Note 25) R EE (F 52 25) 694 44,771
— Losses on disposal of property, plant —HEME BER
and equipment (Note 24) X tEEE (I Z24) 128 —
— Fair value losses on financial assets at —#Z A FEBZBEE A
fair value through profit or loss (Note ENEREENR
24) FEEE (K i224) 48 9
— Interest income (Note 26) — R BUR A (K7 77#26) (1,414) (1,230)
Changes in working capital LBEEEFE
— Prepayments for leasehold land —MHE+IENFKIE 250,572 (208,707)
— Properties held or under development — — #5 {E 1 & =k 53 3 1 £
for sale RS (1,786,823) (1,159,352)
— Trade and other receivables and — B Kk EMEWKIE
prepayments AT K IE 110,667 (32,054)
— Contract assets —6REE (1,764) (63)
— Contract liabilities —&aRAaE 1,118,558 572,455
— Trade and other payables —B 5k E MR FIE 906,360 227,841
Net cash generated from operations KEETHELR S FE 1,180,463 45,591
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

32 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 32 MEBEREXRM T (E)

OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Major non-cash transactions (b) FEHFRERS

On 20 March 2019, the Group signed an agreement
with Mr Lin Peiging, under which Mr. Lin agreed to
waive the interest payable due to him of approximately
RMB20,128,000 (Note 24).

(c) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (c)
equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment

R201943H20H @ &~ £ B £
MEBBRESR S - B
MEXEREREEMNEFR B XK
I8 49 A R #20,128,0007T (41 i+
24) o

HEWE - BMERRBEHRER
H

ERARERERT HEY
X BEERREBRFFERRE:

comprise:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR FT
Net book value (Note 6) REFE (M 76) 145 48
Losses on disposal of property, HEWE  BMEAREEIE
plant and equipment (Note 24) (M it24) (128) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEW¥ - MENRKRE
plant and equipment Fi 18 3¢ 38 17 48
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e PR RRME

32 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 32 ZMEBERERMT(E)

OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (d) METBFEENAEEYHER
financing activities

TRHAIBERIAELNHAN
SEEENEHER BFRA
ERIFREEY - BEEZDHN
EENBERRAKREREAR
ERERTEOBERBREED
EEANRERENBERK

KREeRE -

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flow will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statements of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

Temporary
funding
payable
(included Advance
Other Other in trade from
Bank  long-term current  and other Lease minority
borrowings  borrowings  borrowings payables) liabilities shareholders Total
JEf 208 (A
R EAREf 23 |
ROER  REGX HMRBAER  EARE) REER  RREX @it
RMB000 RMB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB 000 RWB000 RMB000
ANREFL  ANEETR  AEETT AREFT AGETn  AEEFr  AREFX
At 1 January 2019 R201951A1A 225,000 845,510 = 1,770 14,248 = 1,096,528
Financing net cash flows BEFRENE 66,000 (70,410) - (3.321) (3,662) 30,900 19,507
Non-cash changes FREEY = - - - 8,845 - 8,845
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31A 291,000 775,100 = 8,449 19,431 30,900 1,124,880
At 1 January 2020 R2020181R 291,000 775,100 - 8,449 19,431 30,900 1,124,880
Financing net cash flows BEFRGNE (152,000  (426,723) 64,640 19,145 (4,976) 25,910 (474,004)
Non-cash changes IREEY - - - - 10,007 (6,000) 4,007
At 31 December 2020 R2020512A31R 139,000 348,311 64,640 21,59 24,462 50,810 654,883
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e PR ERRME

33 COMMITMENTS 33 A&iE
Property development expenditure commitments Y R AR
Property development expenditure committed at 31 20204 K20196F12 A31H B & #&
December 2020 and 2019 but not yet incurred is as follows: WMHAREENYEERBASIOT
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARBTF T
Contracted but not provided for SEEEER 1,793,650 1,032,545
34 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND 34 TRMERRIAREE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AEET T

Guarantees in respect of mortgage MASENE THEEED

facilities for certain purchasers of the LB REEE M ER®E

Group’s properties (a) 4,616,569 3,133,547
Guarantees in respect of associate MEE RN EZREERIE

company’s major shareholder loan (b) B HE 2R (b) 218,000 —

4,834,569 3,133,547
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34 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers
of the Group’s properties and provided guarantees to secure
obligations of these purchasers for repayments. Such
guarantees will terminate upon the earlier of (i) the issuance
and transfer of the real estate ownership certificate, or (i)
the satisfaction of mortgage loans by the purchasers of the
properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default of
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principal
together with accrued interest owed by the defaulting
purchasers to the banks and the Group is entitled to take over
the legal title and possession of the related properties after
the relevant legal procedures. The Group’s guarantee period
starts from the date of grant of mortgage. The directors
consider that the likelihood of default of payments by the
purchasers is minimal and therefore the financial guarantee
measured at fair value is immaterial.

In line with our diversified land acquisition strategies, a
subsidiary of the Group obtained the 20% equity interest
of a project company (the “Associate Company”) which
hold a parcel of land for development through a bidding
process, and remaining 80% equity interests are held
by an independent third party (the “Major Shareholder”).
Based on the investment agreement entered into by the
Associate Company, the subsidiary of the Group and the
Major Shareholder, the Associate Company has to repay
the shareholder loans provided by the Major Shareholder
within a specified timeframe after commencement of presale
activities. If the Associate Company fails to return such
shareholder loan on time, the subsidiary of the Group is
required to provide funding to the Associate Company for
the repayment of the shareholder loans. As at 31 December
2020, such shareholder loans of this Associate Company are
approximately RMB218 million.

(@)

e PR RRME

34 TRERRIAREE(F)

Hrat

AEEEAAKBENETHBEELE R
BERTTRLE Y BERMWERAE
REER ZEFEREBROEL R
BEFHEEBES H(BFE
BNRIBERNRFEERE) R
1k e

BEERGESR EZEBEFEER
RIBERE  AEEAABRRT
EHERNBEEHERNREAEE
R & 5t A 8+ T A &2 B 70 52 A AR B
FREFRAEEEEHBYENS
EXRBENAARE AEENERY
BEREERBAMERE - EER AL
BEEHERNZIOAREER) - A
b BRAFEFENMBREFRLAS
EKXR-

BHRMNZ T kB RRE—5
AEBE—FHKBAREIREG —MIEE
AR((BERAR N HBEBBEEF
A IREFERE LT ) 20% M B HE
MErT80% AR —RBILE=
FIEERRDHFEE - RBEBHEA
A AEENBATIREERER]
VHRERE BELRANEE
EHHREREHEANEEEE
BREEHENBRRER - Wi E QA
EAEBEEEEEREEN AKX
SEMBARAMBEARIREE
& NEEEARRER - 12020
F12A31H  BHE RN ABEBERE
BEFHBANRE218AE T o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

34 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(CONTINUED)

In addition, pursuant to the investment agreement,
the subsidiary of the Group also has to compensate
for all losses of the Major Shareholder if the property
project is delayed under certain conditions or that
the repayment of shareholder loan is delayed beyond
certain period stipulated in the investment agreement.
As at 31 December 2020, management of the Group
considers the risk of providing funding for repayment of
shareholder loans or any compensation loss is low as
no material delay of the development of such property
project occurred.

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Name and relationship with related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party
in making financial and operation decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject
to common control. Members of key management
and their close family member of the Group are also
considered as related parties.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

34 eRERRIAREE(F)

AN RIBERERE - WO EEE
EETELTEL KBREEZRD
ERREERKREHZTBHNE
THIR - BIANEE M B AR AR
FERENMABEELFEE - B
20205F12A31A - A& B EEER
B HREEDEEENIRELE
EALER WIREBESUEERRE
BEXRTMEEEESENRRA
K -

35 BBRAEXRS

(a) & E2ERME T AV &

HE— BN E R RES
A= REFLHHBRESE
REBRES-—TELEEAY
7 HEBEREBT - WA
BEHZLRES - BITFHEE S
HERY AKEEXTEEEE
X 8 R 18 5 AT 35 70 4% AR 1 A B
Eo



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BE AR5 (&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Name and relationship with related parties (a) BWE&EBEEKTHNER(E)
(continued)
Name Relationship with the Group
HE il ) - RES

Mr. Li Xiao Bing (Z= /)N k)

Controlling shareholder of the Company

K& RRAA B ZERRR

Mr. Lin Peiging (P8 15)8) Member of Mr. Li Xiao Bing’s family
MIEE L E FNKEENKIEKE

Ms. Lin Sai E (M & 1) Member of Mr. Li Xiao Bing’s family
MWEG 2+ FNKEENKIEKE

Mr. Lin Jun Wei (7R E1{&) Member of Mr. Li Xiao Bing’s family
WEEEE FNKEERKIEKE

Ms. Lin Wei (7 5) Member of Mr. Li Xiao Bing’s family
I 2+ FNKEERKIEKE

Mr. Wang Zhen Feng (L #x &) Director of the Company

TR % & AN/

Mr. Wang Quan (FE#) Director of the Company

FRESEE KABES

Ms. Qi Chun Feng (% & &) Director of the Company

EHERZ T RRBIESE

Mr. Zhang Jun Feng (5k & I£) Family member of Ms. Qi Chun Feng
R (& I % A& BERZTHWKREKE

Mr. Li Shi Xun (Z= i ) Key management of the Company
it B) A KRR EEZEEAER

Ever Enrichment Enterprise Company Limited
(“Ever Enrichment”)
BEHAEERAR(ERD

Shareholder of the Company

RRFRER
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e PR ERRME

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BE AR5 (&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Name and relationship with related parties (a) BWE&EHEBEKTHNRER(E)
(continued)
Name Relationship with the Group
i BE 7K £ @ 1Y BE 1R

Ever Enhancement Enterprise Company Limited

(“Ever Enhancement”)

BACEERAB(ED
Henan Hengda Investment Company Limited*

(ArREERERRAINT)

(“Hengda Investment”) (Note)
AmEEEREFERAR(MBEERE DA )
Xuchang Hengda Property Management

Company Limited* (FEEEWXEEGR A A])

(*Hengda Property Management”) (Note)
FEEBEVMEERARAGR(EEMEETRD(MZE)
Xuchang City Second Construction (Group) Company

Limited* (FEME _ZEE(EB)ERAF)

(“Xuchang Erjian”)
EME_ZE(ER)ARRIN(FEZZD
Xuchang Hengjiu Industrial Development

Company Limited* (FfEBAEX#ZERABR A A)

(“Hengjiu Industrial”)
HFEBABXRERARQRA(EAEE]

*

English name for identification purpose only

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

Shareholder of the Company

ZANYNE) 3
Controlled by Mr. Li Xiao Bing

B 2= /)N K 5 A
Significantly influenced by Hengda
Investment

BEREFEEATE
Controlled by Mr. Li Dong Fa

B2 ROR e A
Controlled by Ms. Qi Chun Feng

7 & R 2 1l

E R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties
The following is a summary of the significant
transactions carried out between the Group and its

related parties:

(i) Temporary funding received from related

e PR RRME

35 ML X5 (&)

(b) BEERZ

AEEBREBHSTETHEXR
RESMEWNT :

(i) WHE BB b &

parties =
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BILLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR F T
— Hengda Investment —BEKRE 219,090 —
— Mr. Li Xiao Bing — /KA 1,814 —
— Ever Enhancement — 1B Ft 845 —
— Ever Enrichment — 188 253 —
222,002 =

(ii) Temporary funding repaid to related

(i) 18T B BT 1Y b b5 &

parties Z
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARMF T
— Hengda Investment —lBERE 219,090 —
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e PR ERRME

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

(iii) Services provided by related parties

35 BB LR 5 (&)

(b) AR5 (&)

(iii) B8 5 42 12 B9 R %

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AR F T
— Hengda Property Management — 18 3= ) ¥ & 12 10,313 6,401

(iv) Sales of properties to related parties

(iv) 2] B8 B 7 1F i B9 ) % 35

=3
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLFEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR F oL
— Ms. Lin Wei — PRI 2 £ 10,024 16,127
— Ms. Lin Sai E —MEH LT 3,000 —
— Mr. Lin Jun Wei —MERELE 2,417 -
— Mr. Li Shi Xun — =B L 120 -
— Mr. Wang Quan —EREEE 100 1,294
— Mr. Wang Zhen Feng — FiRiE %A 19 2,543
— Ms. Qi Chun Feng —E&ER LT - 5,788
15,680 25,752

258 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)
(v) Key management compensation
Key management includes directors and senior
management staff. The compensation paid or

payable to key management for employee services
is shown below:

e PR RRME

35 ML X5 (&)

(b) BABLRZ(HE)

(v) TEEZEAEHE
TZEBANEBBREESR
=REEAR - REBR
BENIBRNEREERA
BHME 5RO

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLLFEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AEET T

Salaries and other short-term HFehEMESHEBSET
employee benefits 6,016 4,367
Post-employment benefits RIKAE A 135 386
6,151 4,753
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(CONTINUED)

(c) Related-party balances

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has the following balances with related

parties:

(i) Construction deposits from related parties

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

35 BB LR 5 (&)

(c) BAmEG&eR

REBBEG AT RN M8k

() KEBBLZHEZRRE

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TFT AR T
— Xuchang Erjian —FEZ& 19,867 15,727
— Hengda Property Management — 18 %)% & 12 - 31
— Hengijiu Industrial —BAEX 536 1,118
20,403 16,876

(iij) Other payables due to a related party

(ii) FE(TESE 5 B0 E

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR 8T ARET T
— Hengda Property Management — 18 %) % & 1% 559 —

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Related-party balances (continued)

(iii) Trade payables due to a related party

e PR RRME

35 ML X5 (&)

(c) EBERETS %8k (AF)

(iii) FEAT BB 5 8y & 5 FE 1

»E

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AT T

— Xuchang Erjian —HEE

9,225 17,704

Trade payables due to a related party arose from
purchase transactions. The payables bear no
interest.

The Group has the following balances with related
parties:

(iv) Amounts due to related parties

FEfTRERE T W0 B 5 B 1 3K
HRABERS - %FE
TR IBEAEE -

AREBAEB AT BRI 4 6h:

(iv) FE1T BB 5 7 '

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AT T

Mr. Li Xiao Bing TNKEE 1,814 —
Ever Enhancement 8 F 845 -
Ever Enrichment (=D 253 —

2,912 =

Amounts due to related parties are non-interest
bearing.

P BB RIAR AT -
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e PR ERRME

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36 RQFMNIBMRRERRFESE
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

M12HA31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

1 it ARETT ARET T

ASSETS BE
Other receivable H A fE U FRA 253,775 255,241
Dividend receivable JE 2 g B 146,960 76,960
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEYD 464 2,186
Total assets BEE 401,199 334,387
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of ZAAFEEFA

the Company BE 15 B =
Share capital f% 7 14 10,645 10,645
Share premium f& 10 = (B 14,(a) 299,188 299,188
Retained earnings/(Accumulated RBAFN (REHEE)

losses) (a) 63,471 (2,449)
Total equity BmER 373,304 307,384
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBARE
Other payables H {th B {4 3018 27,895 27,003
Total liabilities weE 27,895 27,003
Total equity and liabilities HEZRERS 401,199 334,387
The statement of financial position of the Company was AR E) B SRR R E 12021963 H25
approved by the board of directors on 25 March 2021 and AEEFEgERBUATATRE
was signed on its behalf by: #=E:

Li Xiao Bing Wang Zhen Feng
2=k T R
Director Director
EZ EZ
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e PR RRME

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36 RNAMMBMRR KRR EE B
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (48
(CONTINUED)
M it -
Reserve movements of the Company AATFMNEEZS
Retained
Earnings/
Share (Accumulated
premium losses)
REERA/
B 0% E (REtE8)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFor AREFr
Balance at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A18 B4 & 299,188 65,316
Comprehensive income EHEHEA
Loss for the year FRER = (5,525)
Total comprehensive income FREEBALE
for the year = (5,525)
Transactions with owners REBANKS
2018 final dividend 20187 H % B — (62,240)
Total transactions with owners SHEFANXZAEHE = (62,240)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31H M & 8 299,188 (2,449)
Balance at 1 January 2020 R202051 7318 9 & 8% 299,188 (2,449)
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year F R F = 65,920
Balance at 31 December 2020 72020512 A31R K 4 & 299,188 63,471
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e PR ERRME

37 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37 BRI
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 R2020%F K2019F12 A31H K £
December 2020 and 2019 are set out below: MEBARIMGEHIWT :
Subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI REBEBARSTMRZAMBEL
=il
Percentage of attributable equity

Date of interest as at 31 December

incorporation/ M2A3BEEREEA I
Company name establishment Issued 2020 2019  Principal activities

HRAL/
RAEH g 2R 20205 20195  FEXH
Dadi Development Limited 10 June 2013 USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
AERERLA 2013464108 17T 100% 100% REZER
Subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong REBTEMRLNH BT

Percentage of attributable equity

Date of interest as at 31 December
incorporation/ R12AMAEERERD I
Company name establishment Issued 2020 2019  Principal activities
AR/
RAEH F A8 &7 20205 20195  FEEH
Dadi (Hong Kong) Enterprise Co., Ltd. 14 March 2012 HKD100 100% 100%  Investment holding
A(BE) EEERDLA 20126 3814R 1008 T 100% 100% REAR
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37 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries incorporated in PRC

e PR RRME

37 B LARIE (&)

T FRER E B ML AV FH B A F]

Percentage of
attributable equity interest

Date of as at 31 December
incorporation/ Place of incorporation M2ASIAEERENEA L
Company name establishment and kind of legal entity Registered 2020 2019 Principal activities
HREL/ ARAIHER
AR%R RIRH EABEER i 220§ 0195 FEER
00
7
Henan Dadi Property Development 29 July 1992 The PRC, domestic USD2,500 100% 100%  Investment holding in
Company Limited (‘Henan Dad’) company limited with the PRC
limited liability, wholly
foreign owned enterprise
EABEHERERRAT 19924 7A298 hEREARAMERA O 250057 100% 100%  ReBEHREER
(TEAs)) BRELR
Xuchang Hengda Property Group 3 June 1998 The PRG, domestic RMB60,000 100% 100%  Real estate development
Company Limited (*Xuchang Hengda) company limited with and house renting
limited liability in the PRC
HEEERHERERRAD 199846 A3H hERERRAMLA AR¥60000T 100% 100% ReEHFEHERER
(FFEEE)) BERE
Xuchang Songji Dadi Property Company Limited 7 November 2007 The PRG, domestic RMBS0,000 100% 100%  Real estate development
(*Songji Dadi’) /3) company limited with and house renting
limited liability in the PRC
HEREABERARAT 2001511A7A hERERRAMAA ARE500007 100% 100% ReEHFEHERER
(IREX) G BERE
Xinyang Hengda Property Development Company 5 March 2008 The PRC, domestic RMB30,000 88.88% 88.88%  Real estate development
Limited (‘Xinyang Hengda’) company limited with in the PRC
limited liability
EHEEENERSARAA 2008£3f58 PEANERRELAT ARH30,0007 8.88% 8888% MPEHRERE
(EREE])

2020 Annual Report
—B-BEER

265



266

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

37 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries incorporated in PRC (continued)

37 MIBLARIE (&)

T FRE A 1 B ML AV B AR ()

Percentage of
attributable equity interest

Date of as at 31 December
incorporation/ Place of incorporation MANREERENAIY
Company name establishment and kind of legal entity Registered 2020 2019 Principal activities
AL/ ERALBER
R RiBH EARBER i 20205 0198 TEER
00
I
Yuzhou City Hengda Property Company Limited 4 September 2009 The PRC, domestic RMB100,000 100% 100%  Real estate development
(*Yuzhou Hengda') company limited with and house renting in
limited liability the PRC
BNmEERBERRALA 200959748 PANERRELAT ARE1000007% 100% 0% RPEHEHERER
(BMEE) BEHE
Changge City Hengda Property Company Limited 15 May 2011 The PRG, domestic RMB60,000 100% 100%  Real estate development
(‘Changge Hengda') company fimited with and house renting in
limited liability the PRC
REMEERHERRAT(REEE) 1F5A15H PENERRELAT ARE600007T 100% 0% RPBEHEHERER
BEHE
Xuchang Jiari Baocheng Property Company 2 June 2011 The PRC, domestic RMBA0,000 100% 100%  Real estate development
Limited (*Jiari Baocheng’) company limited with in the PRC
limited liability
HERAEZERARAR 201E6A28 PANERRELAT ARB500007T 100% 0% RPEHEHERE
EEE)
Xuchang City Jian'an District Hengmu Property 25 January 2016 The PRC, domestic RMB10,000 51% 51%  Real estate development
Company Limited (formerly known as Xuchang company limited with in the PRC
County Hengmu Property Co., Ltd) (‘Xuchang limited liability
Hengmu')
HEMREREAFHERRAA(RE: 2016514258 RERERRALLT AR#10,0007C 51% 51%  RYENEHERS
TEREABHEERAR)
(lFFEER])
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37 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries incorporated in PRC (continued)

37 B LARIE (&)

e PR RRME

T FRER E 1 B ML YR B AR ()

Percentage of
attributable equity interest

Date of as at 31 December
incorporation/ Place of incorporation MANREERENAIY
Company name establishment and kind of legal entity Registered 2020 2019 Principal activities
AL/ HRRLBER
R RiBH EARRER i 20205 0198 TEER
00
7
Yuzhou City Hengnuo Property Company Limited 13 December 2018 The PRC, domestic USD38,000 100% 100%  Real estate development
(*Yuzhou Hengnuo') company limited with and house renting in
limited liability, sino- the PRC
foreign owned enterprise
ENmEREREREARAT 2018%12A13R RERERRAMRA § 38,000% 7T 100% 100% ReENFEHERER
(BMEz]) NaELE BEHE
Henan Damai Property Marketing planning 3 March 2019 The PRC, domestic RMBS,000 100% 100%  Real estate brokerage
Company Limited (*Henan Damal’) company limited with services/Rental
limited liability agency services/Real
estate information
consultation and
Housing sales service
ABRRERERERIBRAT 201943A3A hERERRAMAA AR¥8000T 100% 100% FHESLRE/HE
(TmEER) RERE/ BiER
SHAREEHER
i
Xuchang Weiheng Property Development 30 October 2019 The PRC, domestic RMB120,000 100% 100%  Real estate development
Company Limited (*Xuchang Weiheng') &) company limited with and house renting in
limited liability the PRC
HERERMERERRAT 01951088 $EREERERLA ARE1200007T 100% 0% RPEHEHERER
(FFERENY BEHE
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e PR ERRME

37 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries incorporated in PRC (continued)

37 MIBLARIE (&)

T FRE A 1 B ML AV B AR ()

Percentage of

attributable equity interest

Date of as at 31 December
incorporation/ Place of incorporation MANREERENAIY
Company name establishment and kind of legal entity Registered 2020 2019 Principal activities
AL/ ERALBER
R R EARBER i 2020% 0198 TEER
00
I
Xuchang Yuanda Property Company Limited 18 January 2019 The PRG, domestic RMB20,000,000 0% 70%  Real estate development
(*Xuchang Yuanda') company limited with in the PRC
limited liability
HEREEFERAA(TERE] 2019%1 7188 TEREERERAT  ARK200000007 0% 0% RYENEHERS
Xiangcheng Hengdla Real Estate Development 10 January 2020 The PRG, domestic RMB20,000 100% —  Real estate development
Company Limited (*Xiangxian Hengda') company limited with in the PRC
limited liability
BNEEERHERLERAT 2020514108 hERERRAMAT ARH#200007 100% - RPBENEHERE
(IE5EE])
Xuchang Xuheng Trading Company Limited 22 May 2020 The PRC, domestic RMB50,000 100% — Trading company in the
(*Xuheng Trading’) company limited with PRC
limited liability
HEHEHEARAT 2020554208 hERERRAAAT ARE500007 100% - RPENEALT
(IFHeme))
Xuchang Dongheng Real Estate Development Co., 4 Apri 2020 The PRG, domestic RMB10,000 100% —  Real estate development
Ltd. (‘uchang Dongheng’) ¢/ company limited with and house renting in
limited fiability the PRC
HERERNEREARAA 20204748 hERERRAMAT AR#100007 100% - RPRNEHERLR
([FEREDG BEHE

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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e PR RRME

37 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries incorporated in PRC (continued)

37 B LARIE (&)

T FRER E 1 B ML YR B AR ()

Percentage of
attributable equity interest

Date of as at 31 December
incorporation/ Place of incorporation MANREERENAIY
Company name establishment and kind of legal entity Registered 2020 2019 Principal activities
AL/ HRRLBER
R RiBH EARRER i 20205 0198 TEER
00
7
Luohe Hengda Huatai Real Estate Co,, Lid. 21 December 2020 The PRC, domestic RMB20,000 60% —  Real estate development
(‘Luohe Hengda’) company fimited with and house renting in
limited liability the PRC
EHBEERERARAT 20205125218 hERERRAR DT AR20,0007 60% - RPENEHERER
(DEEE]) BEHE

*

English name for identification only

Y AXEFERBRS
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e PR ERRME

37 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries incorporated in PRC (continued)

@)

Songji Dadi owned a project (“Songji Dadi — Mingmen Shangju”)
which was developed together with a third party investor. In
accordance with co-development agreement and its supplemental
agreement dated 30 January 2010 and 9 February 2010
respectively, the third party investor owns 49% interest in this
project and therefore is considered a non-controlling interest of the
Group.

On 30 October 2019, Xuchang Hengda set up a subsidiary
Xuchang Weiheng, with a third party, Xuchang Weidu
Investment Company Limited (“Xuchang Weidu”). Xuchang
Weiheng was owned as to 58.33% by Xuchang Hengda and
41.67% by Xuchang Weidu. The total contribution of Xuchang
Weidu to Xuchang Weiheng amounted to approximately
RMB40,000,000.

In accordance with the supplementary agreement which was
entered between Xuchang Hengda and Xuchang Weidu on 10
January 2020, Xuchang Weidu’s equity interest to Xuchang
Weiheng is required to be repurchased by Xuchang Hengda
in the future. The repurchase prices of the equity interests
reflect the fixed returns, and the investment is regarded as a
debt. Xuchang Weiheng is therefore recognised as a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group.

On 4 April 2020, Xuchang Hengda set up a subsidiary
Xuchang Dongheng, with a third party, Xuchang Dongtai
Construction Engineering Company Limited* (“Xuchang
Dongtai”). Xuchang Dongheng was owned as to 90% by
Xuchang Hengda and 10% by Xuchang Dongtai. The total
contribution of Xuchang Dongtai to Xuchang Dongheng
amounted to approximately RMB89,540,000.

In accordance with the agreement which was entered
between Xuchang Hengda and Xuchang Dongheng on 27
March 2020, Xuchang Dongtai’s equity interest in Xuchang
Dongheng is required to be repurchased by Xuchang Hengda
in the future. The repurchase prices of the equity interests
reflect the fixed returns, and the investment is regarded as a
debt. Xuchang Dongheng is therefore recognised as a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group.

*
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 were approximately RMB30,131,000 and
RMB17,551,000 respectively. Set out below is summarised
financial information for each subsidiary that has non-
controlling interests that are material to the Group. The
amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-
company eliminations.

e PR RRME

38 EREAFEZEREZNHEAR
M BEER R

20204 K 201912 A31H B FE 12 f%
= B B4 A AR 30,131,000
7T K A R #17,551,0007T © T~ X & 5l
HEEANEBBE KM IFIERER
MBARTMNIHBEERBE - &
MEBAR#EENSREIEARMEY
SHATR £ 58 -

Summarised statement of financial position BERRARBEE
Songiji Dadi-Mingmen Luohe
Xuchang Hengmu Xinyang Hengda Shangju Xuchang Yuanda Hengda
HEEK EREE REXY - £MHE FEEE REE
Asat 31
As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December December
M12B31A PRI M2R31A PRI M2B31A
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
20205 019 20205 0198 20205 20195 2020% 20195 220§
RMB'O00  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBUOOO  RMBO00  RMBUJ0  RMBU00  AMBUOXD  RMB000
ABRTL ARETL ABETZ AREFrT AEEFn ARETT AREFx AREFT  AREFx
Current; e
Assets AE 90,754 89,460 70,561 70,710 16,279 66,761 146,021 94,396 74,008
Liabiltties 8 (87,866) (84,320) (1,151) (1,169) (6,593) (56,572) (135,866) (89,374) (54,015)
Total current net assets ROEEFEAE 2,808 5,140 69,410 69,541 9,686 10,189 10,155 5,022 19,993
Non-current; g
Assets AE 1,667 1,103 13 0 45 8 1 = -
Liabilities g - - - - - - - - -
Total non-current net assets FRHEEFELE 1,667 1,103 1 2 45 8 " - -
Net assets AERE 4,555 6,243 69,423 69,561 9,731 10,197 10,866 5,022 19,993
Net assets attributable to FEREREN
non-controling interests EERE 223 3,060 1720 77% 4,768 499 3,260 1,506 7,097
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38 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Summarised statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income

38 EREAFEZEREZNHEAR
M B ER R E(F)

BERRkEMEEKREREE

Songiji Dadi-Mingmen Luohe

Xuchang Hengmu Xinyang Hengda Shangju Xuchang Yuanda Hengda

FEEXR FREE REXS - EFHE TERE REE

Year

ended 31

Year ended 31 December  Year ended 31 December ~ Year ended 31 December  Year ended 31 December  December

BZ12831A

BE1RNALEE BERMALER HENRYALEE BE1AMALER LEE

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020

2020% 195 2020% 20195 2020% 195 2020% 0195 2020%

RMBYO00  RMBUOO — RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBO0O

ARETL NEEFrT ARETE ARETr ARETn AREFr ARETE ARETrT ARETZ

Revenue WA - - 2 4 1,070 664 - - -

Loss before income tax REEHAIEE (2,248) (2,705) (138) (509) (461) (2,345) (1,569) (178) 1}

Income tax expense FERAR 560 623 - - ] 8 43 - -

Post-tax loss RkER (1,688) (2,08 (138) (503) (465) (2.337) (1,156) (178) 1]

Total comprehensive income 2EEBUA (1,688) 2,08 (138) (509) (465) 2.337) (1,156) (178) )
Total comprehensive loss attributable  FEEREH (G

to non-controling interests 2EEELT (827) (1,020 (15) (56) (229) (1,145) (347) (53) k]

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA
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38 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 38 EHEEAFEZEREZNMHEAT

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- WU BERBE(E)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
Summarised cash flows HEeEREHNE
Songiji Dadi-Mingmen Luohe
Xuchang Hengmu Xinyang Hengda Shangju Xuchang Yuanda Hengda
FEEL EREE REKH - EAHE FEEE REE
Years
ended 31
Years ended 31 December ~ Years ended 31 December  Years ended 31 December ~ Years ended 31 December  December
BZ12A318
BE12RMALEE HEIAMALEE BE12RMALEE HEIRMALEE LEE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
2020% 20195 2020% 20195 220§ AN19% 20205 2019 20205
RMB'000 AWBO0O  RMB'000 AWBU0 — RMB'000 AWBO0O  RMB'000 AWBU0 — RMB'000
ARRTL ARETL ABETZ AREFT AREFn ARETT AREFx AREFT  AREFx
Cash flows from operating actiiies: ~ £2EBMERLTE:
Cash (used in}/generated from BE(FR)/EfRS
operations (3,441) (87,023) (139) (1,080 21 178 28,315 60 (5)
Income tax paid BHHER (317) 80g) - 1%) (141) 63 w9) - 5
Net cash (used in)igenerated from ~ E#£iE8(ER)/
operating activities EERSEE (3,758) (37,831) (139) (1,160) (120) (154) 21,836 60 -
Net cash used in investing activies X ZEBHAELFE - = - = - = - = -
Net cash generated from HERDELRERE
financing activities - 43898 - - - - - -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RERRESEN
and cash equivalents (Bd)/%nse (3,758) 6,067 (139) (1,160) (120) (154) 21,83 60 -
Cash and cash equivalents at ENBRLRES
beginning of the year £EN 6,221 154 837 1,997 245 399 60 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end EXNBERAS
of the year &Y 2,463 6,221 698 837 125 245 27,896 60 -
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39 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In order to acquire a parcel of land in Yanling County,
Xuchang Hengda signed an agreement with independent
third parties on 18 December 2020, pursuant to which,
Xuchang Hengda agreed to buy 51% interests of Yanling
Zhengli Real Estate Development Company Limited*
(“Yanling Zhengli”) by taking on liabilities of approximately
RMB88,023,000 of Yanling Zhengli. Xuchang Hengda
repaid the liabilities of Yanling Zhengli of approximately
RMB84,900,000 to a third party and recorded it as
prepayments of equity acquisition as at 31 December 2020.
On 8 January 2021, the procedures of transfer of shares

and relevant registration were completed.

Save as the above, there were no significant events after 31

December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

*
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Financial Summary

I HE

Year ended 31 December

BZE128318LLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ANRBEFT ANRETrT ARETFT AREFIT ARKEFTT
Revenue WA 2,422,051 1,974,060 1,883,603 1,549,878 930,859
Profit for the year 5% 282,591 290,765 229,861 149,409 76,766
Profit for the year RNAREEE AREM
attributable to F A 5 F
owners of the
Company 284,011 293,040 224,505 147,794 74,108
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ANRB¥TFrx NRETT NRETrTt ANRETFT AREFT
Non-current assets IEMEBEE 324,850 259,546 173,871 154,818 71,586
Current assets MEEE 8,183,717 6,266,843 5,030,664 4,534,443 4,193,964
Total assets B EBE 8,508,567 6,526,380 5,204,535 4,689,261 4,265,550
Non-current liabilities ~ FER 8 B & 276,412 461,710 622,436 1,159,742 1,266,990
Current liabilities mEaE 6,702,065 4,831,180 3,584,584 3,071,697 2,694,903
Total liabilities BERE 6,978,477 5,292,800 4,207,020 4,231,439 3,961,893
Total equity e o5 4858 1,530,090 1,233,499 997,515 457,822 303,657
Total equity ZN/NCIEZ F N7 L )
attributable to WE S B FE
owners of the
Company 1,499,959 1,215,948 977,689 443,352 295,508
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Financial Summary

MEHE

Note 1: The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the
year ended 31 December 2015 which was extracted from
the prospectus of the Company dated 30 October 2018
(“Prospectus”) have been prepared on a combined basis to
indicate the results of the Group as if the group structure, at
the time when the Company’s shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, has been in existence throughout
that year.

Note 2: The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 were extracted from the
Prospectus.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

HraET

Kiito :

8% 8 AR R HH A2018510830
ANBARER(ERERDNE R
2015F12ABIH L FEMEE UK
BERBEMENRGAEERE
NBRAEBESE  BOEEER
AR B B& 5 7 B A2 BT £ AR £ B
RZEE—ERFE -

H £ 20164 201712 A31H IEF &
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REWMF

List of Principal Properties

Interest  Approximate
attributable to total gross
Properties the Group floor area Type Lease term
(sg.m.)
/S AEEEGES BALEEERE EH5 HE
(FIH)
Hengdali Market 100% 3,096  Commercial 40 years from 7 October 1996 to
6 October 2036
BEND5 BE 1996 10A7H £2036410368
RE40E
105 retail units on Level 2, the retalil
podium of Hengdali Market, the west
of the northern section of Jiefang
Road, Weidu District, Xuchang, Henan
Province, the PRC
B Eg A AT AT AR AR I AR UK b BRUA
AEREENTSNTEFL2EH
105(EE &8s
Xingshu Garden 100% 3,462  Commercial 50 years from 20 December 2002 to
19 December 2052
TEEH (EES 200212 A20A 2205212 A19H
AR50
20 retail units on Level 2 and Level 3,
the retail podium of Xingshu Garden,
the middle section of Qiyi Road, Weidu
District, Xuchang, Henan Province, the
PRC
RETEATEMRTR L —BPERA
RIERENTET A2 R3EM20
HEEEM
Longhu Building 100% 428  Residential 70 years from 16 February 2003 to

EMAE

Unit 2301 on Level 23 and Level 24,
Longhu Building, No. 9 Shangwu Inner
Ring Road, Zhengdong New District,
Zhengzhou, Henan Province, the PRC

RETEEBMTERNERENIRE
QSR BE M K [E23 124 B M2301 E T

15 February 2073
F=x 2003F2H16H £2073F2 7158
AET0%F
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List of Principal Properties
AY hY I V4
FEYE
Interest  Approximate
attributable to total gross
Properties the Group floor area Type Lease term
(5g.m.)
/S AEEEGES BNLEEER H5 HE
()
King of the North 100% 13,223  Commercial 40 years from 20 February 2014 to
19 February 2054
pc3-3 [GES 20142 A208 £2054F2A198 -
AE40E
Block 1, King of the North, the junction
of Jingshui Road and Longquan Road,
Jian'an District, Xuchang, Henan
Province, the PRC
mEEATETRYE R KK EER
BR XA GERIE
Xida Jie Office 100% 2,350  Office 70 years from 1 January 1982 to
31 December 2051
BAEHRE /N 1982F1A1H £2051F12A31A
RHET0%F
No. 563, West Avenue, Weidu District,
Xuchang, Henan Province, the PRC
R & A BT A0 R P K BT5635%
Hengda Weiyuan 100% 2,294 Commercial 40 years from 8 September 2017 to
7 September 2057
BRRR [GES 2017F9A8H E2057F9A7A
RE40%

A retail unit on Basement Level 1,
Commercial Block 5 of Hengda
Weiyuan, the Junction of Laodong

Road and Remin Road, Weidu District,

Xuchang, Henan Province, the PRC

PETEEFEMABRIPIREAR

BRXOBERFKEHFIE L™
AZEEN

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited

BESEE (ER) ERAR



List of Principal Properties

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

ek Sk ES
Approximate
total gross
Interest Approximate floor area Estimated
attributable total gross under date of
Properties to the Group site area development Type completion Progress
(sg.m.) (sg.m.)
A58 B4 BA
L/ES EiEE HABBEE LEEEE EHH B TR AH ERMR
(FJK) (FIK)
Hengda Lanjun 100% 72,491 252,124 Residential and ~ December 2023 Under construction
commercial
B3R Tz BE 202312 TRETH
Located at the east of
Wenfeng South Road
and the South of Xuyou
Road, Weidu District,
Xuchang City, Henan
Province, the PRC
i NP BT A E A
REBEXEEEAR
RAT BB A R
Dongcheng Garden 90% 124,224 408,760 Residential and  December 2024 Under construction
commercial
R IEE T HE 2024412 TIRETH

Located at the east of
Weiwu Avenue and
the South of the Xuefu
Road, Dongcheng
District, Xuchang City,
Henan Province, the
PRC

IR E A EEFEN
FHEREREUR
RER AR
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List of Principal Properties

Approximate

Progress

ERRR

total gross
Interest Approximate floor area Estimated
attributable total gross under date of
Properties to the Group site area development Type completion
(sg.m.) (sq.m.)
r5E B4 B
L/ES EiEE HABBEE LEEEE EHH B TR AH
(FFK) (FK)
King of the North 100% 271,114 146,930 Residential and ~ December 2024
commercial
byt T HE 2024412

Located at the south
of Xinyuan Avenue
and the east of Binhe
Road, Jian’an District,
Xuchang City, Henan
Province, the PRC
IR EEETEN

BEBHTAENLE

OB IAR

Mingmen Xijun 100% 63,507 110,484  Residential and ~ December 2022
commercial

AT EE -BX 20225121

Located at the east of
Wuyi Road and the
south of Yunlianghe
Street, Weidu District,
Xuchang City, Henan
Province, the PRC

i R BT A E AT
REEI-BRA - E
Bl
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List of Principal Properties

Approximate

total gross
Interest Approximate floor area Estimated
attributable total gross under date of
Properties to the Group site area development Type completion Progress
(sg.m.) (sg.m.)
x5E B4 BA
L/ES EiEEE HABBEE LEEEE EHH B TR AH ERMR
(FJK) (FIK)
Changge Sunshine City 100% 255,379 330,515  Residential and ~ December 2023 Under construction
commercial
REG KA Tz HE 202312 TRETH
Located at the south of
Getian Avenue and
the west of Huangdie
Road, Changge City,
Xuchang, Henan
Province, the PRC
fiRPBEAEEFER
EmMERREBUER
RN
Hengda Binhefu Project 100% 143,330 143,330  Residential and  December 2024 Under construction
commercial
BERARER T #F 2024412 IRETH

Located at the south of

Binhe Avenue and east

of Xuanyuan Avenue,

Yuzhou City, Xuchang,

Henan Province, the
PRC
fRHEEETES
N T E I K 38 LA R
HRABUE
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List of Principal Properties

Approximate

Progress

ERRR

total gross
Interest Approximate floor area Estimated
attributable total gross under date of
Properties to the Group site area development Type completion
(sg.m.) (sq.m.)
r5E B4 B
L/ES EiEE HABBEE LEEEE EHH B TR AH
(FFK) (FK)
Yuzhou Sunshine City 100% 502,535 1,118,930 Residentialand ~ March 2025
commercial
BN F 5 T BE 202553~

Located at the north of
Yuwang Boulevard,
south of Binhe
Boulevard and west of
Xuanyuan Boulevard,
Yuzhou City, Xuchang,
Henan Province, the
PRC

RPN EETES
MABERBIIE B
AREAEREFRA
BT

Under construction

TRREFTF

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA



Board
EEA

Ever Reach or the Company
BEERKARRQF

Group
REH

Henan Dadi

AR At

Hengda Investment

BERE

Hengda Property Management

BEMEER

HK$/HKD

BT

IPO
BERDHEE

*

Glossary
=2
ar| 52

Board of directors of the Company
ARRAESRE

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE(ZER)BRAF

Ever Reach and its subsidiaries
EEZEREENB AR

Henan Dadi Property Development Company Limited*, being an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

MEAMEHERERRAR  ARA2EEE2ENB AR

Henan Hengda Investment Company Limited*, a limited liability company
established in the PRC on 17 October 2007 owned approximately by
Mr. Li Xiaobing as to 67.1833%, Mr. Wang Zhenfeng as to 3.3833%,
Ms. Qi Chunfeng as to 18.65%, Mr. Li Shixun as to 2.3833% and Ms.
Chun Xiaojun as to 1.15% (all of whom being connected persons) and
two independent third parties as to the remaining 7.25%, and hence a
connected person of our Company
MEEEREARAR - —RMN2007F10A17TBERBEK IO ER AR
DAlBEFENKEE FIRELE BERXL FEBHEALERE
T+ ABEANT) B 4671833% + 3.3833% * 18.65% - 2.3833% &
1T15%ERASRHMEBBELE = EEHRT7.25%Es - At /AEARFH
B AL

Xuchang Hengda Property Management Company Limited®, a limited
liability company established in the PRC on 5 July 1999 30% owned by
Hengda Investment, and hence a connected person of our Company
HEEEMEERERAT - —KM999F7TASBEFRBEKZHAERAA -
MIEEZEREFA0%ME Bt AARANBEEAL

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BRBETEE

Initial public offering of Ever Reach
BEZRERAAZEE

English name for identification purpose only
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Glossary
A
AR 52

Listing Rules
Lt R Al

Model Code

f= <y B

b A

i

PRC

HE

RMB

AR

SFO
& 75 LR R B

Stock Exchange
Bt 22 PR

Xuchang Hengda

HEEE

Yuzhou Hengda

BMNEZE

*

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRORA

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B 3 P8 o5 T AR A

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FARAIMEION LT ETAEFTETESXHNRLESTA

People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this annual report and
except where the context requires otherwise, references to PRC do not
include Taiwan, the Hong Kong Special Administration Region, the Macao
Special Administration Region, of the People’s Republic of China

MEARANBE K AFHN S RIEXEZEAME SREFEZ
RAWTBERE  FEFNTHRRRPEARALMBERPIERTEHE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
ARY  RBEEEYK

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
BAERBEBRO(BEBEMESNE)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARXIMABRRAR

Xuchang Hengda Property Group Company Limited*, being an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

HEBERMESEEERAR  ARAZEAEEZENBE AR

Yuzhou City Hengda Property Company Limited*, being an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

BNTEEEHEARECAT AATZHELENEAR

English name for identification purpose only
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